¢
) @\*13 ﬁﬁnidpan

EHREEEZEZERARLF
GOLDPAC GROUP LIMITED
(REBEMRINERAR)
(incorporated in Hong Kong w ith limited liability)

o
' 4
Yy
A




Contents

B 8

2 Corporate Information

TEEH

5 Financial Highlights
s mE

6 2019 Major Events
2019 FAEFRC

8 Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

14

28

38

66

Management Discussion and Analysis
EREN BRI

Directors and Senior Management

ExheRERERE

Report of Directors

ExgmE

Corporate Governance Report
rEERMSE



85

117

123

125

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE - gkEEAWME

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

FeBRBEkEMEEmBAX

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR A BRI R

127

129

132

256

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAREEHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GAEHEERERX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MWK

Financial Summary

B E



PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE

3315

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu
Mr. YANG Geng

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman)

Ms. YE Lu
Mr. YANG Geng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman)
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

02 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

i it R
EEB AP HE R AR (B A))

iR 43 1K 3%

3315

HITES

EEERE(EE)
&= FrE
EBREE
BB E
REBEE
B LR R A

BYFHUTES

BEOKBREE
® xRt
% BERE

BEREES

BEXREE(EE)
¥ FExt
% BExE

FHMEEE
3 SN 7]

EFERLE
ERBRIEE



NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu

Mr. YANG Geng

LEGAL ADVISOR

Mayer Brown

16th—19th Floors, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. LI Yijin
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Run Ting
Ms. LI Yijin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

Bank of China Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited Macao Branch

The Agricultural Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

Postal Savings Bank of China

Ping An Bank Company Limited

China Citic Bank

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
% & EB (@)

REEES

EFMELRE(ZE)
® FrE
BoRFHRELE
® Rt
B EXE

A E

F LT ERT
BB

IR

AT BI05%
AKFKE16-191E

B B B

=g e BEMR S SETAITT
By -]

BB

& 58 B 88

KN EG — 358

REWE
FHEL+
RERR

FHERL

FERT

FEET(EB)ERAT
MFERMERITARRAR
RERITRD AR DA
TR IRHRITROBRAF
RERITAR D AR D E)NRR
R ERTT
FEZERRTT

B B K R IR T

F & RIT

RIEERTT

SHERAERRERAT —ET-hrEqFR 03

f =
Lo
°%
S
5 0
Ot

Financial
Highlights

2019

Chairman'’s

Management Discussion

Report of Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance

Environmental,

Social and Governance
; N

Financial

Fos
s
K
ISl

Major Events
2019 KE 2

=

Statement
Sy

D

and Analysis
EEEN®

Management
& EFRERERERE

'H)

Directors

BF

Report
TEER®RE

Statements
i

Bt 7



REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND M ERE  AXREFTHEN

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG FTEEEME
KONG

Room 1301 BB

13th Floor, Bank of East Asia AT

Harbour View Center % T E565R

No. 56 Gloucester Road ROERTT

Wanchai 5

Hong Kong 13E1301E

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND EBERONBFERER
TRANSFER OFFICE RREMEBLZE
Tricor Investor Services Limited BEFELFBRLBRAT
Level 54, Hopewell Centre EEERANBERISIN
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong & R 05418
COMPANY WEBSITE NE M
www.goldpac.com www.goldpac.com
INVESTOR RELATION BREEBRR

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

04 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

% # : goldpac@goldpac.com



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #H & ¥ &

For the year ended
31 December
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2019 MAJOR EVENTS
2019 FRERL

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGIES
B 1 Ba By Bl 37 3% =

- Goldpac Ranks First in China UnionPay
Unannounced Inspection
CHESETERBRTREGEHBE—
! 2
Goldpac was Honored with the 2019
Hong Kong Awards for Industries:
the Award of Smart Productivity
CBELE2019B B T 4E -
BEENRKRK

Goldapc was Awarded the Certification of
Intellectual Property Management System
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Maximize Customers’ Value with Innovative Technologies
Goldpac Honored Again with Four ICMA Elan Awards
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Goldpac and China Mobile (Guangdong) Launched
Comprehensive Strategic Cooperation to Co-build

the First 5G+Fintech Innovation Demonstration Base

in the Greater Bay Area
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E5G+% & £ & F3 8l T 1 88 &£

Goldapc was Honored with “2019 Golden Hong Kong
Stocks ‘Most Valuable TMT Stocks Company’” at the Fourth
“Golden Hong Kong Stocks” Annual Awards Ceremony
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KBE20192 BB R ETMTIR A A |

Goldpac Won the Bidding for China T-union Project
Speeding the Traffic Integration
EHAEANERER A -—RBEBERREADIRE —
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“Zhuhai Fintech Center” Has been Selected into the
National Key Construction Program Library
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Chairman & Executive Director: LUN Run Ting

EFRTEFRHTEF BRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Directors” and “Board” respectively) of
Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), |
am delighted to present the Annual Report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

In the changing market environment in 2019, we are pleased to see
that the Group continued to maintain a steady business momentum.
The innovation growth driver continued to increase, and platform
and service segment maintained a high speed of development. At
the same time, the Group had further clarified the development
strategies so as to set sail for the future.

In 2019, summing up the lessons brought by the disorderly and
chaotic development of China‘s Internet financial industry over the
past few years, the People’s Bank of China and the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission further strengthened the
compliance regulation over the banking industry to promote the
standardized development of smart secure payment industry. The
Group faced a changing market segment characteristic, the demand
for fashionable, high value added and innovative products was
continuing to grow, and the customer’s relying on the platform and
service segment was further enhanced.

In 2019, attributing to the Chinese government’s promotion of the
implementation of the “Internet+” initiative to further hasten reforms
in government service, the digital transformation of financial services
sectors and the increasing demand for customized consumer services,
the different product lines of the platform and service segment,
inclusive of card issuance system solution, the Artificial Intelligence
(A.l.) self-service kiosks, logistics service, data processing service
and so on, have achieved notable growth, and become a important
growth driver for the Group.

Technology-driven innovation and development is the foundation of
the Group’s success over the past 27 years. Becoming the world’s
leading supplier of fintech products and services is the Group’s firm
mission. Looking ahead, the Group will focus on:

1. CONSOLIDATING THE CORE
COMPETITIVENESS OF SMART SECURE
PAYMENT PRODUCTS

The Group will continue the research on the characteristics
and preferences of different consumer groups in depth. By
combining fashionable elements such as cultural creativity and
Internet, promote more customized and fashionable high value
added and innovative products, with the objective of leading
the market trend.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Eﬁ*ﬁ IIE.

12

ACCELERATING THE DEVELOPMENT

OF ECOLOGICAL FINTECH

SERVICES THROUGH THE DIGITAL
TRANSFORMATION OF SMART OUTLETS

Based on the advantages of customer resources and the
digital transformation needs of financial services, the Group
has developed and promoted the multi-functional A.l. self-
service kiosks and related services to enable customers to
enjoy enhanced value service. In the future, the Group will
continue to expand the size of its customer base, while further
improve product standardization management and risk control
to better meet the potential growth of market demand, so as
to promote the sustainable development of the A.l. self-service
kiosks.

BUILDING THE BANK-ORIENTED CREDIT
CARD ECOLOGICAL SERVICE PLATFORM

The Group's Internet platform business relies on the core
competitive advantage of the Group, takes the Internet as
the means of development, focus on the needs of customer
business development needs, integrates industry resources,
connects financial institutions, terminal users, merchants,
payment product providers and other commercial closed-
loop participants, to realize the maximum value contribution
through the form of the platform.

FURTHER EXPANDING OVERSEAS
BUSINESS WITH FINTECH

The Group is further expanding the scale of its market activities
in overseas regions and is continuously promoting products
and services such as customized products, data processing
and A.l. self-service kiosks. Overseas business will gradually
enhance its revenue contribution to the Group.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Philosophically, the only constant thing in the world is change.
The Group has been in a changing environment for the past
27 years, successfully withstanding the Asian financial storm,
SARS, 2008 financial tsunami and other severe tests, therefore
creating today’s core differentiated competitive advantage. At
present, the economic, technological and market conditions
we face are still changing, even including other social factors,
such as the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19"). These
are the uncertainties facing the Group’s development.

In the face of these changes, the best response is to change!
We will always be guided by technological innovation. Through
our continuous efforts and technological breakthrough, to
innovate financial industry service model, create greater value
for bank customers, and tap more and broader development
potential. In the face of these changes, the management of the
Group has the ability, experience and confidence to overcome
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Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to K& BUHBHARAEERE &
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members FeK8 - *I@J’-‘l% 2EETM S
of the Board, management teams, the staffs and business EERHENE - gy
partners of the Group. -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In 2019, the Group continued to maintain a steady business
momentum and its major performance indicators including revenue
and net profit remained stable. The innovative growth driver
continued to be strengthened, and the platform and service segment
has been growing rapidly. At the same time, the Group has further
clarified the development strategies so as to set sail for the future.

STEADY PERFORMANCE

In 2019, the Group’s revenue was approximately RMB1,416.0 million,
flat from last year. The gross profit increased by approximately 2.2%
year-on-year to approximately RMB399.0 million. Attributing to the
continuous optimization of the business structure, the gross margin
increased by 0.6 percentage points to approximately 28.2%. The net
profit was approximately RMB176.0 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 1.0%. Basic earnings per share was
approximately RMB21.4 cents, basically flat to last year.

The Group has recorded steady and healthy financial performance
with adequate flexibility and sufficient cash flow. As at 31 December
2019, the Group’s current assets totaled approximately RMB1,922.8
million, which provides strong support for the Group to advance its
innovative business and explore new growth drivers.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB9.1 cents) per ordinary share
(HK10.0 cents in 2018) and a special dividend of HK6.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.5 cents) per ordinary share
(HK6.0 cents in 2018) for the year ended 31 December 2019. If
this proposal is approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the accumulated amount
of dividend declared for the year of 2019 would be approximately
HK20.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB18.3 cents) per
ordinary share, and the dividend payout ratio for the year of 2019
would be approximately 85.5%. The total amount of dividend
declared since IPO in 2013 would be approximately HKD890.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB760.0 million).
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ADVANCE INNOVATIVE PRODUCTS
AND STRENGTHEN DIFFERENTIATED
ADVANTAGES

In 2019, summing up the lessons brought by the disorderly and
chaotic development of China’s Internet financial industry over the
past few years, the People’s Bank of China and the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission further strengthened the
compliance regulation over the banking industry to guard against
systematic financial risks. The issuance of guidance documents at
the national level, such as “the Guidelines on Risk Management of
Bank Card Issuing Business"”, has effectively refined and improved
the protection of the legitimate rights and interests of consumers,
further improved the regulatory system and promoted the healthy
development of the smart secure payment industry.

With the reinforcement of compliance regulations, the characteristics
of the segment market for the embedded software and secure
payment products had been changed. Financial institutions such as
banks, being on the main demand side of this market, enforced
more precise management processes. Due to the influence of two
factors, namely, the bank’s business strategy and the preference of
end consumers, the demands for fashionable, high value added and
innovative products are continuing to grow.

The Group has actively adjusted and quickly responded to this
remarkable change and promoted a high value added and innovative
product strategy so as to meet the bank’s demand for differentiated
products and the consumers’ preference for personalized products.
The unique differentiated advantage has been built up.

In 2019, the Group’s embedded software and secure payment
products segment recorded revenue of approximately RMB980.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 11.7% year-on-
year. As high value added and innovative products are at the stage
of market growth, its growth is insufficient to offset the decline in
demand for traditional products in the year of 2019. Nevertheless,
the Group has established a distinct competitive advantage in the
high value added and innovative products.
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In 2019, the Group's platform and service segment maintained a
high speed of development. Its revenue increased approximately
44.9% year-on-year to approximately RMB436.0 million, accounting
for approximately 30.8% of the Group’s total revenue, increasing
from approximately 21.3% as in the year of 2018. The segment’s
gross margin also remained at a high level of approximately 37.8%.
As the important growth driver for the Group, the different
product lines of the platform and service segment, inclusive of
card issuance system solution, the A.l. self-service kiosks, logistics
service, data processing service and so on, have achieved notable
growth, attributing to the Chinese government’s promotion of the
implementation of the “Internet+" initiative to further hasten reforms
in government service, the digital transformation of financial services
sectors and the increasing demand for customized consumer services.
The Group will invest more resources to support the organic growth
and external expansion of this segment.

Benefiting from the development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, businesses in Hong Kong and Macao were
expanding greatly and overseas businesses were growing rapidly.
In 2019, the overseas revenue was approximately RMB99.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 21.3%.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue implementing firmly its corporate level
strategies, which are consolidating core business advantages,
accelerating the development of diversified payments and expanding
overseas markets. With the mission of being a leading provider
of fintech products and services, the Group is guided by “FinTech
Development Plan (2019-2021)" issued by the People’s Bank of
China and has also formulated a practical business level strategy
to achieve the goal of leading market value, leading business size,
leading customer base and satisfying employees.
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Consolidating the Core Competitiveness of
Smart Secure Payment Products

The Group will continue the research on the characteristics
and preferences of different consumer groups in depth. By
combining fashionable elements such as cultural creativity and
Internet, the Group will increase research and development
("R&D") investment in new materials, new technology, new
design, and eco-friendly materials so as to promote more
customized and fashionable high value added and innovative
products. The objective of those measures is to lead the market
trend, make smart secure payment products more attractive
to the end consumers and optimize the one-stop value-added
services for financial institutions, and to enhance the value
contribution of innovation products to the Group.

Accelerating the Development of Ecological
Fintech Services through the Digital
Transformation of Smart Outlets

In order to promote the digital transformation of banking,
social security and other industries, save labor costs, and
improve service efficiency, the use of the A.l. self-service kiosks
in place of manual labor has become a promising development
trend. All relevant Chinese authorities are vigorously promoting
the application of the A.l. self-service kiosks. In July 2019, the
Ministry of Social Security officially issued a notice, explicitly
requiring local social security institutions to set up at least
2 fast card issuing outlets in each county or district, further
encouraging self-service card issuing kiosks where possible.
Many banks have also begun the digital transformation of
smart outlets.

Based on the advantages of customer resources and the
digital transformation needs of financial services, the Group
has developed and promoted the multi-functional A.l. self-
service kiosks and related services to enable customers to enjoy
enhanced value service. Those efforts have started to be paid
off in 2019. In the future, the Group will continue to expand
the size of its customer base, while further improve product
standardization management and risk control to better meet
the potential growth of market demand, so as to promote the
sustainable development of the A.l. self-service kiosks.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Building the Bank-oriented Credit Card
Ecological Service Platform

The Group’s Internet platform business focused on the
banks’ need to expand credit card business. The platform
integrates the industry resources to deliver mass customized
credit card solution. The platform will build a bank-oriented
credit card ecological service platform which integrated the
industry application, rights, design, material and technology
and special customization of credit cards. Capitalizing on the
core competitive advantage of the Group, the platform is to
take the Internet as vehicle for development and fully tap the
innovative business growth opportunities.

Building a Deep Link with the Internet of
Things Industry through Data Processing
Advantages

Security data processing is the core advantage of the Group.
The Group has the world’s largest bank card data processing
service center, and has accumulated abundant successful
experience in this area. Leveraging the advantages in this field,
the Group will actively participate in the key deployment of
the Internet of Things (loT) industry as promoted under the
National 13th Five-Year Plan, explore and expand the data
processing services of the loT module, promote the exploration
and R&D of the Group in the loT security information collection
and control system and the operation and management of
the loT equipment, and participate in the next trillion RMB
industrial construction. The Group has reached cooperation
agreements with a number of companies in related fields
to play an active role jointly in the R&D and application of
software and hardware in the IoT solutions, cloud platforms
and other loT-related industries.
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Further Expanding Overseas Business with
Financial Technology

Based on mature financial technology products and services,
the Group is further expanding the scale of its market activities
in overseas regions and is continuously promoting products
and services such as customized products, data processing
and A.l. self-service kiosks. At the same time, the Group has
started the certification of more overseas market applications,
and will enhance the local sales channel capacity through the
gradual establishment of local sales teams, to better promote
the sales in overseas areas. Overseas business will gradually
enhance their revenue contribution to the Group.

The Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area is one
of the most open and dynamic regions in China and has
an important strategic position in China’s development. In
2019, the "“Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area" was officially issued,
further clarifying and enhancing the supporting and leading
role of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
in national economic development and opening-up. This plan
covers a number of initiatives to promote the development of
the financial sector, including the joint efforts of Guangdong,
Hong Kong and Macao, to build an international financial
hub, vigorously develop the characteristic financial sector, and
promote orderly financial market connectivity.

Located in the heart of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, the “Zhuhai Fintech Center”, which is
now under construction, is the leading support bridge of
the Group to connect the world by leveraging the Greater
Bay Area and constantly leverages its advantages in the field
of Fintech. In 2019, the Group launched a comprehensive
strategic partnership with China Mobile to create the first 5G+
innovation demonstration base for fintech applications in the
Greater Bay Area, aiming at developing and exploring more
cutting-edge technologies in the context of the convergence
of the financial and loT industries.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

More and more overseas international talents, projects, funds
and technology are now entering into China through the
window of the Greater Bay Area. “Zhuhai Fintech Center”
will bring together global professionals in the loT, intelligent
security payment, data encryption, integrated circuits and other
industries, and will jointly make forward-looking technological
exploration and technological innovation in areas such as block
chain, artificial intelligence, big data, biometrics and other
areas.

Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") that ravaged China and other
parts of the world in early 2020 has brought and is likely to
continue to bring uncertainty to China’s national economic
growth and the global economy. Despite the challenge ahead,
the Group remains confident in the market potential and will
be committed to explore more development opportunities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The outbreak of COVID-19 in China and other countries in early
2020 has brought uncertainty to China’s national economic growth
as well as the business of the Group. The Group had resumed its
operations since February 2020 and the Directors anticipate that the
COVID-19 will have no material impact at the date these financial
statements are authorised for issue.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, 18 May 2020, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 May 2020. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 13 May
2020 to Monday, 18 May 2020, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.
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In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2020. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 8 June 2020 to Wednesday,
10 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the
proposed dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Monday, 18 May 2020, the dividends will be paid on
Tuesday, 30 June 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 10 June 2020.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately RMB975.0 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at 31 December
2019, the Company utilized approximately RMB819.1 million for
the purposes of production capacity expansion, innovative product
and service research and development, investment in associates
and acquisition, market expansion outside of China, working capital
supplementation and other general corporate purposes. The balances
of the net proceeds were deposited in banking account. The
Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant to
the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 22 November 2013.
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An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2019 is

set out below:

R2019F 12 A31H X R RABEEME R
EFEBAEAERGBZOMOT

Utilized Unutilized
amount amount
as at as at
% of net Net 31 December 31 December
proceeds proceeds 2019 2019
420194 20194
55 12A318 12A31H
Exaal E54¢ CEBEReE XFERA:HE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT
R&D of new products and services i 2 3T E & & R % 35% 341,113 341,113 —
Expansion to production facilities, R EEZE ALK
upgrades and other improvements R #ERFE A E R
to existing card production and HEBEREFE
data processing facilities 35% 341,113 250,950 90,163
Financing future strategic alliances {3 R R B B # 2 &) # 17
with complementary companies REBBEMEE S 10% 97,461 32,120 65,341
Further strengthening presence E—SMBEPEARS
in existing markets outside the ME(HEDEIRE
People’s Republic of China mSHEEETH
(the "PRC") 10% 97,461 97,461 —
Working capital and other general #HHRZEE S Rk
corporate purposes He—MRARIAE 10% 97,461 97,461 —
Total & 100% 974,609 819,105 155,504

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking account.
The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds pursuant
to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the prospectus

of the Company dated 22 November 2013.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Based on the Group’s steady cash inflow from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the daily operations and
working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.
By taking a conservative financial management attitude, the Group
continued to maintain the healthy financial position.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,437.1 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,351.5 million), of which approximately RMB770.1 million
(2018: approximately RMB951.4 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 53.6%, and approximately RMB667.0
million (2018: approximately RMB400.1 million) was denominated in
USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 46.4%.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") amounted to RMB180.1 million,
which was the structured deposits represented by principal-
guaranteed financial products issued by banks, among which
approximately RMB60.0 million was in China Construction Bank
Corporation, approximately RMB60.0 million was in Ping An Bank
Company Limited, and approximately RMB60.0 million was in the
Agricultural Bank of China Limited.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no bank loans (2018: Nil).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's trade receivables was
approximately RMB328.3 million (2018: approximately RMB413.8
million). It is the industry practice that settlement of trade receivables
peaks around the end of year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,922.8 million (2018: approximately
RMB1,996.2 million), representing a decrease of approximately 3.7%
compared to that of the previous year.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 3.2 (2018: approximately 3.2), representing a high
liquidity.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total liabilities divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 23.9% (2018: approximately
24.7%).

24 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

In terms of currency exposure, the Group’s sales were mainly
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD while the operating expenses
and purchases were mainly denominated in RMB with certain
portions in USD and HKD. The Group manages its foreign currency
risk by closely monitoring the fluctuation of foreign currency rates.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB94.3 million. (2018:
approximately RMB43.1 million). The capital expenditure includes
expenses in fixed assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB24.8 million (2018: approximately
RMB18.0 million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of approximately RMB156.0
million (2018: approximately RMB165.6 million) were pledged to
secure the bills payables.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s purchasing
volume from Gemalto N.V. (“Gemalto”) amounted to approximately
RMB2.3 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 97.5%. The decrease in purchasing volume is
attributable to the Group’s high commitment to self-driven R&D by
launching proprietary embedded chip operating system to diversify
its chip supplies. As such transaction was and will continue to be
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business and on
normal commercial terms, and each of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) for such transaction calculated in
accordance with Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules was and is expected
to continue to be below 0.1% on an annual basis, such transaction
falls within the de minimis threshold as stipulated under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules and is fully exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group plans to utilize its own funds and bank loan of
approximately RMB241.2 million for the purpose of construction of
“Zhuhai Fintech Center” during 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

In September 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with remaining four shareholders of Sichuan Zhongruan
Technology Limited (“SCZR") (Note) and one third party to
dispose of 19.68% interest in SCZR held by the Group for a total
consideration of RMB32,920,000. Save as disclosed above, the Group
had no material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
shares of the Company.

Note: SCZR is a joint venture of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary Goldpac
Limited, which holds 19.68% of the total shares of SCZR. Meanwhile, the
Group had appointed two out of the seven directors of SCZR under its article
of association, so the Group is able to exercise significant influence over SCZR.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of environmental
and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) management
team had managed, monitored, recommended and reported on
environmental and social aspects. An ESG report is prepared
with reference to Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
(Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide) and will be
published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. The Group encourages
its employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to
participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers and provides
high quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
continued and sustainable development.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 1,711 employees (as at
31 December 2018: 1,735), with an decrease of 24 employees as
compared to that as at 31 December 2018.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important
assets. In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally, a
salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart from basic
remuneration, for employees in Mainland China, the Group makes
contributions towards employee mandatory social security, pensions,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and medical and
unemployment insurance in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations of Mainland China. The Group also provides full
coverage of housing provident fund contributions as required by
local regulations in Mainland China. For overseas employees, the
Group also make contributions towards relevant insurance scheme
as required by the local regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EERSAEERE @)

DIRECTORS )

Corporate
Information
gy

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executive BTEEHNZEZHEK  BREABHTE
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The ' =ZZBUFHTEE - UTEKEAE
following table sets forth certain information relating to the EHEWN:

Financial

Highlight

Directors:
Name Age Position in the Group 2
% o # EEH B 2 28
Executive Directors -
HITEE C 24
LU Run Ting 65 Chairman & Executive Director EEw
EEHE ITERBITES SEH
HOU Ping 59 Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
B’ T WOTEERERENTE -
LU Runyi 62 Executive Director & Senior Vice President 3 ﬁg
L1 HITESRSRE B Szs
LU Xiaozhong 51 Executive Director & Senior Vice President Eom
R HITEEREREEE 2"
WU Sigiang 47 Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer =z
2B % WTEERERELE 5 m
LING Wai Lim (Note 1) 33 Executive Director §§i{‘ﬁ
& B AR (M EE1) WMITESE 26
LEn
Independent Non-executive Directors §§m
BYFHTES
MAK Wing Sum Alvin 67 Independent Non-executive Director 5l
%K & BUFNTES g fa
YE Lu 57 Independent Non-executive Director a‘c”ﬁm
® % BYIERTES
YANG Geng (Note 2) 44 Independent Non-executive Director %
B & E) BUENITES -
« °8u
Note: M5 BT
S
1. Mr. LING Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to executive 1. BB EB2019F3ASARHAERTES 5
Director with effect from 15 March 2019. HEBRTES -
2. Mr. Yang Geng was appointed as independent non-executive Director with 2. 15 & %4 R2019F5 A28 £ BB L IENTT
effect from 22 May 2019. =

[
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Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (ERBZ£) ("Chairman Lu”), aged 65, is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and the
founder of the Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10
December 2004 and was designated as an executive Director with
effect from 15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible
for the overall strategic planning and overseeing the general
management of the Group. He has over 25 years of experience
in financial card industry and was honored as the finalist award
of CNBC Asia Business Leaders Award in October 2015. Chairman
LU has been the Chairman of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries, Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and
Goldpac Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai)
Limited”) since 2011 and also has been a director of Goldpac Fintech
Private Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Fintech Singapore
Private Limited”), the Company’s subsidiary, from 2016 to July
2018, and has been the director of Goldpac Investment Limited,
the Company’s subsidiary, since 2016, and has been the director of
Goldpac Innovation Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, since 2018.
He was the managing Director and a Director of the Group from
2004 to 2011 and also served as the vice Chairman and president
of both Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac
Limited from 2000 to 2011 and 1995 to 2011 respectively.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman LU had
interest in Goldpac International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the
Company’s controlling shareholder, and has acted as its director
since 1993. Chairman LU also served as various management
positions at the subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China prior to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently
also serves as the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director
of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Chairman LU is currently holding 100% interest of GIHL. Chairman
LU is the elder brother of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director
of the Company, and is the father of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an
executive Director of the Company.

30 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

HITES

EEEXE(EXE] 65 AAAE
FRWNITESE TEASEAIB A #
FR2004F12A10BBZFRES 1
203FNABEFRERAITESE T E8
ERSEMNEBHBRAENEELREEN
HEEE MRS RITEHAE B IA25
FEWHEE - 20159107 45 5 CNBC 22 )M £t
MR EEMAELE - EX/FE2011FRIE
FERRF  ARFI 2B RA & BEHE
BERAGMEHBEERAGB(RAIKET
EHERBRERQAADNER - UKkE
2016%F £2018F 7R i #E E A R Al 2 it
B2 "] Goldpac Fintech Private Limited (& &
[Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private Limited )
EE - B2016FRESEAARRZHBA
Al EREERARES  ITEH2018F 8
¥& £ a) 2 BB A 5 Goldpac Innovation
Limited £ % * 7 2004Z 2011F HAM T K
EEEHEEERESE  H2000F £2011
F LA RI99SF E201MF - D RIFRA S B
EHEBEBRARMe N EERAGMNE
BB -

R1995F AR B RS Z Bl » B X F 51993
FERBEARAZEREREBEBAR(E
E)ERRAARATHEE & BEER]) %
BYEFEEE - F19B3FREIEHER
BRZAE - EXRFERPETERTETH
BAREEZEEERM - BATE X FE I
BEESHBE=BEENER - EEXFN2004%F
NAESERRIRENIHERELS
fi- EXFRBAEIFRBETEMEE
BT RBENESE -

EXFEAMFAS BEFEBREMNI00%E s -
VU RATEFTEBIRLENRL  RATT
EFERREENRIH -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HOU Ping ({& ), aged 59, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group in
2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August 2011,
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of experience
in the banking industry, including over 20 years of experience in the
card industry. He has been a Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company since 2011. He has also served as a director of
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited,
since 2011. He has also served as directors of four subsidiaries of the
Company, a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since 2016,
and a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggqin),
SecureTech Holdings Limited and Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong
Limited, since 2018.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre from
2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of China
group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International) Limited
since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC Credit
Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to 2004. Mr.
HOU served as an independent non-executive director of the Huijin
Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 300561) from November 2016 to January
2019. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003. Saved
as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi (E818), aged 62, is an executive Director and
a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has approximately 25
years of experience in the security payment industry. He has been
a senior vice president of the Group since 2004 and has also been
a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and
Goldpac Limited since 2011. He currently also serves as a director
of GIHL, and has also served as a director of Goldpac Technology
Service Limited (Hengqin) since 2018. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company, and is the uncle
of Mr. LING Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (E/)N&), aged 51, is an executive Director
and a senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group
in 1995. He was first appointed as a Director on 21 May 2013,
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from 15
November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the management
of the corporate business, quality and security department of the
Group. Mr. LU has approximately 25 years of experience in the
security payment industry. He has been the senior vice president,
general manager of the corporate business management department
and chief officer of the information security of Goldpac Limited
since 2012. Since 2011 to 2014, he acted as the director of Goldpac
Limited and Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited. He also
served various management positions at Goldpac Limited from
1995 to 2012. Mr. LU had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU has been an external expert consultant of China UnionPay
since 2010. He served as a member of the Economic Crime
Consultancy expert team of the Zhuhai Police Bureau. Through
these appointments, he has accumulated relevant experience
in compliance, quality control and confidential information
management and intellectual property right of customers. Mr. LU
graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University. (/&3 38 K£2)
with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Polymer Materials in July
1990 and received a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.

Mr. WU Sigiang (5% & 3), aged 47, is an executive Director and
the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall operation
of the Group. Mr. WU was designated as an executive Director
with effect from 18 May 2017, he has approximately 20 years of
experience in the security payment industry. Mr. WU was a manager
of the production division, vice general manager of the operation
division, general manger of the production management division
of Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011 successively and has been
the chief operating officer of Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU
also served as a manager of the procurement division of Goldpac
Limited since 2004, and has also served as a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. WU had not
been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University (/&
B ZPT) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology (&
B T % K2) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July 1993.

Mr. LING Wai Lim (E & B) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim (&
B&) and Mr. LING Wai Lim (% E 5®)), aged 33, joined the Company
as non-executive Director on 18 May 2017. He was designated as
an executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019, and has
served as a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin)
since 2018. Mr. LING has over 10 years of experience in biomedical
research and research project management. Mr. LING served as a
project analyst, a project manager and the senior scientific advisor,
respectively, of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited
(@ company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 8158), from June 2015 to December 2018.
Mr. LING served as a research assistant of The University of Hong
Kong, Department of Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from
December 2010 to May 2012. Mr. LING had not been a director of
any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Mr. LING received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from
The University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from The University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of Hong
Kong in 2015.

Mr. LING is the son of Mr. LU Run Ting, who is the Chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and a controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company. He is also the
nephew of Mr. LU Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior
vice president of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z X&) (also known as Mr. MAK
Wing Sum), aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director. He
joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. MAK is currently an independent non-executive director of
Hong Kong Television Network Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 590),
Lai Fung Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 1125) and Crystal International Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2232). He was
also an independent non-executive Director of I.T Limited (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 999) from 31 March 2012
to 2 December 2019. At the same time, as a member of Hong Kong
Housing Society, Mr. Mak has been selected as the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, and also a member of the Supervisory Board,
Remuneration Committee and Special Committee on Investment.
Mr. MAK, after working in Citibank for over 26 years, went into
his retirement in April 2012. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various
senior positions, managing the regional global asset management
business and financial control for North Asia, he last served as the
Head of Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants since
November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed herein,
Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed companies in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. YE Lu (#3), aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood Mallesons
in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood Mallesons. Ms.
YE is a member of the Council of the Singapore Court of International
Arbitration, and an arbitrator of American Arbitration Association,
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
and Hong Kong International Arbitration Center and Singapore
International Arbitration Centerand and she was a member of the
Council of the London Court of International Arbitration. Prior to
2004, Ms. YE was a consultant and worked for an international law
firm for 9 years, and was a lawyer and a partner in two other Beijing
law firms for 6 years.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of Peking
University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws from the
Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in June 1986,
and also received the Master of Laws from the Harvard Law School
in June 1994. Ms. YE was admitted as lawyer in the PRC and New
York State in 1988 and 1999 respectively. Ms. YE had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. YANG Geng (B E %), aged 44, is an independent non-
executive Director. He joined the Group on 22 May 2019, when he
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Mr. YANG has over 10 years of experience in securities investment.
Mr. YANG has been working in Valuable Capital Group as Portfolio
Manager since May 2019. From January 2018 to April 2019, Mr.
YANG has been worked as the First Vice President (Investment) in
Mason Administrative Services Limited, responsible for constructing
the investment portfolios in stock market of Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Mr. YANG acted as an investment director in Orchid Public
Investment Management Company Limited from April 2014 to June
2017. Mr. YANG worked respectively at Huaxi Securities Co., Ltd
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
002926 Shenzhen) and BOCI Research Limited from May 2008 to
January 2014.

Mr. YANG received Bachelor of Trade and Economics from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in 1997 and received Master of
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EEE

Name Gender Age Position

mE 14 5l Fie B %

LI Yijin Female 49 Chief Audit Executive & Company Secretary
F 5 z FitRRAFRWE

LI Jun Male 58 Chief Technology Officer

F = = BERME

LI Yingjie Male 37 Chief Financial Officer

) e = BEMBE

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53), aged 49, is the chief audit executive of the
Company and company secretary, and joined the Group in 2001, she
has approximately 25 years of experience in the accounting, auditing
and financial reporting matters. Ms. LI was the financial controller
of the Company from 2004 to 2012, and has been appointed as
director of SCZR since 2011, and was the chief financial officer of
the Company from 2012 to April 2019, and has been designated as
the chief audit executive of the Company since May 2019.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in
November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified Public
Accountants) Australia since October 2004 and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had
not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LI Jun (ZE), aged 58, is the chief technology officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2013. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the technical solutions department and
R&D department of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 20 years
of experience in the technology related industry. He has been the
chief technology officer of the Company since January 2013. He has
also been the chief technology officer of both Goldpac Limited and
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited since January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI joined Giesecke & Devrient GmbH
as engineer in 1997 and from 1999 to 2012 served as the Director
for security equipment in Giesecke & Devrient (China) Information
Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. LI graduated from the Beijing University of
Posts and Telecommunications with a degree in radio communication
and received a master degree in engineering from Universitat-
Gesamthochschule Paderborn in Germany and a master certificate
in project management from the George Washington University
through its program in Beijing in July 1983, June 1997 and May
2005 respectively. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LI Yingjie (FIFE#E), aged 37, is the chief financial officer of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2014. He is primarily responsible
for the management of the accounting and finance departments
of the Group. Mr. LI has approximately 15 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. He was the director of internal audit of
the Company from September 2014 to April 2019, and has served
as the chief financial officer of the Company since May 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI worked as the manager of internal
audit in Galaxy Entertainment Group (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 0027.HK) from 2010 to 2014, and acted as
senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2005 to 2010. He
graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and received a bachelor of
arts in 2005. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. LI had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z5#), aged 49, is the company secretary of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Senior Management” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. HOU Ping resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Huijin Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd with effect from
21 January 2019.

2. Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin resigned as an independent
non-executive director of LT Limited with effect from 2
December 2019.

3. Ms. YE Lu became a member of the Singapore Court of
International Arbitration with effect from 4 June 2019.

Save as disclosed in the interim report 2019 of the Company and
the disclosure above, during the period under review and up to
the date of this report, there is no other change in information of
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 October 2004, the Company
was publicly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 4 December 2013. Primarily operated through its subsidiaries
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group is specialised in
delivering embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for global customers and leveraging
innovative Fintech to provide date processing, system platforms
and other total solutions for customers in a wide business range
including finance, government, healthcare, transportation and retails.
The Group is the exclusive secure payment products supplier in
the PRC, which is certified by all six of the world-leading credit
card organisations of China UnionPay, VISA, MasterCard, American
Express, JCB and Diners Club.

As a global leading secure payment total solution supplier, the Group
is actively involved in drafting and formulating of industrial standards
and criterion. To drive the innovation by customers’ diversified
demands and evolving front-line technologies, the Group watches
the cutting-edge technologies trends with the closest interests,
covering internet banking, mobile payment, IoT, to reinforce the
Group's leading industrial position and boost the whole industry’s
evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and affluent
practical experiences, the Group was actively involved in numerous
significant industrial events and projects, including China’s secure
and reliable financial IC card chip promotion project, the first
EMV (Europay, MasterCard and VISA) projects in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the first provincial social security card project, the
first financial social security card project, the first citizen card project
and the first healthcare card project in Mainland China. Adhering
to the spirit of “Virtue, Innovative, Efficiency and Cooperation”
and leveraging its leading technologies, preeminent qualities and
premium service, the Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider
and in-depth Fintech application. At the same time, inspired by
the Chinese government’s “Belt and Road” initiative, the Group is
now continuously expanding its international market and extending
its superior solutions and services to a wider geographical area
and delivering convenient, secure and easy payment experiences to
people around the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2019 are set out

in the Note 5 to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 189 to
page 195 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income on pages 123 and 124 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2018: HK10.0 cents) and a special
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2018: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 has been proposed
by the Board of Directors.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2019, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 14 to page 27 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Monday, 18 May 2020, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12 May 2020. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 13 May
2020 to Monday, 18 May 2020, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 5 June 2020. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 8 June 2020 to Wednesday,
10 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the
proposed dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Monday, 18 May 2020, the dividends will be paid on
Tuesday, 30 June 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 10 June 2020.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry

As the Group relies on financial institutions, government
agencies (such as social security, public health and
transportation agencies) and other organisations that issue
financial cards as its customers or potential customers,
the financial performance of the Group depends on the
future growth of the consumer financial services industry
and trends in that industry towards greater outsourcing of
certain functions such as the production of financial payment
products and data processing. The consumer financial services
industry is characterised by rapid launches of new products
and services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
translate to shorter life cycles for new products and services.
Organisations that issue financial cards or other relevant
products, such as the Group's customers, may face difficulty
in anticipating changes in consumer tastes, preferences and
requirements and designing financial products to meet such
changes, which could lead to a lower demand for financial
payment products and in turn decrease these organisations’
demand for the products and services, which may adversely
affect the financial results of the Group.
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(ii)

(iii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As a supplier to financial institutions and
government agencies, the Group is subject
to rigorous industry standards and/or
government regulations

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards and criteria relating to the facilities and products
of payment solutions providers, which the Group must satisfy
in order to be eligible to supply products and services to
these customers. For example, as required by the Group’s
financial institution customers, the Group has obtained
certifications from all six of the leading worldwide payment
card organisations (VISA, MasterCard, American Express,
China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club) with respect to the
Group’s card manufacturing and personalisation services. To
maintain such certifications, the Group is subject to rigorous
periodic audits by these payment card organisations to review
the Group’s compliance with their standards and criteria.
The Group makes significant investments in order to meet
these standards and criteria, which vary depending on the
organisation or body, including investments required to satisfy
changes adopted from time to time by these organisations
and bodies in their respective standards and criteria. Further
investments to meet these standards and criteria may be
costly, and if the Group is unable to continue to meet these
standards and criteria, the Group may become ineligible to
provide products and services that have constituted in the past
an important part of the Group's revenue and profitability.

The Group faces significant competition in
each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will not
produce the same or similar products or products of a better
quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services at the
same or lower prices than the prices at which the Group’s
products and services are provided.
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(iv)

42

The Group's competitors may also react more quickly to new or
emerging technologies or changes in customer preferences. In
addition, the Group may face greater than expected downward
pricing pressure as a result of possible price competition
by competitors seeking to stimulate demand in order to
maintain or increase market share. Such competition could
adversely affect the Group’s results of operations and business
prospects. Any adverse changes in the Group’'s competitive
environment could cause a reduction in the sales quantity,
its market share, or the sales price of its products, which
would lower the Group's profitability. As a supplier to the
major financial institutions in China, the Group’s performance
and profitability may be adversely affected if its customers,
when faced with operational difficulties and decreasing profit
margins, seek to demand more favourable trading terms from
the Group in relation to price and credit period. The Group’s
performance and profitability will also be adversely affected if
any of its customers faces cost control or cash flow problems
due to such operational difficulties.

Fluctuations in consumer spending

and financial services in the PRC may
significantly affect the Group’s business and
financial performance

During the past few years, the Group derived most of the
Group's revenue from operations in the PRC. The Group's
sales and growth are dependent on consumer spending
and consumer banking, which in turn depend on continued
improvement of macroeconomic conditions, in Asia generally
but in the PRC in particular. There are many factors affecting
the level of consumer spending and consumer banking,
including but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty,
taxation, stock market performance, unemployment levels
and general consumer confidence. In addition, the Group
believes that the Group’s historical growth rates were largely
dependent on the general growth of the PRC economy. The
Group can provide no assurance that the PRC economy will
continue to grow at historical rates, or that it will not grow
at all, and any slowdowns or declines in the PRC economy or
consumer spending or consumer banking may adversely affect
the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(v) Adverse changes in China’s economic,

political and social conditions as well

as laws and government policies, may
adversely affect the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects

The economic, political and social conditions in China
differ from those in more developed countries in many
respects, including structure, government involvement, level
of development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange,
capital reinvestment, allocation of resources, rate of inflation
and trade balance position. Before the adoption of its reform
and opening up policies in 1978, the PRC was primarily a
planned economy. In recent years, the PRC government has
been reforming the PRC economic system and government
structure. For example, the PRC government has implemented
economic reform and measures emphasising the utilisation of
market forces in the development of the PRC economy in the
past three decades. These reforms have resulted in significant
progress in economic growth and social prospects. Economic
reform measures, however, may be adjusted, modified or
applied inconsistently from industry to industry or across
different regions of the country. The Group cannot predict
whether the resulting changes will have any adverse effect
on the Group’s current or future business, financial condition
or results of operations. Despite these economic reforms and
measures, the PRC government continues to play a significant
role in regulating industrial development, allocation of natural
and other resources, production, pricing and management
of currency, and there can be no assurance that the PRC
government will continue to pursue a policy of economic
reform or that the direction of reform will continue to be
market friendly.
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The Group’s ability to successfully expand its business
operations in the PRC depends on a number of factors,
including macro-economic and other market conditions, and
credit availability from lending institutions. Stricter credit or
lending policies in the PRC may affect the Group’s customers’
consumer credit or consumer banking business, and may also
affect the Group’s ability to obtain external financing, which
may reduce its ability to implement its expansion strategies.
The Group cannot assure that the PRC government will not
implement any additional measures to tighten credit or lending
standards, or that, if any such measure is implemented, it will
not adversely affect the Group’s future results of operations
or profitability. Demand for the Group’s goods and services
and its business, financial condition and results of operations
may be adversely affected by the following factors:

o political instability or changes in social conditions of the
PRC;

o changes in laws, regulations, and administrative
directives or the interpretation thereof;

o measures which may be introduced to control inflation
or deflation; and

o changes in the rate or method of taxation.

These factors are affected by a number of variables which are
beyond the Group’s control.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(vi) The Group’s business may be adversely

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group face competition from new payment technologies,
which could reduce the demand for financial cards as a
payment method. If there are any new payment technologies
which will reduce the demand for financial card products or
other new products the Group may introduce from time to
time, including new products arising from the Group’s research
and development activities, the Group may experience material
and adverse effects on its business, financial condition and
results of operations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career
path and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills. The Group provides pre-employment and
on-the-job training and development opportunities to its
staff members. The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, R&D capacity, innovative technologies, sales
and production, customer services, quality control, workplace
ethics and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.
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Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the
Group provides employee mandatory social security funds,
pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance,
medical and employment insurance, and full coverage of
housing provident fund contributions in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland China. For
overseas employees, the Group also makes contributions
towards relevant insurance schemes required by the local
regulations. Meanwhile the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, Share Option Scheme and Share Award
Scheme to recognize and motivate the contribution of the
employees and attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, no shares have been granted
or agreed to be granted to any selected participants (2018:
Nil) of the Share Award Scheme.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. The
Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them to satisfy
certain assessment criteria including track record, experience,
financial strength, reputation, products qualities and quality
control effectiveness. The Group also requires its suppliers to
comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy.

Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its diversified
clients’ portfolio consisting of the governmental organizations,
world-leading financial institutions, transportations projects
and multinational companies. The Group maximizes client value
by offering professional and effective operation model and
innovative and differentiated products and services, to intensify
the interaction and viscosity between clients and the Group
and enhances the client experience.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year 2019, the Group
have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland
China and Hong Kong.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2019 are set out on pages 127 and 128
of this Annual Report and in Note 47 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 255 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In February 2017, the Group acquired the 50-year land use right of
a land parcel with new industry related use with RMB26,669,442
in Zhuhai. The total area is approximately 20,999.56 square meters
situated in the west of Goldpac Tech Park, where the operation of
the Group is located, for the future development of the Group.

In October 2018, with the support of Zhuhai municipal government,
the Group started the construction of “Zhuhai Fintech Center” on
this land parcel, with a total construction area of approximately
56,000 square meters, which was capped in December 2019 and
is expected to be put into use by middle of 2021 as the Group's
R&D center office and as an office building for absorbing upstream
and downstream Fintech enterprises, and no more than 15% of the
area of the center will be used as commercial rental. Through its
own funds and bank loans, the Group expects the total investment
for the center will be approximately RMB320.0 million among which
RMB65.3 million has already be invested in 2019. The Group will
leveraging its own industry resources accumulated over the years in
the field of Fintech to bring together global professionals in the IoT,
intelligent security payment, data encryption, integrated circuits and
other industries, and will jointly make forward-looking technological
exploration and technological innovation in areas such as block
chain, A.l., big data, biometrics and other areas.
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In 2016, the Group acquired the property located in 13th Floor, Bank
of East Asia Harbour View Centre No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for HKD178 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB159.0 million) with a total area of 7857 feet. More than half of
this property is used as the headquarters office of the Group, and
the remainder is currently leased for office use by an independent
third-party enterprise for 3 years.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2019 are set out in Note 13 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 207 and 208 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no bank loans (2018: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2019 are set out in Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 226 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB154.0 million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB53.2
million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 256 of this Annual
Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO share option scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognising the
contribution of certain employees and directors made or may
have made to the growth of the Group and/or the listing of
the Group on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has expired on 3 December
2019, following which, 27,738,000 shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
scheme lapsed accordingly, representing approximately 3.33%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
Annual Report.

All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
granted on 19 November 2013. Options granted must be
taken up on 19 November 2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by
the grantee. The exercise price of each Pre-IPO share option
of the Company is HKD2.71 per share.
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The Pre-IPO share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme of the Company may be exercised by each

grantee in the following manner:

Vesting Period
BES

Exercise period

TEH

ZA/NCIN= AN GES=TE- e s I
BT 0 EIRAR RS BREN AR
AR AR BR LA TR 75 3077 (68 P A 4

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

ATEBRENRAEDS L

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2014

2013F1MA19R8 &
2014412 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2015

2013FF1MA19B &
2015512 A3R

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2016

2013FF1MA19B &
2016412 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2017

2013FF1MA19B &
2017412 A3H

From 19 November 2013
to 3 December 2018
201311 A19H £20184F

12 A3H

From 4 December 2014
to 3 December 2019

20141248 &
20194F12 A3H

From 4 December 2015
to 3 December 2019

20155F12H4R &
2019412 A3A

From 4 December 2016
to 3 December 2019

20165F 12 H4R &
2019412 A3A

From 4 December 2017
to 3 December 2019

2017512 A48 &
2019412 A3A

From 4 December 2018
to 3 December 2019
2018F 12 H4H E20194F

12 A3H
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s Pre-IPO TREERAANFEEREEMFAN .
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme held by BRAAABERBRKRESTSE TR S
Directors and employees and movements in such holding for R EREE2019F12A831HIEZ §§<j
the year ended 31 December 2019: FRE2EH: N
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2019 B Z£2019F12A31A1L2+=@A
As at As at n
1 January 31 December g%b
2019 2019 Ne¥
Name 7A20194 Exercised Lapsed 7A20194 =R
B 1818 217 [EE 3 12H31H S
Directors 2 Bk
== -
7 =
Mr. LU Run Ting 2,960,000 — (2,960,000) 0 Gzl
5o
Mr. HOU Ping 1,200,000 — (1,200,000) 0 2"
& RAE =
Mr. LU Runyi 1,600,000 — (1,600,000) 0 ég%
E R EE 25=
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 1,000,000 — (1,000,000) 0 ?m
BB _
5 ol
Mr. WU Sigiang 1,000,000 — (1,000,000) 0 fie
REBWEE galf
Senior management 2
EREERE 5
In aggregate 8,300,000 — (8,300,000) 0 LE %;
aH T
g
8

Other employees
Htfg S

In aggregate 11,678,000 — (11,678,000) 0
A4

SN

Total 27,738,000 — (27,738,000) 0
L
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The fair values of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 were calculated at RMB69,935,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD88,954,000) using the
Binomial Option Pricing pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Share price HKD4.52
Exercise price HKD2.71
Expected life 6 years
Expected volatility 46.9963%
Expected dividend yield 1.0822%
Risk-free interest rate 1.2426%

Fair value per option HKD2.4250 to HKD2.4791

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the selected comparable companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

No share-based payment expense was recognised (2018:

RMB2,497,000) for the year ended 31 December 2019 in
relation to share options granted by the Company.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), approved by the shareholder’s resolution
passed on 15 November 2013 (the "Adoption Date”), are
substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange;

(i) the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of offer to grant; and

(iii)  The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company at their discretion and will not be lower
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the ordinary
shares on the Stock Exchange at the offer date, which
must be a trading day; (b) the average closing price of
the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and
(c) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 7 September 2016, 20,000,000 share options were
granted and all share options were forfeited during the year
ended 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2018 and
2019, no options were granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have
been granted, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000,
representing approximately 9.6% of the Company’s number of
issued shares as at the date of the Company’s 2019 Annual
Report.

Subject to early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years from the adoption
date.
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(c) Share Award Scheme

54

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to (i) align the interests of any employee, adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member
of the Group whom the directors in its sole discretion
considers may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (i) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
(the “Trustee”) to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants. The
Trustee purchases the Company’s shares being awarded from
the open market with funds provided by the Company by way
of contributions.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2019, 2,224,000
ordinary shares have been acquired at an aggregate cost of
approximately RMB3,526,000 but no shares have been granted
or agreed to be granted to any selected participants (2018: Nil)
of the Share Award Scheme. The shares awarded shall vest in
3 years on each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal
portions. The first vesting date is 26 November 2017. The
estimated fair value of the awards granted are approximately
RMB24,239,000 (equivalent to approximately HKD27,564,000)
based on the market price of the relevant shares at the grant
date. There are 4,380,000 (2018: 4,843,000) shares held by
the Trustee and RMB1,752,000 (2018: RMB4,303,000) was
placed to the Trustee as prepayments at the end of reporting
period.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2019 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Xiaozhong

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LING Wai Lim (re-designated from non-executive Director
with effect from 15 March 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

Ms. YE Lu

Mr. YANG Geng (appointed on 22 May 2019)
Mr. LIU John Jianhua (retired on 22 May 2019)

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2019 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou) Limited
Mr. LIU Xuhui
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Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Mr. WU Sigiang

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. LU Xiaowei Winifred

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. LU Xiaowei Winifred

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. FU Kwan Lun Peter
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years, which shall be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the executive Director or the Company. The non-executive
Director has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years. Each of independent non-executive Directors has
signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years. The appointment of each Director is subject to the provisions
of appointment and retirement of directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
LU Xiaozhong, Mr. WU Sigiang and Ms. YE Lu shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. WU Sigiang and Ms.
YE Lu, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. LU Xiaozhong has informed
the Company that he will not offer himself for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting due to his responsibilities to devote more
time to the Group’s “Zhuhai Fintech Center” project which is now
under constructing, and accordingly will retire as Director upon the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. Mr. LU Xiaozhong has
confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and that
there are no matters that need to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders in relation to his retirement.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu and
Mr. YANG Geng, the confirmation of their respective independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
duly reviewed the confirmation of independence of each of these
Directors. The Company considers that the independent non-
executive Directors had been independent from the date of their
appointment to 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")),

EENBEETHRAESNES

which are required to be disclosed in accordance with the Listing

Rules are as follows:

Interests in Shares

R 42 B8 3

R2019%12A31H > &M
EARBREMBE EZE(TELEBE
PIESTIEZFSFRAEGN(BERBERK
Bl D) EXVED) 2 R - RO RES
ZHEmEKE  BEBEETRUBEENT:

(== A

=EmTBAE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company (%)

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held® Fr{hARA T E =
Expns EEME FEEsHAO B4 E 2 (%)
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Interest of Controlled Corporation @@ 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
EEELEERE) XA E S0 355,259,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner @ 1,740,000 Shares (L) 0.21%
Xz A0 1,740,000 % (L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner © 1,500,000 Shares (L) 0.18%
w= FEAE 2@ AQ 1,500,000 % (L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner ® 3,321,000 Shares (L) 0.40%
BRI EE 2@ A@ 3,321,000 (L)
Mr. LU Xiaozhong Beneficial owner ® 396,158 Shares (L) 0.05%
N 2@ A 396,158 % (L)
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner © 725,004 Shares (L) 0.09%
REBREE 2@ AO 725,004 8% (L)
Mr. LING Wai Lim Beneficial owner @ 16,000 Shares (L) 0.00%
BBk E 2@ A0 16,0008% (L)
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company
or the relevant associated corporation.

Mr. LU Run Ting’s interests are consisted of: (i) the interest in the Company
held by GIHL, which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU
is deemed to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the
SFO; and (ij) 740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Options Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015, and his interests in 1,000,000
shares as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests are consisted of: (i) 300,000 shares issued by options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015;
and (ii) 1,200,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award
Scheme.

Mr. LU Runyi’s interests are consisted of: (i) 2,120,000 shares transferred from
GIHL (being a controlling shareholder of the Company and wholly-owned by
Chairman LU) on 20 March 2015; (i) 400,000 shares issued by options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme exercised on 25 August 2015, and (iii)
801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. LU Xiaozhong's interests are consisted of: 501,000 shares awarded on 26
May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme, and because of the expenses caused
by this scheme, 104,842 shares was deducted on 26 November 2019 which
was the final vesting date.

Mr. WU Sigiang’s interests are consisted of: (i) 130,000 shares as beneficial
owner; and (ii) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share
Award Scheme, and because of the expenses caused by this scheme, 205,996
shares was deducted on 26 November 2019 which was the final vesting date.

Mr. LING Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner.

(1)

)

3)

(4)

)

(6)

7)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2019, no Director had declared interests in any entity
which competes, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1)
and (2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is confirmed
that the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above is/was
in force for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors when the
Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance; and has been
in force throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2019,
respectively. Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association,
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every Director
or other officer or auditor may be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by
him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, which
relate to anything done or omitted to be done or alleged to have
been done or omitted to be done by him as an officer or auditor
of the Company and in which judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection with any application
in which relief is granted to him by the court from liability in respect
of any such act or omission.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 35 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 226 to 231 of this
Annual Report.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year 2019.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year 2019 are set out in
Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 198 to
202 of this Annual Report.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to
the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by
the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted two share option schemes (one of these is
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which has lapsed on 3 December
2019) and one share award scheme to motivate and reward its
Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set
out in the paragraph headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note
35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on the pages 226 to
231 of this Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARE CAPITAL

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to the SFO
recorded that, as at 31 December 2019, the following persons and
corporations had interests in the shares or underlying shares in the
Company:

RARCRMMIBRESTE (KPR —IERE
KA SR B R 82 M20195F12 4
3EARBOR—EHBR GBS - LUBE &
HEBHEERAENRER - BAZSTE
MR BN LS — B R AFR
FE226B8 E23NEHRAF B HRERM LIS -

R2019F R - BEEEHNRTAMS -
TERRER
RIEARDT K BE SR BSO8R 2B

sofft - W2019F12 8318 » T AL AAF]
BAEANRNA R DA D 2R

Approximate
shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held® percentage
A EEME FEEFHAO BAFEKRES T
Mr. LU Run Ting Interest of Controlled Corporation @@ 355,259,422 Shares (L) 42.62%
EEELE X DA B R w00 355,259,422 % (L)
Beneficial owner @ 1,740,000 Shares (L) 0.21%
Xz A Q0 1,740,000 % (L)
Ms. ZHANG Jian Family @ 356,999,422 Shares (L) 42.83%
Rt EN 356,999,422 0% (L)
Agende des participations Interest of Controlled Corporation ® 152,931,181 shares (L) 18.35%
de I'Ftat ("APE") REHEEERY 152,931,1810% (L)
NTAsian Discovery Beneficial Owner ® 50,328,000 Shares (L) 6.04%

Master Fund Ham A® 50,328,000% (L)
Notes: Htat -
(1 The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company (1) (LI FEK LB BBA LR R 17 3 2 5% B 16 B

or shares of the relevant Group member.

KRR AR G BT H94F B -

2) The disclosed interest represents: (i) the interest in the Company held by GIHL, — (2) B E#m A ()2 BEEEA AL A

which is wholly-owned by Chairman LU, accordingly, Chairman LU is deemed
to be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO, and
(i) 740,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme exercised on 29 July 2015, and his interests in 1,000,000 shares as

beneficial owner.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

3) Ms. ZHANG Jian, the spouse of Chairman LU, is deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU'’s interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by Gemplus
International S.A. (“GISA”), a company wholly-owned by Gemalto, which is
beneficially owned by Thales. Thales is in turn beneficially owned by APE.
Therefore, APE is deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the Company
by virtue of the SFO.

(5) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by NTAsian
Discovery Master Fund.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for approximately 10.4% (2018: 10.8%) and
approximately 35.6% (2018: approximately 36.3%), respectively, of
the Group's total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 15.6% (2018: approximately
12.5%) and approximately 48.0% (2018: approximately 40.7%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the shares of the Company in issue)
had interests in the any suppliers or customers of the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has been purchasing certain microprocessors composed
of an electronic component embedding a card operating system,
also known as IC chips (the “Gemalto IC Chips”), from Gemalto
(a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company). On 25 February 2016, the Company,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited, Goldpac Limited
(the “Goldpac Entities”) entered into a mutual supply agreement
for a term from 1 January 2016 until 31 December 2018 (the
“Mutual Supply Agreement”) with Gemalto, pursuant to which
(i) the Goldpac Entities shall supply to Gemalto with, among
others, products such as banking card modules, cardbody and
personalisation machines, equipment, spare parts and relevant
consumables (the “Supply of Goldpac Products”); and (ii) Gemalto
shall supply to the Goldpac Entities with Gemalto IC Chips (the
“Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips”).

The Mutual Supply Agreement was not renewed upon its expiration
on 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the actual transaction amount in respect of the Supply of Goldpac
Products and the Purchase of Gemalto IC Chips amounted to RMBO
and approximately RMB2.3 million, respectively. As such transactions
were and will continue to be conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business and on normal commercial terms, and each of
the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for
such transactions calculated in accordance with Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules was and is expected to continue to be below 0.1%
on an annual basis, such transactions fall within the de minimis
threshold as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules and
are fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

64 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

FEREXS

AEBBAANESHER (KRR ETERE -
WImARAGHEALDRBEAETSERA
N EARIEZRFETF THNOMEERE -
BEEROR(EERERFERD - R
2016F2 A25H » AR~ & BEBIEER
NAE - &BEBRAR(ARE[ESHEEE
HMe WML —DAEEHERZ(HEH
Bl 8% 8 8201651 81H £2018
FRANB B - heHEERHAS
WIRHEZER  BRIEETRNIRITRE
W R EAbEE - RE TREH
MARBAEM((SPEEREE]D : BLRG)
RIS BETRBHESHERTEFR
SR EEBEEFSAERBD -

5% M8 B FE 17 3% 720184F12 A31H B B 1%
KFPUEH - B E2019F 128318 1L 2 F
B aMEEREREMNEHERSELA T
ENSEIAARBOTMHOARE23E
BT - ETZHERIERLTBEBERNIE
BREKR ERHOSESREET B
HRXSHMERNE — @ ol (k7T FH
RSN IR R TR AR 14.071K5TE -
TEFTBEBERFBEFE0I%IAT - WZHE
REFTAELEMBAUNEUATENIEMEERN
SERE UTHETE2RRAER ek
RHE - FEEBEZ  RAERBIRERNL
HEER -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that has publicly available to the Company and
to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float permitted under the
Listing Rules since the Listing until the date of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the "Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The outbreak of COVID-19 in China and other countries in early
2020 has brought uncertainty to China’s national economic growth
as well as the business of the Group. The Group had resumed its
operations since February 2020 and the Directors anticipate that the
COVID-19 will have no material impact at the date these financial
statements are authorised for issue.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 18 May
2020.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

BEEEHREm@m

EFRNARERE

BEEmMzBERFHR2H  ERAQAFT
NAERINEEAMZEERM  AQF
HIEHERBE AL E  BRFE LML
FIATNEEARFTREDL

TEERERTH
BRAATLEEA Y HERNAER D
HEAWE R o

HEEE

200F MM AR RS HEE P B L iR
Hipinla  SRETRATEEGEE Y P HEH

REERANEEEBERIETERZ o K
EEBER2020F2AMEERESE £F
TEat RAFBMERERMGZH - X

HABRESHAEEERTEBRERY
@,

% e
BHeWEMR ST CIMITHERM  BXRR
FEZSZT - EARRNABIEF2020F5H18H

BRMNBRAESL BIR2ZBEZH B
EMRDGEMTAARAZBENZHER -

EERE W

EBE
FTERPTEF

F# - 2020%3A23H

SHEERZRERLT —B-REER 65

hXER

Corporate
Information

2019 inancial
Major Events Highlight

2019 KF 3

&S

:

Chairman'’s
Statement
i

and Analysis
BEEBNWEDW

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior
Management
EEREMEER

H

5

B e
£g
o

o2
g8

BE=g

ERRE

DT

Corporate Governance
Report

Financial
aten



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the year 2019.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent as
the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the “Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. LU Xiaozhong (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LING Wai Lim

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr. YANG Geng (Member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28
to 37 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 37 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company’s business development and daily management and
operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of three
years and is subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that all Directors
appointed by the Directors, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director, shall retire at the next following general meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

All Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, environmental and social responsibilities, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the Board
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, each Director has read
books/journals and attended relevant training to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of the
Chairman and members of each board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 02 to 04 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s annual results
and Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2019 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions, arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties, the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. YE Lu and Mr.
YANG Geng.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration of the Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration of the
senior management is listed as below by band:
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HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000 78 #5500,0017T £ 78 #1,000,0007T 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 78 #52,000,0017T £ /& #2,500,0007T 2
Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive HAHEEE BHEDNITEHEEENFMNERE
and Employees are set out in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial %%E(‘KE%&EP%BSEEZO Bira % ®m

Statements on the pages 198 to 202 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration adjustment principle of all employees as a whole,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee met for one time to review and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all employees
as a whole, the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and other
related matters. Currently the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely, Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of Remuneration
Committee), Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin and Mr. LU Run Ting.

FMIEEQ
FMZEES
FZEeNTERERERTAERES

EEFTHABRRA  SRTEFOHFHT
%‘%%ﬁ%i%ﬂ’]%ﬁ@\ﬁkﬁ%& i ARE

EERHEFE ARRKRIBANEFHFT
FMR MR UHEREMESH AL
ﬂfﬁﬁ)\iﬁ? SHEERERTFHMDN
R R

REE2019FNA3MHIEZFE  HiHE
BEEgEAR AR RBRIRFNHIME R
g EEEBRERTHNARRE  BTE
ENFH AR EEMBEEEE  YRES
A})%T BEHoFHEZEeRBE= uw
CHERZL(FMEZESER)
M%E%DEF?z_ﬁEEf’

SHERERRERAT —F-h&EFR 7]

Co rporate

Information

2019
Major Events

Chairman'’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

@
o
c
©
j=s
)
>
]

O
j3

3
S
o
=
o

)

TXER

2019 KF 3

=

]

Statement
E &

and Analysis
BEEBNWEDW

Management
EEREMEER

Directors
BEEgWE




Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination Policy
into consideration, to ensure that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee should consider the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to character and integrity, qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy),
any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board, requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules, any potential contributions the
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity, and willingness and
ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of
the Board and/or Board committees of the Company.

The Nomination Committee evaluates such candidate (include any
person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company) based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable), and recommend to the Board (as
applicable).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the Nomination
Committee should review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set out above,
and make recommendation to shareholders. The Nomination
Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

At the same time, in assessing the board composition, the
Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu
and Mr. YANG Geng.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
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Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
race, language, cultural background, educational background, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and professional experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board.
o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in

accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of directors and
succession planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Mr. LIU lJianhua retired as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 May 2019, and Mr. YANG Geng was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on the same day.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in the year ended 31 December
2019 as required by the Listing Rules.
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TEERBE @

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZEERENLHEFERL &

COMMITTEE MEMBERS éil
OEd
The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board ® R EELRXEAQA]RE E2019912 731 i
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HBHItZHFERBITHESS  ZELCH 5
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the table KAXER K& HELEERN NERAR: £
below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings =
HERH 2R 2
Annual -
Nomination Remuneration Audit General .
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting gE®
EEpgE Exg REZEE® FMHEEE BFRZEEE RRBEFAE® gg*,‘“f
Executive Directors e L
BITES g a®
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 11 101 N/A 11 S3%
EEExE e
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 1”7 N/A N/A 1”7 %gﬂi@
¥ RE 5 &
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A il
ERaLE g m
Mr. LU Xiaozhong 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11 4 5&
Mr. WU Sigiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1" §§ux
REBEEE g 5
Mr. LING Wai Lim 4/4 N/A N/A N/A il
B EREE -
Independent Non-executive Directors f’ggf@i
BYKHTES -
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 il 11 2/2 1”7 g
BEXREE 5
Mr. LIU John Jianhua (Note 1) 3/4 il m”m 172 11 2
ARELE N T b
Ms. YE Lu 3/4 il N/A 2/2 il :
953 G 5
Mr. YANG Geng (Note 2) 1/4 N/A N/A 172 N/A
BREREENF2)

Note 1: Mr. LIU Jianhua retired as an independent non-executive Director on 22 May — Afz7: 22 ZE LA H2019F58228 BT B L I
2019. TEE -

Note 2: Mr. YANG Geng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director — A/7#2: 15 E %A N2019F 58228 Z T 2B IEH
on 22 May 2019, so he just attended one Board meeting and one audit TEE  fIUAER2019FEER—5EFY
committee meeting during the year 2019. Rk —BERZEGERE -

[
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Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 117 to 122 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB1,634,500 and
RMB356,500 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out below:

BT EMMEEEGE - H2019%
MBTIERTEERRE TRARTESY
B E -

EERMBHRRNBE

EERREMNBHREARNQAH Z=2019912
A3BLZFEMBREROBE -

EZWTNEBEMNEBAEESARART
BRERENZINERNERNEHRBERD
EATHBERAE -

AR AR B ZBEM SN RRERBE
BRI N A F |2 B R BEN RS FE17
HEI1228 -

B BT B B &

S FARBIINEZ AN B B E £2019F
12A318 1k 2 FE 0% SR & IEZ H IR
B2z DBl A ARE,634500TFAR
#356,5007T °

TN FARRIIEZEBMEHEER S
HEMITERBAE £2019F 12831 I 26 E
BERELRIEZEREZH SO D0
T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category R ERE B ENEA

RMB

AR

Audit Services = RS 1,634,500
Non-audit Services IEZ B RS

— Interim review — FREf 32 B 356,500

1,991,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control system and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fullfiling its
oversight and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group's risks, with assistant
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:
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Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to effectively
identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business, financial,
operational and compliance risks. The framework enables the Group
to adopt a proactive and systematic approach to identifying and
managing risks across the organisation to evaluate risk severity and
likelihood of occurrence. The framework also sets out the procedures
of risk management and clarifies the roles and responsibilities of
various departments in relation to risk management.
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The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis, the
respective operating units of the Company review and access the
status of potential risks which may impact on their ability to achieve
their business objectives and/or those of the Group, determine and
implement treatment plans where risk mitigations are actionable.
This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
internal controls continue to remain relevant, adequately address
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact the
Group's performance are appropriately identified and managed. The
system and internal controls can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they are
designed to be managed, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
40 to 45 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works to
improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace with
the changing business environment.

Internal Control

Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group's risk management and internal control system. Internal
Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated and
ractified effectively.

Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group’s compliance, financial, procurement and operations. On
a regular basis, Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit
Committee the results of their activities during the preceding period
pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
and follows up the progress of ractification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently in
an appropriate and transparent manner.

The Company formulated the insider information policy and regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance with
all policies regarding the insider information. The Company shall
prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements.
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The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
Board and the Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the
Group'’s risk management and internal control systems are effectively
implemented.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also accessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put
forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition of
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made the requisition (as the
case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and 568 respectively of the
Companies Ordinance. The general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting must be stated in the request. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening a general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual General
Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia,
Harbour View Center, No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through Annual General Meetings and
other general meetings. At the Annual General Meeting, Directors
(or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2019, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT




The Group (or we) reaffirms the commitment to sustainability with
the publication of the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report 2019 (“Report”). This Report is prepared in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and is based on the Group’s actual
conditions. The purpose of this Report is to present the Group’s
environmental and social performance in 2019 and for better
communication with stakeholders of the Group. The Board of the
Group acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Report and to the best of its knowledge that this Report addresses
all material issues and fairly presents the Group’s ESG performance.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

This Report supplements the remaining parts of the Group’s annual
report and discloses performance and progress on ESG issues from 1
January to 31 December 2019. The scope of this Report covers the
Company and its major subsidiaries. The information stated in this
Report was obtained from the Group’s various reports and records
of daily operations.

Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative long-
term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on improving
the content and information delivery of this Report. If you have any
gueries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No.56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202

Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

AR B (I E G R A
W BM09FENCRE HEkEAR
(TESG) HE)[HF | E]) - NI E T8 T
BEEBARZMETRAKE -+ ECGR
B HERERRERIDOER  URIE
BASEERBEAMAE AHREFER
BARKE019FERNRBEME G T ENR
B REEZNBEBINER - ARE
EZeRARRARECBUENEL
Ak NIEM I BEESGRIT - K& H AT AR
EMAERFHENEARZHE EF2CEBHA

WE e

RS TR AN B 20191 A1H £2019
FNRANENAFHEERERRBEMERBR -
HFRELBADETANL - AR S & E R
ERARRILRETEWERR  TEHERE
REREESHEREXAEIEERLE -

ERRE
AEERAFBERRSRERRTI - R
MEEEREHARENTAEEEES
EHNEERR - R THAREBEMER
Rk BUOBERBERM -

BESTX
SHEERERAERAA

4 BB BT S LITESEH
B On SR 1T E AL
13[E1301%

BEE (852)2838 6202

HE: (852)2834 6759

B - goldpac@goldpac.com



Preventing the occurrence of systematic financial risks is the
fundamental task of financial work. Benefiting from their safety
and stability features, smart secure payment products have been
always playing a crucial role in maintaining stable and healthy
operation of the entire financial market. As a global leader in
offering smart secure payment total solutions, the Group upholds
the vision of “Make Transactions More Secure and Convenient”
to deliver embedded software, secure payment products and A.l.
financial self-service kiosks for customers across the world. By
leveraging innovative financial technologies, the Group provides
data processing, system platforms and other total solutions for a
broad range of customers including finance, government, healthcare,
transportation and retail sectors.

We are the only one supplier in China, which has passed
the qualification certifications issued by six global credit card
organizations. Ensuring product quality and customer data security
are defined as our top priorities. We strive to explore and investigate
suitable corporate operational processes to cohere with the Group’s
sustainability development pattern.

The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with the
development of environment and society, pursuing a sustainable
development. We formulate and implement policies regarding the
environmental and social aspects and update those policies after
diverse internal and external communications and appropriateness
review, to decide whether the ongoing policies are still suitable.
During the year, employees at all levels fully cooperated with the
sustainability management in practice. Led by the corporate business
management department, information collection and reporting
on environmental and social performance are completed through
collaboration among various departments, e.g. human resource
department, administration department, engineering department
and etc..
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In terms of environmental protection, the Group complies with all
related environmental laws, regulations (Appendix 1) and standards.
Starting from the energy saving, emission reduction and waste
management as key aspects, we established a series of internal
procedures and systems to help our employees properly handle the
wastes generated in the production process. As a result, we are able
to enhance productivity and operation efficiency, and bear a greater
responsibility of environment protection.

The Group not only abides by related laws and regulations relating
to employment and safety (Appendix 1), but also pays considerable
attention to employee welfare and safety, and at the same time it
devotes itself to a well-established management and training system,
offering employees a broader development space in a fair, safe,
healthy and harmonious work environment, to strengthen its leader
status in the smart secure payment industry.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation for the
success of our sustainable development, we have made great efforts
to understand opinions suggested by stakeholders, e.g. investors,
customers, suppliers, employees, community, government and etc.
Stakeholders can deliver their comments on our ESG performance
and future policies through different channels.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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We believe that proactive two-way communications with

HAEME - BEF =

stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better i BB %ﬂFﬁ%\JaTﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁéﬁ*
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve the 2R EER - A RAKTE R &
ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and finally ZZME EFE&HHRBTHLE
realize the sustainable development in economies, society and FIIRBHAIFEERE -

environment together.

We identified 25 issues and held a survey among management and
stakeholders through questionnaires. This report is prepared and
the coming sustainable development work is arranged based on the

result of the survey.
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Energy consumption and saving
measures
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Usage of water resources and saving
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Greenhouse gas emissions and reduction
measures
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1. Usage and recycling of materials 6. Air pollutant emissions and reduction
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Wasted water discharge and reduction
measures
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R&D on clean production technologies and
green products
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Compliance with environmental laws and
regulations

BTRIBARERER

Protection of biodiversity
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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environmental responsibilities, optimizing measures of sustainable
development and placing great importance on stimulating business
growth.
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OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest level of business ethics
and integrity connects to what we do and we believe that it is our
competitive advantage.

- HERER

o
v}
c

—= N

RS
cg
L o
I=NU)
c
T
=c
S ®©
c _
[l
‘O
o
v

EE

iR 2

Financial
Statements

Bt 7

SHERAERRERAT =—F-hr&EFR I]



Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence. Guided by such policy, the Group has established a
quality management system supported by a set of policy documents,
e.g. Quality Manual for Payment Products, Quality Manual for
Data Processing Services and subordinate documents. In 2018,
the Group successfully renewed the 1SO9001 Quality Management
System Certificate. With the joint efforts of all departments, our
products and services are subject to strict safety standards and
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has been granted certifications by the six global credit card
organizations.

Regarding product quality, we have established the quality
management department, which is in charge of carrying out
quality check during the production process for raw materials,
goods in progress and finished goods, in accordance with quality
management system and industry requirements. Unqualified
products are immediately adjusted, improved, re-manufactured or
even disposed. In terms of customer service, we offer high quality
services as well. For each customer, the sales staff will design
a tailored sales strategy and a customer service person will be
designated to follow up after-sale issues. The issuance of Customer
Complaint Management Process which defines how to deal with
customer complaints, effectively enhance our internal management
in customers’ perspectives. It thus improves customer satisfaction.
In addition, we build a special team to record, internally coordinate
and summarize customer complaints for future reference. Both our
product quality and services have received a high appraisal from
customers. During the year, we do not find any cases about privacy
leak or significant accidents that may have material effects on the
Group in terms of product quality and services.
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The Group firmly believes that operational excellence is inseparable
from safe and reliable information management. /nformation Security
Management System Manual and its subordinate documents are
published to comprehensively define the security management
framework and information security objectives, planning, etc., and
clarify the specific security requirements of information processing.
The Group successfully renewed 1SO27001 Information Security
Management System Certificate in 2018.

The Group penetrates information security management into every
aspect of daily operations. When signing employment agreement,
employees have to sign the Confidentiality Agreement and
Competition Restriction Agreement. During daily work, no employees
are permitted to disseminate information to unauthorized persons
or outsiders without authorization. Copying of any confidential
information is also strictly prohibited. Information security training
is carried out annually to continuously enhance employees’
security awareness. Random and regular security inspections by
industry supervision authorities, card organizations, customers and
professional institutions reassure the reliability of our service and
ensure a high standard of security management. For independent
intellectual property, the Group has developed /ntellectual
Property Management Manual and other relevant procedures to
standardize the management of existing information assets and
intellectual property rights. At the beginning of this year, the Group
successfully passed the review of national intellectual property
management professional institutions and obtained the Intellectual
Property Management System Certification, indicating that we have
established a scientific, systematic and institutionalized intellectual
property management system which will help us further promote
independent innovation and enhance our core competitiveness.
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The Group always upheld the core values of “Virtue, Innovation,
Efficiency, Cooperation” and actively engaged in technology
exchange and cooperation with the world’s top universities, world-
leading security technology companies and chip manufacturers.
Focusing on prospective research and development on secure
encryption technology, the Group has made progress in its technical
preparations for secure modules in Internet of Things, mobile phone
application white boxes, smart homes, machine interaction and etc..
The Group owns mature techniques in the application of electronic
identification cards. It has become a growth point for the Group by
employing such techniques in smart financial self-service kiosks and
oversea identity documents.

The Group is also committed to the scenario innovation and
intelligent renovation of bank outlets and developed a series of
proven scenario application solutions, such as “Al+ finance” and "Al+
social security”. In May 2019, the Group was invited to attend “the
12th session of China Rural Financial Institutions Informationization
Development and Innovation Forum”. Our latest research trends and
results in fintech were introduced, and our smart self-service kiosks
e.g. Self-service Card-issuing and Card-receipt Kiosk, Desktop Al
Service Terminal and Portable Card-issuing Kiosk were exhibited.

Smart self-service kiosks exhibited in the forum
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Looking back on this year, the Group helped various banks or
organizations to launch one-card solution products, which are
equipped with multiple application scenarios of city life, to achieve
nation-wide connectivity and promote cross-border integration
and interconnection of smart city system. The Group has also
independently developed and added various innovative application
services on several smart self-service social security kiosks, thus we
have the most versatile smart self-service social security kiosks on the
market. The Group successively won the bids for Changshu citizen
card, Maoming social security card and etc..

To proactively embrace financial technology and tightly combine
with epoch-making technologies such as Internet, Big Data, Cloud
Technology and etc., the Group started the construction of Zhuhai
Fintech Center since 2018. The topping out ceremony of Zhuhai
Fintech Center was held in December 2019. Located at the core
area of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the
center aims to create a highland and ecosphere for fintech innovation
in the Greater Bay Area. It will bring together fintech innovation
ideas, enterprises, funds, projects and talents, and make positive
contributions to the cross-border linkage and opening up of the
Greater Bay Area. The Group formally signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with China Mobile (Guangdong) in November 2019
to jointly build the first 5G+ fintech application innovation
demonstration base in the Greater Bay Area. The Group is committed
to promoting the practical application of 5G technologies in fintech
and accelerating the implementation of 5G, which then activates
fintech enterprises and facilitate the high-quality development of
economy and society.

The topping out ceremony of Zhuhai Fintech Center
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Signed strategic cooperation agreement with China Mobile (Guangdong)
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of business
ethics in terms of information disclosure, integrity and accountability.
Our Anti-Fraud Reporting Management System strictly manages
our businesses with all business partners, including our customers,
suppliers, creditors and debtors. We encourage employee reporting
on any suspected behaviors against policies and protect the
whistleblowers against any punishment due to his/her accurate
report. The whistleblower’s identities are strictly kept confidential
unless it is necessary for investigation, malicious reporting or required
by relevant laws and regulations. We treat with and fight against
fraud and bribery in any forms such as cash or gifts seriously.

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group’s audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other department for investigations if it is in line
with the best interests of the Group. Regular evaluations on our
management system ensure the compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations and their effectiveness. During the year, the Group
did not notice any issues relating to bribery, blackmail, fraud, money
laundering or any misconduct which may have a material impact on
the Group.

Partnerships with suppliers are regularly reviewed to ensure that
excellent products and services are provided to our customers.
Initial assessment on new suppliers and regular assessments on
existing suppliers are conducted to evaluate their qualifications,
performance, and environmental and safety management practices.
The formulation of Supplier Evaluation and Control Procedures
ensures that all the Group’s suppliers possess adequate capacity and
are able to maintain suitable quality. After each assessment, we issue
the corresponding evaluation reports and update the list of qualified
suppliers, so as to provide reference for screening suppliers. We will
keep building healthy relationships with supplies, achieving a win-
win result and mutual growth.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to diminish
consumption of materials and energy and optimize waste
management, achieving the “energy saving and emission reduction”
goal; and to reduce negative influence on eco-environment, creating
an eco-friendly enterprise.

In addition to seeking business growth by providing high quality
and high class techniques, products and services to customers, the
Group, as a leading provider of smart secure payment products and
services in China, always concerns environmental management to
mitigate negative influence on eco-environment through operational
excellence. The Group’s major impacts to the environment were
mainly resulted from the energy consumption and emissions caused
by the production processes of smart secure payment products.
Through risk control and measures on minimizing resource usage,
we will continue to monitor the impacts on the human being and
the environment. The Group has strictly abided by all relevant
environmental laws and regulations in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. During 2019, we were not aware of any practices or issues
caused by environmental problems may significantly influencing the
environment or the Group.

Guided by standards under the 1SO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in
order to make best utilization of raw materials and resources
and to reduce pollution, eventually realizing the sustainable
development goal. The Group provides environmental data for
all operational activities, products and services. In addition, the
management designates environmental management representatives
to communicate with stakeholders and understand their opinions,
to confirm environmental management plans and internal approval,
and to report to the CEO to ensure the environmental management
system functions well.
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Stakeholder Programs Internal
communication confirmation approval
kR =iz by 2 FTEIHER MEREHL

To maximize the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates
environmental protection concepts with its business to realize the
vision of environment friendly and a harmonious development mode
between economy and environment.

It is one of the national strategies to build a resource-economic
society when implementing the scientific outlook on development.
The Group actively responds to the call of the government by
complying with environmental laws and regulations and continuously
monitoring the resources consumption.

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in production facilities and office activities, fuels used by
automobiles, and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") consumed by
cooking stoves. Responsibilities of energy management are further
divided among different departments because of their better
understanding on their energy-consuming activities. We make
timely adjustments to the supply and usage of electricity including
lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and production
facilities. We analyze the energy efficiency based on the collected
data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted, necessary
improvements will be carried out. We have enforced a series of
control measures to improve the energy efficiency:

o Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid
waste.

o Each department appoints person in charge to turn off
electrical facilities that should be closed state.

o Production facilities are turned on in accordance with
production needs to avoid long time turned-on status without
usage.

o Public transportation is recommended.

o Use energy efficient stoves in the canteen to increase the

energy efficiency.
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Our production does not involve massive water usage. Our water
consumption is mainly from daily office and life activities. In order
to reduce water consumption, we conduct staff education, spread
information about water saving, and apply water saving tools.
Regular inspections, repairs and maintenance on water equipments
and facilities are also carried out by related departments to avoid
water leakage or waste.

For Zhuhai Fintech Center project, the Group has also adopted
stringent project management control procedures. Environmental
management runs through every stage of the project, reducing
resource waste and mitigating destruction on eco-environment
caused by the construction via a series of environmental protection
measures.

KERERTE  RANEEBEAFAE
RERKNIF TBKERHEARETL
BESRL  LERE - HMBBEIHRE
T EEGHHAKES  LHRMBEAKS
B mAPKERER - BRAMPIINERY
RKBREERRBETRE  #EEERE -
BRREKIORERKNRR °

BRERNKETERBMERFLOER A
SETERATERNAREEESEF -
REEEEFHEAE @RS BE—X
FIRRRIE IR D BRRE - FERT
B E B A R BOR o

Resource type Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity
ERESR B By REEN RE
Electricity kWh 13,754,024 kWh/RMB Million revenue 9,713
BN TR & FTR-B/ARBESEA

LPG KG 25,335 KG/Employee 15
RAE AR NI N/ 8RBT

Water Tonne 95,990 Tonne/RMB Million revenue 68
SN M58 Wi AR EERA

Unleaded petrol Liter 11,945 Liter/RMB Million revenue 8
;i 7t AANREBERA

Diesel oil Liter 1,603 Liter/RMB Million revenue 1
5¢0m 7t AANREBERA

In order to effectively reduce the emission of various pollutants,
on one hand, the Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations; on the other hand, the Group makes specific pollution
preventing procedures to standardize pollutant emission processes
and to control the emission of exhaust air, greenhouse gas, sewage

and noise.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HEREARRE @

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention of
the possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during their
production and office activities. The engineering department takes
the responsibility of regular maintenance on and management
of the equipments. The quality management department works
together with qualified testing organizations to monitor pollution.
They will compare the testing results with standards in relevant
laws and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments involved
have to investigate and solve the problem in accordance with the
Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures, and then
propose improvement measures.

Reporting to

environmental
management
representative

FRFEEERRIRS

During the year, independent testing organization has tested the
quality of noise, sewage and exhaust air procuded in Zhuhai plant,
the Group’s main production and office place. It indicates a qualified
result when comparing with relevant standards.

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") during production processes. Based on the Group's records
on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the amount
of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

AEEEMPAREEL BROREMED
MERBEGIMPAEE - BRBIESA
BEELAHK ZRAMBEFFR - TIZHIR
BRERERETEHEENEEEBOHR
B AKENMEEEREAELNRA
WEERETBE  AFEETSRENT
- BREEREFRERIEIREL
THE  YARBEEERREES - HHR
BIRER - R ERPT S R RCAH E M TR
EEGI R F)ETHE REE - X HE
E—T AP -

Pollution control
measures

VEE S 2l )i

R2019%F - REB X EAE LB QM- KE
TR 68 ) 3R 1R A OB X P 8 2 AR OB M AR HETT
HRE BAKMERESETRRE &R
BTREBRRNT A HBERE -

AEEBERFEBRREIE/SMBME A
ERRMEERRETELNEZERHRY
(Tvocs)) - REBEAREEMRE R ETH A
BR - BANELBRESHAEELNER
SRMEERE - SR

Air pollutants Unit Total
BRETY B g
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.2
i &b ¥ (SOx) NN

Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) KG 20
A& (NOX) NN

Particulate matter (PM) KG 1
FE KLY (PM) NN
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The Group’s production and office activities, such as fuel
combustion, electricity consumption and vehicle fuel usage lead
to both direct and indirect carbon emissions. We encourage low-
carbon office activities, e.g. using clean energy and energy-saving
equipments, saving electricity, reducing paper consumption, taking
public transportations, and etc. The emissions of greenhouse gases
during the reporting period are presented as below:

Scope of greenhouse gas

AEBENKEEERR QRS - MREA
BEBHERE AEMRMERTEERR
M AR BE RSB EHOR R H91T
& Pl BB REEIRMENEER B  £14
AT RO RER FBERIARR
HiT% - RBEMANREEREBHERER
&R AR

(CO,e) emissions Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity
BERB(CELBRESR)

B E B ey REB{ RE
Scope |: direct emission Tonne 113 Tonne/RMB Million revenue 0.1
HE— BEHEN i W ARBEBEERA
Scope II: indirect emission Tonne 7,250 Tonne/RMB Million revenue 5
HWE— FEHER i W ARBEBEERA

In terms of emissions of the particulate matter (“PM"”) and VOCs,
we install an air ventilation and adsorption desorption catalytic
combustion exhaust gas treatment system after taking a full
consideration of their emission quantities, concentration, economic
feasibility and relevant regulations. An adsorption and purification
device is set for exhaust air treatment before it is discharged to
the atmosphere. Specifically, the device has the capacity to filter
tiny PMs and to absorb the VOCs with activated carbon, holding
back pollutants before they are discharged. After the treatment of
exhaust gas system, the pollutants absorbed in the activated carbon
are finally decomposed into non-hazardous gases and water through
desorption catalytic combustion. There is online monitoring over
the operation of this control system, synchronizing with our regular
inspections and component replacement to ensure the efficiency
of the system. For the production techniques, we adopt advanced
production processes in the production of smart secure payment
products, which reduce errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment. The
Zhuhai Fintech Center currently under construction is designed with
wastewater treatment facilities, which can handle wasted water from
kitchens and toilets and industry organic wasted water.
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Waste management is another key focus for the Group’s
environmental management. Under the requirements set out in
relevant laws and regulations, we publish the Waste Disposal Control
Procedures to manage the generation, storage, marking and disposal
of wastes, to pursue wastes deduction in the production of smart
secure payment products and to prevent and lower the negative
impacts on environment.

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment
and submit it to the environmental management representative
for approval. Waste is classified into non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste, while the non-hazardous waste is further
classified as non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes and recyclable
non-hazardous wastes based on its nature. Through collaboration
among departments, specific waste management is designed to
each type of waste according to their classifications. Departments
where the wastes are generated accounts for collection and storage.
The administration department is responsible to contact qualified
waste management contractors for treatment and final disposal
of recyclable non-hazardous wastes and hazardous wastes. For
non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes, they are disposed with the
assistance of the municipal sanitation department contacted by the
administration department.

Non-recycleable waste

AR E YR REZE )

Non-hazardous waste

EEERY

Waste management

BERNEE

Recyclable waste

Al B R REEY)
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BP9 % A0 C B 3 W e 3R AT Il AR Fr ) DA 2R ] B
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2 AHANREHRENEETE -

BMESFREBREYEE 2EBELSEER
MHEEMEERR  REREEEREK
HfE - REBZVEEEET  AEEEE
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A B YEEEREY - BHIFIREEEDN
BE BB D THGE  HER
METASEMENERE - BEEYE LM
BEWETEPHE - THREEINMHEER
BEBELCNERYRIEARE YO
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MRREE HRIAATEKRETERY
TR E IR BB PT IR B 4% T BUR BT BB PTETT AR
L

Departmental
responsibility
BRPTU SR by I R TR

Recycling contractors

Bl E

External treatment

Hazardous waste

BERERY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE HEREARABRE @

During reporting period, the Group’s wastes are mainly recyclable MABREHRN  KREEEZEY T E A0 M
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover production materials, wasted WEZ=FEEY T ERE4LEDEEAS
packaging materials, wasted paper and etc. Hazardous wastes, #} - EENBEYE - ERLABASF - A
mainly from printing process, account for only a small part of total ZEEZEYR(HEEMHREN —/IED @
wastes. Our waste management system allows most of the materials ZRBEREF - HFHEZDEREZH
are recycled so that environmental impacts were significantly EAESD DR BABERFIA 0 BEHEE
reduced. Wastes handed over to external companies during the ¥HIRBENEBETE RIFEHANEEZEYL

c
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reporting period are presented as below: EEY R ol
o
Waste type Unit Total Intensity unit Intensity R L;;
BENESR B By REEN RE =3
Wasted ink Tonne 14 KG/RMB Million revenue 10 éé;ﬂ;
JE& i 2 M43 DT/AREBERA éé‘”j
Developer/fixative Tonne 6 KG/RMB Million revenue 4

solution i DR/ AREBERA 5 .
Hazardous waste BEEER 2o
BEBEEY Wasted rags and Tonne 24 KG/RMB Million revenue 17 S
gloves with ink A DT/ AREBERA é;@
SHBEKM  FE %“ﬁﬁ

Wasted empty barrel Tonne 8 KG/RMB Million revenue 6 s

[ ZE 18 M43 DT/ AREBERA ~
Recyclable Tonne 182 KG/RMB Million revenue 128 EEE
Non-hazardous waste ] [B] 4% WA RF/AREBERA el
BEEEY Non-recyclable Tonne 14 KG/RMB Million revenue 10 ggg
A~ A B M43 DT/ AREBERA 7§§m
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In our production and transportation process, packaging materials
are mainly composed of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags,
tapes and fillers. These materials are necessary to prevent the smart
secure payment products from any damage during the production
and transportation process. Packing materials are strictly forbidden
to be discarded randomly, and are regularly recycled by professional
companies.

Packaging type Unit Total
BERMBER B wmey
Paper box Unit 2,369,517
wE 18
Paper carton box Unit 274,970
i) 18
Tag Piece 7,445,005
2H i
Tape Roll 52,947
B 5
Filler Piece 704,250
1% i

We are committed to the innovation and development of green
products, realizing green production and use of smart secure
payment products. During the year, we continuously invested in
eco-friendly cards with better decomposable materials which can
reduce environmental impacts during the product life cycle. We also
integrate the concept of environmental protection into the product
design to convey its importance to our customers.
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Intensity unit Intensity
REB{ RE
Unit/RMB Million revenue 1,673
B/ AREEBERA
Unit/RMB Million revenue 194
B/ AREEBERA
Piece/RMB Million revenue 5,258
®AANRBEBABERA
Roll/RMB Million revenue 37
B/ AREBEBEERA
Piece/RMB Million revenue 497
®AARBEBABERA
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Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavor for mutual
prosperity.

The Group issues Human Resource Management Procedure and
Staff Manual to stipulate in detail the recruitment requirements and
procedures. Under the principle of being open, fair and just and
merit-based selection, we treat every candidate equally regardless of
their race, ethnicity, color, religion, gender, age, region, marital status
or disability. However, child labor is strictly prohibited. Candidates
need to pass rigorous written tests and interviews in order to obtain
the offer. Besides specific professional skills and working capabilities,
candidates should be honest, possess a correct working attitude and
a high professional dedication and comply with laws, regulations
and ethics. Similarly, procedures for termination or cancellation of
employment also follow the requirements and procedures stated in
the above documents. In line with the value of “People-oriented”,
the Group treasures every staff, pays attention to staff mind and
takes action to retain talents as early as possible.

The Group’s employment policies comply with all relevant labor
laws and regulations at each operation location. During the year,
the Group observed no violations of any applicable labor laws and
regulations including child labor and forced labor issues.

Achievements of the Group are attributable to the hard-working
of all employees. Therefore, we consider humanistic care being
important by creating an enjoyable working environment and
providing sound payment and harmonious working atmosphere.
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Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results. To motivate employees at every
level to fully realize their potentials, in addition to basic salaries, we
also offer bonus, allowance and option plan. Employees are entitled
to paid leaves, including but not limited to annual leave, overtime
leave, marital leave and maternity leave, as stated in applicable laws
of their working places. Working hours also complies with local
laws and regulation, as well as the industry norms. Forced labor is
prevented within the Group, while legal and reasonable subsidies
will be provided to voluntary overtime and special positions.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances and
paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The Group
arranges health examinations for all staff every year, usually in the
second half of the year. During the year, it has been completed in
the third and fourth quarter. The group companies convey policies
about settling down in local household to employees and support
them on such issue. Furthermore, the Group distributes festival gifts,
pays attention to physical and mental health of female employees,
and provides activity funding to each department for team building
and strengthening sense of belongings.

6S skills competition
6SHEBE I &

Basketball game
ENE
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The Group regards employees as an important asset and emphasizes
on their performance and development. We encourage and motivate
skills and knowledge improvement so as to offer better products
and services to our customers. Training Management Procedures
clarify types of trainings and how to participate. Comprehensive
internal and external trainings are provided. Internal trainings
include compulsory orientation, job skill training, fire safety training,
improvement training, information security awareness training and
etc.; while external trainings include meetings, courses offered
by various institutions and organizations. Training allowances are
provided accordingly. During the year, we successfully organized
several training activities such as security awareness training,
recruitment training, and tender document writing training camp.
Trainees are evaluated at the end of the training to ensure the
effectiveness.

Recruitment training

1% 3

According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness, so
as to set further improvement plans and better goals in the future.
Performance appraisals are carried out every month, quarter and
year and its contents should be specific and quantified. The results
serve as a vital reference in deciding salary, promotion and training
opportunities, as well as a platform to strengthen communications
between department and employee. In addition, benefiting from
a complete promotion procedure, the Group’s management team
is able to improve its overall quality and competence. A broader
platform could be provided to qualified employees through
comprehensive assessments under the principles of being open, fair
and just. Meanwhile, the Group becomes energetic with positive
competitions which also lays a good foundation of greater progresses
in the future.

AEE+DTEETHIIEER  BHRE
FHE B MBKE kXL - RABWET
MBEE CHAEFPRERHEEENEMM
RIS -CBIERIEF)ARTEIHIIE
BoRaETEIZETAERES - B
REBTRFEZEOA ISP IFIN o AER
BIBELAS MO ABEZI - & aE
gl EBZ2EI - ERESE - E
BRE2EHBIF - BB EEEHE
ERRBEBNIZIRE ~EESRE
SUIR AR R B o 7020194 - IR &
WTREEHEZI - BB R
RERBIREZZIES - EHRIER
% XIBEIF2EFZ  AEREZIN
BRI -

Tender document writing training camp
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The Group is committed to investing continuously in occupational
health and safety. The Group has obtained OHSAS18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management System Certificate
since 2012, and successfully renewed the certificate last year. The
Group issues Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual as a general policy, together with other
subordinated documents as procedures. Our policy related to
occupational health and safety complies with all applicable laws,
regulations and standards, aiming to manage risks and mitigate the
operational impacts on employees and create a safe and harmonious
environment.

We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety to establish a safe workplace. The
Group has appointed the management representatives to implement
the management of occupational health and safety. Employee
representatives are also elected to act as a communication bridge
with management to reflect employees’ opinions about matters
related to occupational health and safety. In addition, there
are regular internal monitors by the quality management team
to ensure the effectiveness and compliance of the health and
safety management system, operational controls and emergency
preparation control procedures. To promote occupational health and
safety education, the Group strictly implements employee safety
training.

The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in charity and donation
activities to strengthen our relationship with the local community.
As the pilot project and an important part of T..O CITY planning,
Zhuhai Fintech Center will play its pioneering role in building a
model of fintech cluster in the Greater Bay Area, realizing the
innovative concept of industry development, aggregating enterprises,
funds, projects and talents, and promoting an industrial upgrading
within the region. In addition, the Group also supports educational
programs through establishing partnerships with domestic
universities, offering training programs and venues for educational
purposes.

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education, and etc., fostering the development of the
community and giving back to our society.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

AEBRNBHER A ABEERELSE 5
2012F 8  AEBEEBIYREFKINEDN
OHSASI8001 I (i L 2 BRI ZRF o
Bl AEEBEATCRBNBERELZ S
EEFMIEARBNIEEFHIWHEER T
TERXHEREBEERRF - RN
¥RFEHLPRREERTERBAERE
BEEZE BEErSERERERLEER
K- ZHIWR S EEBREMNEREET
MTE gliE—EZ2 - FEHNIRE -

BMSBET2EBXEREMLZE2EIET
e HAEEZZ2NITIESHN - AKEE
TmERERRAENTEAENBEER
HE2EETF BREINX (FRHE
EEEABNER RBKETHBRER
ZEHBEENER  BRBERERENE
MM BN BEERNDETEBRHRER
MER AERELEEEERR  ETHE
B ESEGEESEFOEREMS BB
Mo REPHRERRLZE2HE  ARER
RBTEIR2HEI -

AEEYHEHE—RKEMES - B
BRETR2ENEZE  BRuBETS
HAEMBEREE  RERMEZHHEE
MBER - (FRIKEM = XM A/ E R E
MSIfIEEMEEZMAKED KETEE
BRPORRIBELEER TEXNERS
BMMERCEEFNRE  BREXRRERN
AFES BEX B2 HEMASTE
BRBEEMEE  HERREXAR -
e SN - A SR B i B R B 9 K BB ST R
BEAEHREERR  LREZIIRE R
B e

BMERMBBENERMER  EXHH
RHORE  SHEEERERBEER B
R BAFRZAHRAIENMER
—FAREHEBHER BEHEOELE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ESG CONTENT INDEX ESGHH R ARG .
S £l
KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks S‘Ei{
78 R & B (KPI) EBBERBMESGHREESIER BB
A. Environmental
A. RIE
Aspect A1 Emissions o
BEAT E3:0) 2 2%
General disclosure Information on: Environmental =
(@) the policies; and Management o
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have Emissions Reduction é é;‘;
a significant impact on the issuer Waste Reduction and E%E
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges Recycling o
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non- Appendix 1 S
hazardous waste. % m%:
— R E EHABERFMORERBENR MRS BER REERE é%@
BEBEEVNELESFH: D BE gfrﬁ
(@ BEE: K 18 38 5L z 5 e
(b) BTHBETABEAZENEBEZEZERROINER o« M8 5 @
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions Reduction g m
PERY & AR B o B ﬁ‘éﬁ%ﬁ
c g &
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where  Emissions Reduction ég%
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, £
per facility).
BERBAENEUMAR)R(MER ZE(WNAEE HMABER 5yl
S8 BERKBIE) - g‘gjﬂ%
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Reduction and N
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, Recycling o
per facility). £ u
FELAEEREWRE CAMGE) R (ER)ZE (A BRI E g5
SEBEMN SHERMEHE) - g2y
g 4
KPl A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Reduction and S
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, Recycling .
per facility). . Efﬁi
FEEAEFEEZEYWEE(AEAE) R(NER) BE (A BRI E £ 2
SEREM - SRR HE) - cof
Efn;z{
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results ~ Emissions Reduction m'§54%
achieved. _
HAUREERENRBERAAERR - D B

Financial

SHERERRERAT =—FT-hEFR 109



KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

B 2 4& IR E (KPI) ERBEXFMESGHREESIER BB
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes  Waste Reduction and
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. Recycling
HOLEEAEELBEZTEEYN AL REELEENEKR BRME
NAERR -
Aspect A2 Use of resources
EmEA2 BERER
General disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water Environmental
and other raw materials. Management
Resources
Consumption
— R R ERFERERBERR  KREMEME) BB - RIEEIR
BIRE M
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Resources
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and Consumption

intensity (e. g per unit of production volume, per facility).
RERESHNEELR AHZELR(WE  RId AR ERER
BEUTRAFTERAEIRBE(MUSGERSEM - AR

MeEt &) e

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity Resources
(e g. per unit of production volume, per facility) Consumption
,,,,, MEKEREE(WUNEGESSEN  BERBHE BRER

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results ~ Resources
achieved Consumption
e IR e B s et 8l PSR R - BIRE R

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Resources
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results Consumption
achieved.
kBB BAR R A EEEE - UEREARKS R BREA
B RPTEARR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Waste Reduction and
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit Recycling
produced.

BEKMFABREMENEE (UBE)R(WMER) B4 BIRAE
EBMRE -
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KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks 9 Sur
B 82 4& W IR E (KPI) EREBERZMESGRERESIER 4 ki &ﬂ
S

Aspect A3 The environment and natural resources
EmEA3 BRERRKRER
General disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuers’ significant impact on the Environmental

environment and natural resources. Management N
—RIKE MEBTAHRERRARERERNEATENEE - RIRERE m@
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Emissions Reduction §%§

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Green Product
manage them.
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Aspect B1 Employment 2‘54@
JE EB1 &1 2o
9 © g
S
General disclosure Information on: Employment Policy 3 '
(@) the policies; and Employee Benefit 5w
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have Appendix 1 sem
a significant impact on the issuer 2 ii-g
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and e
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity and other §§m

benefits and welfare. -
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KPIs
8 52 48 W5 Z (KPI)

Aspect B2
[EEB2

General disclosure

—RIE

KPI' B2.3

Aspect B3
& mB3

General disclosure

—RIE

Aspect B4
[ E B4

General disclosure

— R

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
ERBMAERXEESGHREEIIER

Health and safety
REHEZR

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

FRRHLZE2THEREMREREEECBEERTN:

(@ H=E: R

(o) BFHBITABEAR

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted and how they are implemented and monitored.

W AR BEREEZ2EE A RBEBRITRE

BHA

Development and training

BREREI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRREAEBETIFEBRENMNE R XENBE -

HIEE -

Labor standards
& T XA

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or forced labor.

BRAGIEE Tkl ss T :

@ BE: &

(b) BFHEITABEAX
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Section/Remarks
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Occupational Health
and Safety
Appendix 1
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Occupational Health
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BERERERZD
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Training
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Appendix 1
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KPIs
8 58 4& W IB Z (KPI)

Aspect B5
fE T B5

General disclosure
— B E

KPI B5.2

Aspect B6
[E 1 B6

General disclosure

—RIE

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.5

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
ERBAERXEESGHRERIIER

Supply chain management

HrEEER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERHERENREREEARBE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
A EMERHERNED - mERTABBEN N MHE
BHE URBHEEFNRTRERGE -

Product responsibility
EmEE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

FEMRHEESNRENEERERZ 2

BEEARMKRAED:

(@ HE: N

by BIFHBETABERZENHBEEZEZRROINELR -

EE BERA

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
M EGERENRENBEEGHNED -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored.
MAHEEEHNRERLBRER  URBERNTRESR
T ©

EHEEZZERERDA

Section/Remarks

BE R

Supply Chain
Management

HEHEE R

Supply Chain
Management

HEEE R

Information Security
and Privacy
Appendix 1

EEeREREL
B 851

Product Innovation
2= mm BT
Information Security

and Privacy
EEL 2 KRB
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R ERIEZEKP ERBMAERXEESGHREEIIER -
Aspect B7 Anti-Corruption

[ mB7 k&S

General disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIRE BRADIEEE R HFEREEEN: 3
(@ BE: K&
(b) BTFHETABEAZENHBEEZRROIINER -

)
P

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
MO BEERBEREF  URBERATRERTE RER

Aspect B8 Community Investment
€ mB8 HERE
General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Community investment

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

— MR BN BR2EXEREEMCHEFTENRREEY HtR2H
EHEEBLEMEABE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community investment
HXIERIEE - ftm s
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

APPENDIX 1 LIST OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS WITH SIGNIFICANT IMPACT
ON THE GROUP

The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

General Principles of the Civil Law of PRC

The Criminal Law of the PRC

Contract Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance

Inland Revenue Ordinance

LISTING

Listing Rules
Securities and Futures Ordinance

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security and privacy

Guidelines for the Supervision of Information Technology
Outsourcing Risks in Banking and Financial Institutions

Guidelines for the Administration of Outsourcing Risks in Banking
and Financial Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Intellectual property laws

Card organization

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications, quality control
certifications, security management for product manufacturing and
personalization enterprises

PCI Card Production Physical Security Requirements

PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements

BE HEREARABRE @

MEFIBAEEMAREARE
HEEZERTIR

TREJNETRDEERE HEREAR
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REERINEK -

e

(REARKMEZ L)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE HEREARRE @

Product and service quality EmkBREEE

The Work Safety Law of the PRC (REARKMELZ 2L EE)

The Product Quality Law of the PRC (FEARAMBERLEEER)

Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of Production License (FEARLMB I EERLEEFAIEE
for Industrial Products RSN

Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes (AT E IR

Anti-corruption RES

Law of the PRC against Unfair Competition (RPEARRKMBERTEEHFE)

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ISSUES RIBRE R E N

The Environment Protection Law of the PRC (FEARKEMBIRIZREE)

The Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC (R AR EMBE KT EIEED

The Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental (FEAREMEE L EEY
Pollution by Solid Wastes SERBREBEDIRE)

The Energy Conservation Law of the PRC (REARKMEIEN L8R ZE)

The Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC (REARKEMBE KT ISRAZE)

Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Pollution From (REARAEMBEIRERE SR RZE)
Environmental Noise

National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste (Bl fe b BE ) & 8%)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES ETRHtEZEHESB

The Labor Law of the PRC (REARAEMHLB)E)

The Labor Contract Law of the PRC (REAREMBLHARE)

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances (TERBAEED

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of (REARKEMBEE XK AE)
Occupational Diseases

The Social Insurance Law of the PRC (REARAMBLEREE)

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labor (ERIEFAETHRE)

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of (BB B T TEREMRE)
Workers and Staff

Labor Relations Ordinance CBERBERBGOD

Employment Ordinance CIE 1R 1 Bl
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDPAC GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldpac
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 255, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B M % BEN R E ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

FAREEFITEE

ARBAFTHERBERMANEXRAE - R
REAHEEMBRRNEBARSEEN
FH SULFHEERMAZAEBERAY
BRERLKLABRFETEEDN - HMAT
EHELFTHREHREBHNER -

Estimated allowance for inventories

FERHBE

We identified the estimated allowance for inventories
as a key audit matter due to the management’s
estimations are required in identifying slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and determining the allowance for
inventories.

BB FEREGLTINABREFZTE BRE
BREEHBRNFHEHLREFENRERF & %é‘ﬁf”ﬁwﬁ
it e

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management identifies slow-moving
inventories or obsolete inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sales based on aging
analysis, and estimates the allowance for inventories
based on aging of inventories, current market price
and estimated future market demand. The carrying
amounts of inventories of the Group amounted to
RMB184,676,000 as at 31 December 2019. Based on the
management’s assessment, addition inventory allowance
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounting to
RI\/IBZ 843,000.

WM B RRNFAAKE  EEERBERE DN

BRI HA T BERREERHENRETS - LR
BEEREK ER TS ERMET REMGHRKMG

STEEREE - HE2019F12A31HE SEENES
BREE A A R1184,676,0007T - BIFEIE B T4
REZE2019FNANBIEZFEGFERFEEMARE
2,843,0007T °
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Our procedures in relation to evaluating the

appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories

included:

BMPUEERERFTNRELE2HEEFERE

o Understanding the basis of the allowance for
inventories adopted by the Group and evaluate the
reasonableness of the basis of allowance adopted;

e ERE BERENGTEBREER UFEZBEEE
meaEMn:
o Obtaining an understanding of the controls over

the identification of slow-moving or obsolete
inventories and the assessment of their realisable
value;

. BROFHEHIRETENSR REEATFRE
BEH ATl A9 15 4l

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the management
assessment on the identification of slow-moving
or obsolete inventories and the sufficiency of the
allowance for inventories with reference to the
aging of inventories, subsequent usage or sales
record and current market price;

e FHEREREBEFEREK RECARHFEERL
BANEAMMESERMENENFHEHIRERE
WeEMEUARTFERENT BRI

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
aging analysis of inventories to the relevant
documents including goods receipt notes;

e HERWEEEAMMEEXMHETHERNR - A
BARATERK DT EREIE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B S B ET 3RS |

B8 88 & 5T E = @)

Estimated allowance for inventories (Continued)

FE BB ()

ERER

Corporate
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Financial

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the gék{
appropriateness of estimated allowance for inventories ] 5o
included: (Continued) =8
HMETERBLANREEZTEREFRE  (B) oo
£ £
o For raw materials, considering the subsequent EEM
usage of raw materials and tracing a selection
of subsequent usage of raw materials to the raw 5
material requisition information; and 237
o HREME - ZERRM AR ERBR & St
EHREANEM BN B FEE R 2o
o) © |
o For finished goods, considering the subsequent s

selling prices of finished goods and comparing the
unit costs of finished goods, on sample basis, with
their subsequent selling prices.

e HRNKMm EEKMWHERHEEEB LML

S K an B9 BB A S AR 1K BH BB AR o

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information

HtfE R

BERARESFHYHEHMEREAR - HLER
BRERNENFEREANGES BEFAEHE

Directors and Senior

Report of

included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated 4R A BA # R EK M FR PR SRS - 2
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 5
58
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover ~ F ¥ 4R & B 15 Mk M B R 30708 = H A éij
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance {52 > I N E XS EibE 2B R EM 5

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

HANERER °

BonMERaMBRENTT - RMAN
AERHERMERS  EUHBREF  BE
HMEEREBEGAMBREAIBMESR
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam, Lawrence.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREBERHEMZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

2018
NOTES RMB’000
ik ARET T
Revenue ' ON 5 1,415,665 1,411,127
Cost of sales $H & BX AR (1,017,129) (1,020,996)
Gross profit E F 398,536 390,131
Other income E b U A 6 58,412 88,089
Other gains or losses H bz sk E5 1B 7 2,503 25,672
(Impairment loss) reversal of FEWERORERIE) #ED
on trade receivables (1,581) 208
Impairment loss on amount due FE W & A B SRIE 2 R E
from an associate &5 18 (1,740) (11,460)
Reversal of (impairment loss) ¢ [B] (Rt (B /&5 18) PR Bt &
on interest in an associate NE) = 19 3,464 (27,191)
Research and development costs T 3% i 2K (113,474) (113,854)
Selling and distribution costs $HE K& o fH A (98,798) (106,020)
Administrative expenses 1T R 2 (39,556) (37,489
Interest on lease liabilities HEABERNA (884) —
Share of losses of associates LB & AR EE 19 — (284)
Profit before tax B A0 R E 8 206,882 207,802
Income tax expense FEHER 10 (30,459) (33,154)
Profit for the year FERE 176,423 174,648
Other comprehensive (expense) income & E 42 (FI2) WA
for the year
Item that may be subsequently AIREIE B S E B
reclassified to profit or loss: ZHEE
— exchange differences arising on —REBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations B [E 5 = %8 (3,017) 1,321
Total comprehensive income FEZEHRALRE
for the year 173,406 175,969

EHEEZEZRERDA

—E-hEFHR 123

TRE

Corporate
Information

cial

Fi
Hig

2019

o
c
(]
=
Y
©
v

Chairman'’s

@
a
a
a
€ oy
o ©
©
=

Directors and Senior

Report of
Directors

Governance

Report

Corporate

Financial

)
%)
c
]
£
9]
8
©
&
&a

40
&
b
=




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

GEBREREMEEKRAR®E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

2018
NOTE RMB’000
K i AR T T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: &1 4F E 78 (E518) -
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ =N 177,125 175,187
Non-controlling interests IE 12 R A 2 (702) (539)
176,423 174,648
Total comprehensive income (expense) J& {2 [ W A (5 52)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ SN 174,108 176,508
Non-controlling interests I 2 A% A 2 (702) (539)
173,406 175,969
Earnings per share BRAF 2
— Basic (RMB cents) —EXARED) 21.4 21.2
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(AR%E D) 21.4 21.2
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Goodwill

Intangible assets
Interests in associates
Deferred tax assets
Pledged bank deposits
Fixed bank deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Contract assets
Other receivables and
prepayments

Amount due from an associate

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Pledged bank deposits
Fixed bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities
Other payables
Warranty provision
Lease liabilities
Government grants
Income tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities
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WME  BEREE
=+ 3450 A 4
EREEE
BREMEYE
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N RN X
BT IR A B
2B R 1TIF K
RITEHEFER
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H A F& U5 A0 FE A 3R

& W Bt & B 5K IR
BARBEREZEHTA
HacemEE(AAE
ERESEHFTARRE]
SRR ITIF K
RITEREFR
RITERRAS

RBAE
ENERKRENZEE
BHARE
H A [ 15 3K
BEERE
HE&RE
KA #6 BE
F& 5 PR 15 1%

RBEEZRE

REERRDEME

At 31 December 2019 72019412 531H

NOTES
k=3

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
33
26
26

21
22
23

24
25

20
26
26
26

27
28
29
30
32
31

2019
RMB’000
AR®T R

325,724
43,211
60,313

1,375
4,386
3,464
8,192
156,000
109,779

712,444

184,676
328,337
12,712

45,702

180,084
950,277
220,996

1,922,784

399,346
42,468
107,197
4,775
8,108
1,858
33,784

597,536

1,325,248

2,037,692

EHEEZEZRERDA

2018
RMB’000
AR T T

335,019
26,206

1,375
6,676
9,104
150,000
103,823

632,203

211,952
413,840
13,564

26,584

232,649

15,573
761,045
321,042

=

996,249

437,721
27,176
124,606
4,775

3,000
24,696

621,974

1,374,275

2,006,478
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

4 E B S AR O &R (@|)

At 31 December 2019 72019412 531H

2018
NOTES RMB'000
K it ARET T
Non-current liabilities rERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 9,463 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBAE 33 23,825 26,395
33,288 26,395
Net assets EERE 2,004,404 1,980,083
Capital and reserves BEXRRFE
Share capital 1% 7 34 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves 1 810,210 785,187
Equity attributable to owners of ARG A A E(HEZR
the Company 2,002,572 1,977,549
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 1,832 2,534
Total equity B 2,004,404 1,980,083

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 255 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

BEEE2 O N2020F3823HEB RN AiBE
1238 2558 e SRR MM - WA

NTEFERREE:

Chairman and Executive Director

LU RUN TING
EEE

EFRTERNTEE
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F 128318 It 2 F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAAEEARLRE S5
Shares g2 d
held under

Shares  shares  Share Non- £

Share  award  award  options Translation ~ Other Statutory Retained controlling sE
capital ~ reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve reserves reserves profits Total interests Total e
BH%R N
BHER HE5% b
Bx  BE  RE BRERE EXRE HURE EERE AOEAR o FERER &% R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 =3

ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Mote ) (Note 7} 5w

At 1 January 2018 01851418 1,192,362 491 (17122) 5483 3879 42631 102387 545261 1,929,142 = 1994

Profit ([oss) for the year FEFE(ER) - = = - _ _
Other comprehensive income B Ef2ERA
for the year = = = = 1321 = = = 1321 = 1321

175181 175,187 (539) 174,648

Management Discussion

Total comprehensive income ~~~ FE2EUA(RR)
(expense) for the year 4% - - = = 132 =

175187 176,508 (539) 175969

Recognition of equitysettled  MNEREZMRHTH

Directors and Senior

share-based payments Wi33)

(note 35) - 75719 - 2,497 - - - — 10,076 — 10,076
Forfeiture of share options BRELN = - - (602) - - - 602 - - - )
Capital contribution from non- SRR 2 &R o

controling interests & = = = = = = = = — 3265 365 S %
Deemed disposal of partial SARHBAR ZER = m

interest in a subsiciary BRERE - = = = = = = 192 192 (192) = B}
Transfers £% = = = = = — 14097 (14097) - - - 5
Dividends recognised as ARREMW L) :

distribution (note 71) - - - - - - — (137850 (137850) - (137850) 6
Shares vested under the shares 1 & TR ( 2 B3t S

award scheme RHER - (& 74 - - - L L -

- (41 7154 1,895 - — 14097 (151,206)  (128,101) 3073 (125,008) -

At 31 December 2018 20188128318 1,192,362 4871 (9968) 56,727 5200 42631 116,484 569,242 1977549 2,534 1,980,083
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEARGRE
Shares
held under
Shares  shares  Share Non-
Share  award  award  options Translation ~ Other Statutory Retained controlling
capital  reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserves reserves profits Total interests Total
R &R

RERE FHEE
k& fife R BRERE EXRE HbEE LERE RIEANE A FERER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
MNote ) (Wote i)
Wity (i

Profit (loss) for the year EEAE(ER) = = = = = - - s M (10) 176423
Other comprehensive expense for  FE £ 2 AR %
the year - - - - (301 - - - (301 - (301

Total comprehensive (expense) ~ EE 2 (F3) A
income for the year ag = = = - (301

171125 174108 (102) 173,406

Recognition of equity-settled  LUEREEHRGR

share-based payments Wi %)

(note 35) = 1,935 = = = = = = 1,935 = 1,935
Purchase of shares under shares B E R 17 £ Ejst

award scheme RERR = - (35%) - - - - - (35%) - (35%)
Forfeiture of share options BRELR = = - (5,72]) - - - 5672 - - -
Transfers £R = = = = = - 4 (1443 - - -
Dividends recognised as ARREMH L)

distribution (note /1) = = = = = = —  (147,05)  (147.105) —  (147,05)
Shares vested under the shares R £ B3 2R

award scheme R&E — (6808 54719 - - - - 938 (389) - (389)

= (4.8711) 1953 (56,727) = — 14437 (103,877) (149,085) —  (149,085)

At 31 December 2019 20198124318 1,192,362 = (8,015) = 2183 42,631 130,921 642,490 2,002,572 1,832 2,004,404
Notes: K ez -

(i) Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves (i) E#EER2011ELEBERTE AR

into capital of a subsidiary of the Company, Goldpac Limited in 2011 and RlZHIELA] - 2 HEFRRA] - —EKEH
contribution from a shareholder and share of other reserves of associates. HE R EWGEE R AR ME G ELRAEF -

(i) Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), (i) RIEFENRZHE ([FE]) B EREE &

certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required FRABIK .2 AR A2 M8 E % EREEE
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after B % 3R 2 0 Bk B 18 JF T B #910% 5T FE X E 7
tax based on their statutory financial statements. The statutory reserves may o AT FIEIEFETER DB RIS PIH 1
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated T B FH R 17 5% 5 11 /8B 2 5] R A 5 78 3t & S
losses or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries. EEEK -

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value changes of financial
assets at FVTPL

Investment income from financial
assets at FVTPL

Interest income

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of investment property

Amortisation of intangible assets

Operating lease rentals in respect of
land use rights

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss (reversal of) on trade
receivables

(Reversal of) impairment loss on
interest in an associate

Impairment loss on amount due from
an associate

Allowance for inventories

Equity-settled share-based payments

Interest on lease liabilities

Share of losses of associates

Qerating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease in contract assets

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables

(Increase) decrease in other receivables and
prepayments

Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities

Decrease in trade and bills payables

(Decrease) increase in other payables

Decrease in government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

REES
IR
RTHISIHAE
BRARBEMEZESHFTA
BaEzeMEEAEE

2 3 g 2
&Qﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁm FtAR
BCERMEERERA

B YA

WE - BMERERETE
EREEENE
REUEMEFE

B EEHSH
THEAREEERERS
REWE BERREERE

FE W B RO E &5 1B (JF E)

B &R E 2w 2 REEE
(@)
A NCTE =
BEEE
FEEE
DAl A B D S
HEBEME
FHWMﬂﬂﬁﬁ
LEESCEYANLELEHERE
7 &R A (38 hn)
é%é§ﬁ9
JE W & RO A (38 0)

5 it 1 30 S8 BB )

BHAaEEMNORD)
BN EREENRERD

H Al & A 5% O ) 10
XA # Bh ORk >
W%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁi
ENFAFH
RERBF #

REZE2

2019
RMB’000
ARBTR

206,882

(84)

(7,508)
(30,450)

39,637
9,322
2,194
2,290

1,364
1,581
(3.464)

1,740
2,843
1,935

884

229,166
24,433
852
83,922

(19,158)
15,292
(38,375)
(21,263)
(1,142)

273,727
(23,126)

250,601

EHEEZEZRERDA

01912 A31R IE 2 E

2018
RMB'000
ARBETT

207,802

(2,649)

(9,034)
(28,061)

43,916

2,290
459
94
(208)
27,191
11,460
2,887

10,076

284

266,507
(7,230)
3,086
(13,294)

3,482
(8,299)
(112,982)

6,356
(14,700)

122,926
(33,073)

89,853
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
HERERER@E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

2018
RMB'000
AREET T
Investing activities & & &
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL ~ BERIZ AR EEREZ&H A
BaRzemiEE 410,157 499,034
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits RESBITEHER 1,070,730 1,171,285
Withdrawals of pledged bank deposits B RITE R 15,678 125,263
Increase in amount due from JE Bt 2 2 | SR N
an associate (1,740) (1,219)
Interest received B U F B 30,450 29,111
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant  EE¥% - BBk ZEHEKRA
and equipment = 8
Consideration received from disposal U B R B B & N A B 2 5K IR
of interest in an associate 3,464 —
Placement of fixed bank deposits FRHER1TEHER (1,198,992) (1,080,838)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERALBERAZIGFTA
BavesmEE (350,000) (720,000)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHRERFRITER (12,061) (179,527)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BEKRRKRHE
equipment (94,254) (43,087)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFARES TR (126,568) (199,970)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
GERERERGE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

2018 -
RMB'000 t5w
ARBTE 534
Financing activities B & & E 3
Dividends paid RENE s (147,368) (140,289)
Capital contribution from non- EIERER 2 EREA
controlling interests = 3,265 2
Purchase of shares under shares award B E R Z #E @t 2= A KD o 2
scheme (3,526) — Rl
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEARE (9,600) — =]
Net cash used in financing activities MEESTAREEE (160,494) (137,024) é éw
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3R & NI & Z B R D F 58 (36,461) (247,141) -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1A1BBE & MBS EEY 401,042 644,424 2 =
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& & 8) 1) 5 £ 2,415 3,759 g &
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 RANBBEESERECEEY g
December 366,996 401,042 g i
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash IR& KIR& S EWE % DT %
equivalents E
Bank balances and cash RITERKRE 220,996 321,042 .
Fixed bank deposits which matured 318 AW E) BRI A9 R 17 7E BRAF 3K g
within three months 146,000 80,000 =
366,996 401,042
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate
holding company is Goldpac International (Holding) Limited
("GIHL") (a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lu Run Ting, who is
also the chairman and executive director of the Company. The
Company acts as an investment holding company while the
Group is principally engaged in embedded software and secure
payment products for smart secure payment and provision of
data processing services, system platform, Artificial Intelligence
(A.l.) self-service kiosks and other total solutions for customers
in a wide business range including financial, government,
healthcare, transportation and retails by leveraging innovative
financial technology (“Fintech”).

The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are set out in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Renminbi (“RMB"”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T E L RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial position and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL R )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 17 Leases ("HKAS 17"), and the

related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standards to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed

prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS
16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T E L RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-sue assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

i. relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

i elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial application;

iii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;
and

iv.  applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

2. ¥El K&
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= =]

== e P %

CHENCLIEE:
IR (TEEMB

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The weighted
average leasee’s incremental borrowing rate applied is

5.23% per annum.

2.1 BEEMBEHREERZE16
EHE @

ER A A @)

MAERDBERKEHENHE
HEREEEBER  AKBEER
BARMBEREHAESEE®E
B8 =18 R F K o fE A e hn#E
FHERBABEERFEEE
HF523% o

At 1 January 2019

R®2019%F181H
RMB'000
AREET T
Operating lease commitments disclosed 72018412 A31H # & A9
as at 31 December 2018 T E A 9,088
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant REBAESEENERTRG
incremental borrowing rates HEBRE 8,866
Less: Recognition exemption W R R
— short-term leases — RHAE (41
8,825
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant 20191 A1HZABE S
incremental borrowing rates and BEMNEXFENHEEAR
as at 1 January 2019 8,825
Analysed as pal il
Current portion B AR & o5 5,602
Non-current portion FEBNER & 3,223
8,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F12A31H L 2 FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1
January 2019 comprises the following:
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R2019F 1 A1BEF A#EE E R
EEAENTEE:

Right-of-use assets

FEREEE
Notes RMB'000
b & AREET T
Right-of-use assets relating to HRABBMBHRELERE6
operating leases recognised upon  SRIER B ELEHE 2
application of HKFRS 16 FREEE 8,825
Reclassified from land use rights Tt {E FHEEH H 8 (@) 26,206
Adjustments on rental deposits R2019FE1 1R HHEERESD
at 1 January 2019 {EH 3 & (b) 40
35,071
By class: B RE S
Leasehold land HE L 26,206
Office premises WRNE 6,449
Machinery 1 25 2,416
35,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

138

2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Mainland China were
classified as land use rights as at 31 December 2018. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the land use rights amounting to
RMB26,206,000 were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use of the underlying assets
and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at transition.
Accordingly, RMB40,000 was adjusted to refundable rental
deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)
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2.1 HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) 20 ERAMBHREERE6 -
REHEE@ o 5%
As a lessee (Continued) (=-F-% - DN ) ==
Carrying § ?“;
amounts Carrying 5 Rl
previously amounts -
reported at under HKFRS 5
31 December 16 at 1 Su®
2018 Amendments January 2019 = E«‘Li
R2019% 2tk
1A1ERE B °
M2018%F EBUK s
1283188 HREERE16 -
REE HE FHEREE 5z -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 i é‘f’
ARET T ARET T ARET T gg‘;j
EZ I
Non-current assets ERBEE -
Right-of-use assets CREEE - 35,071 35,071 .
Land use rights + Mt A 4 26,206 (26,206) — £
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H fh & U2 3K g
— rental deposits — HERES 1,675 (40) 1,635 »
8 g%
Current liabilities 7 B £ &<
Lease liabilities HEAE = 5,602 5,602 S h
Non-current liabilities R 8 & & g
Lease liabilities HEBE - 3,223 3,223 Fiw
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities Hat: AIEEHF2019F12H31A #% % élf
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019, LT EREETBE 20 2o
movements in working capital have been computed based on 5 EELEMEHEIRE L éﬁ

i #% B B9 R2019 1. 516 69 5
IR e FEMR LKA ER -

opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019 as disclosed above.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

B 78 4 1B 15 R 4 AV HET I
REBETERMBREER

AEEYERPEAATERMER
RERZFFTREETBEMER

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: S AR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BEEPHREER RREL
EVe
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? AR BREER X2 TEE?
FEIRZAERT
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets BEPHREER REHEAH
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREEE 2o aEE D
Associate or Joint Venture? TAERI 2857 2 Erd =0k
B8] EREE
&3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material* BERGERER [EENIZE
and HKAS 8 REBGFER el
EXLAvd )
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BEEPHREED FIREER
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform? Fok - HEEET F4
AERIFE395 KB
7 B 7% R & 2E R
FIH2I1EE]
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 1 R20219F1A1H 3.2 4 Fi 16 .2 F |2 2 &
£
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the 2 YHERABU2020F1 A1 2 B BE

—EFRER R - HERAREZ
1% 19 K T & 0F 1 B B R A 3

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 RAGET 2 AR 2 14 F 6.2 F /2 B
determined £
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 4 R20204F 14 1H 2t 2 1% [ 35 .2 F /2 B [E]
2
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition
of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to
influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose
in the financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition

of Material (Continued)

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but may
affect the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 (the “New Framework")

and the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

° reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader
than the definition it replaces, but does not change the
distinction between a liability and an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a

measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

142 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 (the “New Framework")
and the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
(Continued)

° states that the primary measure of financial performance
is profit or loss, and that only in exceptional
circumstances other comprehensive income will be used
and only for income or expenses that arise from a change
in the current value of an asset or liability; and

o discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions
of the framework. These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier
application permitted. Other than specific standards which
still refer to the previous versions of the framework, the
Group will rely on the New Framework on its effective date in
determining the accounting policies especially for transactions,
events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under
the accounting standards.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“Companies
Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

A fair-value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU
(or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
associates is described below.
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associates
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods and
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good and service.

A contract asset represents the Group'’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods and services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods and services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (i.e. embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment and data processing
solution) the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transition in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transition in note 2)
(Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transition in note 2)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transition in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.
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Lease liabilities (Continued)

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that in not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group measures the lease liability based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.
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Lease modification (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and leases incentives by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lase component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using the exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grant will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
government-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Shares/share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others

providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

3.
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Shares/share options granted to employees
(Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (shares award reserve/share
options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the shares award reserve/share
options reserve. For shares/share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the shares/share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to withhold an
amount for an employee’s tax obligation associated with a
share-based payment and transfer that amount, normally in
cash, to the tax authority on the employee’s behalf. To fulfil this
obligation, the terms of the share-based payment arrangement
may permit or require the Group to withhold the number of
equity instruments equal to the monetary value of the employee’s
tax obligation from the total number of equity instruments that
otherwise would have been issued to the employee upon exercise
(or vesting) of the share-based payment (i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a “net settlement feature”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Shares/share options granted to employees
(Continued)

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares to fund
the payment to the tax authority in respect of the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment
as repurchase of vested equity instruments, therefore, the
payment made shall be accounted for as a deduction from
equity for the shares withheld, except to the extent that the
payment exceeds the fair value at the net settlement date of
the equity instruments withheld.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it
further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of opening in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or “land use
rights” (before application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

ME BENREE/EERREMHR
EWHRBHARITRENMEE D
BREE(T Xt EE TN
MR - BB LR AR LR R
ATERRFREBERMNE) RS
REATHMRRAEK

EEUELEE HEXTERAERN
TEBEYE BMERIXERKAE
AL R 2 R BEBEIRR - KA
BREMNAKEESBIEHUE
BEEARZNTARRIIEMFENL
EMREMERELENER  kata
BREEMS  REAKRENETK
RENMEMBERAN - ZFEERE
Hip¥% - BEREERRNEE
RZEEEANRAEREAERR
ARHIRITE ©

AEEXNEEEEL W REBTEHD
ZOEREREERR - 2EYHERY
MERREAYALBEZLHIER
EXHMBTHOZHETOR -

HEMRERESRE - HEL
mERESAUBRRARFIRER
REEIRBZBMBRELENE 6
SRS AR IRBEB MK R
EEAF165 2 B1) o WY ETREE
FEEBTHOMENEHEL R
DEESEEA SR - AMEBENE
DREBME  BEREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building (Continued)

When a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, at
the date of transfer the property is reclassified to investment
properties at its carrying amount.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, investment property and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment property and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In additions, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. It such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in unit or
the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to other
assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customer for
sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of
the relevant products, at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payment
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent of HKFRS 9 changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the "“other gains or losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL”) model on financial assets including trade
receivables, other receivables, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
and other items (contract assets) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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EHEEZRERAMGEIRE
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Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued) IRy IEE (%
(i) Significant increase in credit risk () EERKZEZEEIN

EAEERREEBTHEE

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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EHEEZRERAMGEIRE
VBRI #R R E 9 1T R E

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

(i)

FFIGHIIE B (#)

EERRBEZEM(E)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the AEBTHREBRRERFE
criteria used to identify whether there has been a B RREEEINNEENE
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as W WEHSEEETEENE

appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any

(ii)

M AEREREE SR BHA
REHEERBROBEELM

ERER

ERREERRERES
HBFEE’JIJZQI\E?BQ/J?%HXE’HZ
?ﬁiﬂi?}ﬂ/\ﬂ‘fﬁ"%&(T%)‘E
$’§IHEZ}KT%D)1§ EH
?E$%IEWE’J1,\%/\ZE7I%

collaterals held by the Group). B AEBRRRENSMHE
E o
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that ERLAATEROM Wi

default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a

(b)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liguidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and other
receivables are each assessed as a separate group.
Amount due from an associate is assessed for
expected credit losses on an individual basis);

° Past-due status; and

° Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

3.

25 BUR )

£/ T Aum
EMEE @

EHEEZRERAMGEIRE
VBRI #R R E 9 1T R E
1R ()

vy EHEEEEMNFEMER
(&)

MEREEBERREPFTE
A EBE XA T A &L @B
E EMIATERNUTAA
HETDME:

e SERIAEMEMM: K
SEEKER  GNEE
Ko H b jE U 3R % 48 Bl
ﬁ:ﬂé B 95 5T 1 e A
ENRRENTEREES
)

e BEIMRRE:UAR

e BHAME  HEMIT
%O

EEEBTEHEMD BB ARE
1%1 1 48 B1) A #9518 48 B 3B

—EHAEEHRMNERRRS
4;51

HBRARER SBAENE
E@RETIHE - MR BARE
IS AR - RIFI 8 A I
IR 0% A A S A AT
SHE -

SHERERRERAT —T-hEFFR 183

Corporate
Information

Financial
Highlights

Chairman'’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

Governance

Report

1F 3R B /A ¥

Corporate

Environmental,

Social and Governance

=
o]
c
©
=
i

Major Events

Statements

Statement

and Analysis

2019 X =5




For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
in recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables and other

payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

BB w27 5

REGNHZNEEATNERAE
RESTANESR SEEBETH
BEEMERTAEIEAEREER

e

BEZS o
BFETAH

BETEAIAMBMERERD
REXBREENSRERZEMNSE
#) o NRAFHITH R T AR
ISR BERETHRAALR -

EEARG G EET AR B#E
MiESPHEGR - BE - HE - B1TH
BEARRIBES 2= TAERKETE
EREREHEZ -

ETHEE

AEBENERABREZERER
MEEHBHK AT E -

UB#EKAT B L@ ER
TRHEEERENER BNRER

HtEARIE  ERERAERAN X
R BHKAGE -

SHEEZZERERDA —T-FFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r S B % R AT R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

186

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group carries out inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and provides allowance for inventories.

The directors of the Company reviews the inventory aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period and identifies
those slow-moving or obsolete inventories that are no longer
suitable for use in production or sales. The directors of the
Company estimate the allowance for inventories based on
aging of inventories, current market price and estimated future
market demand. Where the estimated net realisable value of
the inventories are less than its carrying amount, an allowance
may need to provide. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounts of inventories of the Group were RMB184,676,000
(2018: RMB211,952,000).
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The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and contract assets are disclosed in note 22 and note 23
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables from goods and services were RMB328,337,000
(net of allowance of expected credit losses of RMB9,176,000)
(2018: carrying amounts of RMB413,840,000 net of allowance
of expected credit losses of RMB7,595,000). As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amounts of contract assets were
RMB12,712,000 (2018: RMB13,564,000) and no allowance of
expected credit losses was made.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA R D PBER

2 Eu
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from () BEEFEHZWARFD e
contracts with customers
For the year ended 31 December 2019 REBZ2019F12A31B L 2 F i
E T
Embedded =
software 5%
and secure Platform ‘
payment and EEu
products service Total % %‘V
WA BREHRM B
Z2LNEm FERRERH et

@
a
2
o
5]
=
[
j=)]
2
5
=

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BTT ARETRT

o1

%)
@
>
©

<

o
c
©

Types of goods or services E¥ SR RHEEHE

Sales of embedded AT A 8
software and secure ZEXNEMZHEE -
payment products 980,012 = 980,012 c

Sales of equipment M IEE = 176,575 176,575 *wg

Data processing services HIERERS — 259,078 259,078 :

Total mEt 980,012 435,653 1,415,665 N

Timing of revenue WARREE g
recognition €

A point in time PA3E— B E 980,012 435,653 1,415,665 -

Geographical markets i & % g .

Overseas and the special BN E B R RITTR R -
administrative regions (I&#&]F 5
of Hong Kong (“Hong B PR AT IR 2 g
Kong”) and Macao (M®|Fg))

(“Macao”) 82,688 16,980 99,668 %L

Mainland China H A 897,324 418,673 1,315,997 e é

ES®

Total 485t 980,012 435,653 1,415,665 g%f

=
o
=
@
=
[y
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K2 IPBER @)

(Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from (i) BEEFEHAZWARTSD
contracts with customers (Continued) (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 REBZ2018F12A31B L 2 F
E
Embedded
software
and secure Platform
payment and
products service Total
BmARX KR
REXNER FERRE #et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT

Types of goods or EYREKES
services
Sales of embedded A Z A
software and secure ZEXNEMZHEE
payment products 1,110,420 = 1,110,420
Sales of equipment REZHEE — 143,439 143,439
Data processing services  HUIE Bz ¥ AR 7% = 157,268 157,268
Total FEe 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127
Timing of revenue W A 52 B
recognition
A point in time R — B2 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127

Geographical markets & %
Overseas and Hong Kong 8 7NK& & 78 F18 Y

and Macao 67,051 15,142 82,193
Mainland China BB A 1,043,369 285,565 1,328,934
Total 485t 1,110,420 300,707 1,411,127
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

(ii) Performance obligation for contracts
with customers

Sale of embedded software and
secure payment products

The Group sells embedded software and secure
payment products to financial institutions,
government agencies, retail businesses, healthcare
businesses, public transportation operators and
others. Revenue on sales of embedded software
and secure payment products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred to
the customers, being when the goods have been
shipped to the designed location.

Data processing services

The data processing services, including encode
cardholder information and/or develop and load
custom software applications to embedded
software and secure payment products, and
prepare for delivery to card issuing customers or
directly to the end users, are considered to be
a distinct service as it is regularly supplied by
the Group to customers on a stand-alone basis.
Transaction price is allocated between sales of
products and the data processing services on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis and is
recognised when services is completed and control
of the goods has transferred to the customers.
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The Group also provides self-service kiosks and
on-site card issuance system solution to its
customers. Revenue on sales of self-service kiosks
and on-site card issuance system is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred to
the customers, being when the goods have been
shipped to the designed location and installation
of the equipment is completed with customers’
acceptance.

The normal credit period is 30—150 days upon delivery.
Retentions held by customers are normally payable
between 6 months to 1 year by the customers from
the date of issuance of invoice. Such retentions include
retentions for embedded software and secure payment
products required by customers to insure performance of
IC chips during the warranty period. The card issuance
system solutions also have retentions ranging from 5%
to 10%, which are payable after the expiration of the
warranty period. These warranties associated with the
goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as
an assurance that the goods sold comply with agreed-
upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts
for warranties in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The contracts for embedded software and secure
payment products, equipment and data processing
services are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

WA R D IBER @

(iii) Segment information

Segment information has been identified on the basis
of internal management reports which are reviewed by
the Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating

decision maker, in order to allocate resources to the RAIEFEERN  UFRDEEE %é
operating and reportable segments and to assess their Fri &R A& HBRIE - 3=

performance.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(iii) 7 HELR
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RERMES - th AR E R R
TRHARBRERRE AR
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AEBAHEDFFOT

1R E

Corporate
Information

cial

2
T

A EE

Chairman'’s
Statement
i

Embedded software  —  Embedded software and secure RAREHN — Bz 5 =
and secure payment products for smart secure ZEEN FEH AL e Ei
payment products payment Em gHRNZ 2 S

SHNE S S G
Platform and service  —  Provision of data processing services, ek — ARFPRUEHE 5 &
equipment, system platforms and RERE -
other total solutions BN
for customers AREMmER
BARAR

Each operating and reportable segment derives its
revenue from the sales of products and platform and
services. They are managed separately because each
product requires different production and marketing
strategies.

Segments results represent the gross profit earned by
each segment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

5.

194

REZE2019F12A831B L2 EE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segment recognised at a point in

(iii) Segment information (continued)

(iii) 7 ZPEE @

WARDEE R @

AT RAKEZ A HED IR
X-—RHHERANRARFEZ

time: SaN i
Revenue Results
A ES
2018 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
Sales to external parties of MANER R P 2 $HE
— embedded software and — AR K GME 2
secure payment products XA E 980,012 1,110,420 234,044 271,549
— platform and service — FAaRR® 435,653 300,707 164,492 118,582
1,415,665 1,411,127 398,536 390,131
Research and development costs  #ff 2% fk Z< (113,474) (113,854)
Other operating expenses HhBER (138,354) (143,509)
Other income, gains or losses Hb A - W=k E B 19,174 53,549
Interest income A E WA 30,450 28,061
Investment income from financial & RA R BEREZFH A
assets at FVTPL Bz eMmEERERA 7,508 9,034
Net exchange gain FE i i 25 F B 3,783 23,117
(Impairment loss) reversal of on &Y & 3k OR & &5 18 ) # B
trade receivables (1,581) 208
Impairment loss on amount due & U B & A B kI8 2 BL1E
from an associate BB (1,740) (11,460)
Reversal of (impairment loss) on  #[6] (R {E 518 ) I Bt & A &)
interest in an associate 2R 3,464 (27,191)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERN L (884) —
Share of losses of associates LS AR EE — (284)
Profit before taxation i Al A 206,882 207,802

ARAEEEBRESE D HRE
XBEEHARK -BEDHEE
FABEE A ARG NRZE
BEBHMRE - At AE|=2
BOHNEERABES -

The management of the Company makes decisions
according to the operating results of each segment. No
information of segment assets and liabilities is available
for the assessment of performance of different business
activities. Therefore, no information about segment
assets and liabilities are presented.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other information

Revenue from external customers attributed to the Group by
location of the operations of the customers is presented as
follows:

WAR D EHE R @

H ftt & %

AEBREINBEEHRAREFH
REMEWEI D25 MT :

2018
RMB’000
ARET T

Revenue '@
— Mainland China — B R 1,315,997 1,328,934
— Others — Hfth 99,668 82,193
1,415,665 1,411,127

Information about the Group’s non-current assets except for
financial instruments and deferred tax assets by location of
assets is presented as below:

AEEARSBRIARECHELE
AN B RS BEEREERE
WES 2B -

2018
RMB’000
ARETT
Hong Kong BB 163,322 171,587
Mainland China RN 275,151 197,689
438,473 369,276

Information about major customer ERETEEFMER

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was one
customer with revenue of RMB147,348,000 in aggregate
(2018: one customer with revenue of RMB152,019,000 in
aggregate) from the segments of both embedded software
and secure payment products and platform and service which
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

HE2019F12A31HIEZ2FE » ik
ARRGEME 2T HERMFE KR
BoME—BBEFHRABTAEAR
#£147,348,0007T (2018 : —Z B F 1)
U A 48 5t A A R #152,019,0007T)
G AR E B BU A BI10% A £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

& B S 8 AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

6. OTHER INCOME

6. Hfaug A

2018
RMB'000
ARETTT
Government grants XA /6 B 5,504 31,091
Interest income from bank deposits 8 17 7% 7% A B U A 30,450 28,061
Investment income from financial BEARBEREZFHTAER
assets at FVTPL mLERMEERERA 7,508 9,034
Value-added tax refund EER R 13,538 18,987
Rental income from investment HEMEYENHAS KA
property 1,172 —
Others HAt 240 916
58,412 88,089
7. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 7. Hitt BN EE
2018
RMB'000
ARET T
Net exchange gain M H U % E 3,783 23,117
Gain on fair value changes REAnBEREZHIAR
of financial assets at FVTPL mZEMEEZLANEER
B E U = 84 2,649
Loss on disposal of property, plant and EE¥ % - BER&HEE
equipment (1,364) (94)
2,503 25,672
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BiAIFE

c
Y ®
© =
= ®©
o
SE
60
(SRS

2018 4
RMB'000
ARET T z £
Profit before tax has been arrived BRI AEEH bR - _
at after charging: I
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) = X T2 15,998 17,399 2 §+
Other staff costs H b 8B KA 208,723 197,650 T 5o
Other staff's equity-settled share- HtEEU R EENRMD -
based payments A 1,009 6,896 0 e
Other staff's retirement benefits H e B R IKE A ET &K E é‘w
scheme contributions 8,027 6,879 e
233,757 228,824 % =
Depreciation of property, plant and % - BEMKREITE s 50
equipment 39,637 43,916 é?j
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEERE 9,322 — 5 ®
Depreciation of investment property & & MEHE T E 2,194 —
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEH s m
(included in administrative expenses) (%I A17E 5 ) 2,290 2,290 : Ei
o S
Total depreciation and amortisation 37 & & # 5 & &t 53,443 46,206 ;':;i%m
Allowance for inventories included in  FtASHER ANE 17 & & & - 4
cost of sales 2,843 2,887 g ér
Auditor’s remuneration % B R B & 1,991 1,924 C@gpf
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERAI ZFEXAR ‘
expense 799,887 833,630

Corporate Governance
Report
¥ E A

Environmental
Social and Governance

Financial
Statements

40
s
b
=

SHERRZRERAT —F-hr&EER 19/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A I AR P R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

198

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9.
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

EX BHFEYTEEAM
REFHNESHE

2018
RMB'000
AR T T
Directors’ fees we 584 733
Other emoluments to executive HEMTHTESHM S
directors
— basic salaries and allowances — EARFHeuE 9,179 8,385
— bonus — D4 5,210 5,016
— retirement benefits scheme — RIRTE M FFEI
contributions 99 85
— equity-settled share-based — UREEENRO M
payments 926 3,180
15,998 17,399

The bonus of the directors was determined with reference
to the Group’'s performance, individual performances and
comparable market statistics.

Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (the “Chief
Executive”) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
below include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EEX EREIYTEHAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEHMNEESME @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

LEER

Corporate
Information
P

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, REE Rz £ R A R 2B EfI By b
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and BEZESRERNITEAFE 2 IR
Companies Ordinance is as follows: e NN e
S
2018 g ”;
RMB'000 35
ARBTFT
c 4
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITES ié‘*
Mr. Lu Run Ting EEEXAE -
— basic salaries and —EARFHNERM 5
allowances 3,703 3,578 § e
— bonus — D4 2,372 2,292 a e
— retirement benefits scheme — — R K48 F &t 8 4 3% gih
contributions 16 15 S © gy
— equity-settled share-based ~ — LAME# &5 B )RR () X+ g &
payments — 277 -
5 m
o ¢ By
6,091 6,162 .
o B
Mr. Lu Runyi EBERTE égliﬁ
— basic salaries and — EXFaMmEa -
allowances 1,099 1,059 .
— bonus — HK 576 557 c e
— retirement benefits scheme  — R K& 5t Bl 4 5% §iw
contributions 16 15 ‘
— equity-settled share-based — DERAEENRG M g
payments 225 754 % 4
5%
1,916 2385 sl
g <
Mr. Hou Ping BEEEAE -
— basic salaries and — HE R Fr & AR o
allowances 2,436 2,352 e
— bonus — DA 1,898 1,834 8%
— retirement benefits scheme  — R K18 F 51 8l K ééﬁf
contributions 16 15 Eom
— equity-settled share-based — UEREENRMDZA g%
payments 336 1,017
T
4,686 5218 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B R R MY AT )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EE EHEHTERAN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEedyHMEESEME @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

2018
RMB'000
ARET T
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITES
(Continued) (#8)
Mr. Lu Xiaozhong BNBEE
— basic salaries and — EAKF & MEA
allowances 761 770
— bonus — DAL 64 63
— retirement benefits — RIKE M ET B3R
scheme contributions 20 20
— equity-settled share-based — DERAENRN M
payments 140 453
985 1,306
Mr. Wu Sigiang RE®ESE
— basic salaries and — EAREHSRELR
allowances 617 626
— bonus — DA 300 270
— retirement benefits — RIRAE A EFEI 3R
scheme contributions 20 20
— equity-settled share-based — UEREENRD M
payments 225 679
1,162 1,595
Mr. Ling Wai Lim (Note) & & BR ot A (KT aE)
— basic salaries and — BEARE S FER
allowances 563 —
— retirement benefits — RORAE A 5T 8 3
scheme contributions 1 =
574 —
Total A&t 15,414 16,666
Note: Mr. Ling Wai Lim was re-designated from non-executive Director to B et - B BE Sk £ R2019F3 A 156 B FE #1 77
executive Director with effect from 15 March 2019. EFHFBNTEE -
200  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b S T E L RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F12A31H L 2 FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

9.

B HEIHTEHERAN
EeHFMEEMNE @

FRBHTEEZMEREEEARLRA
RAKEEBHZRGE -

2018
RMB’000
ARET T
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR kBTES
Mr. Ling Wai Lim BB RESE
— directors’ fees — e — 169
— 169

The non-executive director's emolument shown above was for
his services as director of the Company.

LRAATESZREETERENER
ARBEEZRHFE -

2018
RMB'000
ARET T
C) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BN ¥ HITES
DIRECTORS
Ms. Ye Lu Bt
— directors’ fees — we 175 169
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BokHREE
— directors’ fees — e 234 226
Mr. Yang Geng (Note) T B k& (M i)
— directors’ fees — B 106 —
Mr. Liu John Jianhua BEELE
— directors’ fees — B 69 169
Total NEF 584 564

Note: Mr. Yang Geng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 22 May 2019.

EHEEZEZRERDA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B 5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

202

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31
December 2019 included three (2018: three) directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
remuneration of the remaining two (2018: two) highest paid
individuals who are neither a director nor Chief Executive of
the Company during the year were as follows:

9. EX EEHITEHIN

BEEHMNESME @

ERBIGATEET RS EER
BEERARRERTZIREE -

REE2019F 12 A31BIE 2 FERAAL
e HMA LT BFE=1(2018: =)
EF HMeFBIHRLER - BESE
REBRITEIN » REEHT ML
(2018 : W) B 1= 3 BN A T RI B = 40
T~

2018
RMB’'000
ARET T
Employees (==
— basic salaries and allowances — E K e FEEL 2,299 2,375
— bonus — D4 624 909
— retirement benefits scheme — ROKE A EF 8 5R

contributions 63 63

— equity-settled share-based — UREREEORHD
payments 449 1,133
3,435 4,480

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose fell within the following
bands is as follows:

REZUINESFMALTOARE
TREBEEN

Number of employees
BB A"

75 12,000,001 &
75 #2,500,0007C
75 %2 500,0017C &
75 13,000,000

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000

— 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director or the Chief Executive
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e d R EL N AC )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FIEHEH

2018
RMB’'000
AREETF T
Income tax expense comprises: FIEsHERBRE:
Current tax EHMEN
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax A B 1 3 P AT R
(“EIT") (EZEmBBH) (18,713) (21,497)
Underprovision of EIT in prior years B4 E SRR
T~E — (2,332)
PRC withholding tax on dividend IR B9 Ik & R B TE A
distribution (9,290) =
(28,003) (23,829)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEMFH (3,929) (3,257)
(Unden)overprovision of Hong Kong B F & F S F (2 T 2)
Profits Tax in prior years % e (185) 82
(32,117) (27,004)
Deferred taxation (note 33) B RE B IR (M 27 33) 1,658 (6,150)
(30,459) (33,154)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HKD2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKD2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

EHEEZEZRERDA

MEFENEBHNEH R G
R A EA16.5%ETF -

BB EEM2018E3A21BEBT
Qo175 B % (& 51)(B75%) & Bl &
EXMERBER] - ZIEHI BRI A
FEFRMASH - 2 1K2018F3H28H
RERBEERTRBAETIE - £ F
BEHMAFT  HRFEERNER
BEEH2008EEMNBEOMNERES
8.25% ° #RiB2008 BB R B M L H
B A 15 7 R £316.5% o &S FE BT
SHEMAHMNEEETRAEE R —
LA16.5% & FI| 15 Fi K -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

The EIT is calculated at the applicable rates in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Mainland China.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
EIT at 25% except for Goldpac Limited which was approved as
a High-New Technology Enterprise and entitles to preferential
tax rate at 15% for the each of the year ended 2017, 2018
and 2019. The directors of the Company anticipate that
Goldpac Limited will obtain such approval in 2020 and entitle
the preferential tax rate of 15% in 2020, 2021 and 2022.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No. 1, only
the profits earned by Goldpac Limited prior to 1 January 2008,
when distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered
with the exemption from withholding EIT. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its
Implementation Rules, dividend distributed out of the profit
generated thereafter, shall be subject to EIT at 10% or reduced
tax rate if tax treaty or arrangement applies. Under the relevant
tax arrangement of the Group, the withholding tax rate on
dividend distribution to the qualifying Hong Kong resident
companies is 5%. Deferred tax liability on the undistributed
profits earned since 1 January 2008 have been accrued at the
tax rate of 5%.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

CEFBHRRERENGEBER
FBBERBETE -

/NI =0l NN N Bz e SN T = RN T
25% MW T R BN ZEFTISH - HESFH
EBERAGEHRE A= MG
% . WA 2017 ~ 2018 %2019 E =
ZIS%HBEME - RARIZEFHEE
© FBEAF R QF A HR2020F & 15 5
#b - 742020 ~ 202152022 F E N4 &
EFRI5%MEBEREK -

BRETBRILBERFEERLRD M
(2008) FE15R Bt & B &0 + 1 A1 3% SN %
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A)F20084F 1 A18 2 B B EL A ) & a]
RETEMMEEMSEH o A - BEDS
F TS FLE B 3E 2716k & H & e 48
BIEEHRTE - MEBELENFES
& B% BB - B IR 10% 3k (fis B U 17 7
SR HEE ) BRI RN AT
B - BEBEASEHR@ATKZEE 5
RFEEREBERARKREMNTEN
i R A5% o B20084F181H # B HL
B AR o B FDEIEE T B B E S 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before

tax as follows:

b S T E L RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

10. MIEHE Aw

FREASHERENAENHE
LI

2018
RMB'000 %
ARETT
Profit before tax B B¢ B A OE 206,882 207,802
Tax at the applicable income tax #% i@ 3 AT 15 4 & 5t
rate (note) B E (A7) (51,721) (25.0) (51,951) (25.0)
Tax effect of expenses not IRk
deductible for tax purpose B (4,560) (2.2) (12,965) (6.2)
Tax effect of income not taxable 3 1% W A 89 51
for tax purpose BrE 6,452 3.1 13,457 6.5
Tax effect of tax losses not RIER IS E B
recognised WG 2 28 0.0 467 0.2
Tax effect of tax concession MIEE BN
A 25,724 12.4 25,659 12.3
Tax effect of different tax rate of £ H fth B 1§ 7 0% &
subsidiaries operating in other — [EAZEHKIE A A
tax jurisdiction EORNEE RS0k
2 1,405 0.7 1,024 0.5
Tax effect of share of losses of JE{GERZARIEIE 2
associates R = — (71) (0.1)
Withholding EIT on undistributed 2k 2 B2 )58 & - B 78
profits in the PRC M EMRFH (6,720) (3.2) (6,524) (3.1)
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREFRS
WET IR T2 (185) (0.1) (2,250) 1.1
Others H b (882) (0.4) — —
Income tax expense and effective FE K FTEH E H
tax rate for the year & BB X (30,459) (14.7) (33,154) (16.0)

Note:

The rate applied is the applicable tax rate in the PRC where the
operation of the Group is substantially based.

Wit FIABERLEBEEELF BHEA
Y8 B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=g b S T EL R )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

11. DIVIDENDS 11.
2018
RMB'000
AR T T
2019 Interim — HK4.0 cents 019 FEFH — FREBR
(2018 Interim — HK4.0 cents) P& #5401l (2018 F SF E H i
per ordinary share — BRI @R B E4.000) 30,065 28,954
2018 Final — HK10.0 cents 2018F FEARY — FREBR
(2017 Final — HK10.0 cents) 78 #10.011L (20174 F /€ K B
per ordinary share — BRI @R EE10.010L) 73,150 68,060
2018 Special — HK6.0 cents 2018F FEHFRI AR &
(2017 Special — HK6.0 cents) — BRI @R E 6.0
per ordinary share (2017 FEFRIR B
— SREBEBIEK6.0M) 43,890 40,836
147,105 137,850
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend HEHRE  BEFERENEZE2019
of HK10.0 cents (2018: HK10.0 cents) and a special dividend of FNRANBILE2FERERARES
HK6.0 cents (2018: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share in respect % 38 A% 75 #510.01L (20184 & 75 1
of the year ended 31 December 2019 have been proposed 10.01l) » BA R 5l AR B AR 3 3 Ak
by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval by the 7 #6.01L (20184 & A& %6.01L) - B
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual AREBSEINBEBTHREAFAE
general meeting. ERQFRE 2B -
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share BENANAEAEANTREARRE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the SERFIBRBEBATEIRE
following data:
2018
RMB'000
AR®ET T
Earnings B
Earnings for the purpose of basic FFE G AR E AR EF AT A & & A
earnings per share (profit for the year — (AARI#HH A BEFEFIHE)
attributable to owners of the Company) 177,125 175,187
‘000
:F
Number of shares R4 E
Weighted average number of ordinary &t & & % 2 2 2 5 BT 5% A #9 hn 4
shares for the purpose of basic 15 i R AR B (AT i)
earnings per share (note) 826,047 826,134
206  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12.

13.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company
by an independent trustee under the shares award scheme of the

Company.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because
the exercise prices of those options were higher than the
average market price for shares for the year ended December

b S T E L RS )

REZE2019F 128318 IE 2 EE

12. ERE R @

Hiat: FTEMFERELRRBERF|NEFY
HAERRE T - HEHIB IR (7 BB a2
BHE TR B AR RFREE
HIBR 17 ©

AERENTEERSREE2018
F12AL 2FEBRMFETIHERS
EFEEREERNBL RBRESR
T AR HE -

2018.

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 were presented as there were no potential ordinary

shares in issue.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

MR A EERTBELTER W
MO RANEBE2019F 128318 I 2
EREEERAR -

13. ¥ BMERKRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
EE N5
£ RRE RE e ] EEIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
CosT %S
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1 818 231,913 52,554 5,064 263,844 28,701 582,076
Additions NE — 7,779 380 12,006 22,922 43,087
Disposals RE = = (241) (128) — (369)
Transfers oz = = = 20,196 (20,196) =
Exchange realignment PE A — 32 43 = = 75
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 231,913 60,365 5,246 295,918 31,427 624,869
Additions nNE — 8,654 — 7,518 78,082 94,254
Disposals BE — (1,898) — (3,060) — (4,958)
Transfers (354 = = = 25,072 (25,072) =
Transfer to investment property B &8 & 1Y) %

(note 16) (K17t 16) (66,507) = = — — (66,507)
Exchange realignment M 5B 153 16 21 = — 190
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 165,559 67,137 5,267 325,448 84,437 647,848
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1 818 31,456 34,869 2,517 177,313 — 246,155
Provided for the year FRRE 8,032 9,488 534 25,862 — 43,916
Eliminated on disposals IR B Y8 = — (241) (26) — (267)
Exchange realignment ME X% — 28 18 — — 46
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 39,488 44,385 2,828 203,149 — 289,850
Provided for the year FREE 6,438 9,768 584 22,847 — 39,637
Eliminated on disposals AR = (1,898) = (1,696) — (3,594)
Transfer to investment property BB E& & Y%

(note 16) (Kt ez 16) (3,969) — — — — (3,969)
Exchange realignment TE 3 38 B 171 16 13 = = 200
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A318 42,128 52,271 3,425 224,300 — 322,124
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A318 123,431 14,866 1,842 101,148 84,437 325,724
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 192,425 15,980 2,418 92,769 31,427 335,019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

The Group's buildings are erected on land held under medium-
term leases in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, as follows:

Buildings 2%-5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%-33'5%
Motor vehicles 10%-20%
Plant and machinery 10%

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group leased
out certain of its office building and accordingly, the property
is transferred to investment property. The carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is RMB62,538,000.

The balance at 31 December 2018 represents the prepayments
of rentals for medium-term land use rights situated in Mainland
China for a period of 50 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

Leasehold
lands
HE L
RMB'000
AREF T
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F181H
Carrying amount BREE 26,206
As at 31 December 2019 72019%12H31H
Carrying amount BREE 25,803
For the year ended 31 REZ2019%12A431A
December 2019 tZFE
Depreciation charge mEEZA 403

Expense relating to short-term  £2%2 H37H & K H {th 7 £

lease and other leases with & B U5 R & 228
lease terms end within 12 F16 B REMA L
months of the date of initial REAANERHEE
application of HKFRS 16 AR
Total cash outflow for leases HEReRLBE
Additions to right-of-use assets {& i #& & &= 1 10

The Group leases various leasehold lands, properties and

Leased
properties Equipment Total
HEWE RiE ‘&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFTT AR¥EFTT AR®BTR
6,449 2,416 35,071
16,373 1,035 43,211
7,538 1,381 9,322
1,251
9,600
17,462

AEEREKLEHEREHEELH

equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 50 years for leasehold lands and 2 years to
4 years for properties and equipment, respectively. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all
leasehold lands.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for certain
offices and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 32.

EHEEZEZRERDA

MERZE HELHEONEE
HIRB50F MEMREOR2FE
A% - HERFEBILBAEAN > B85
& TE A [ O {5 SR MR 1 - FEREE
ERRMAABEEHNRER - A&
B2 A KB E % I HEE A 4R AT
178 -

AEBERMESEMEHEE LbA L
FRAEESE -

AEBEHRTELERAERETTE
S E ML - B2019F12A8318 -

RHHEEAE A EHEEER
BENEHHEEHEASEUL-

MEAENZI BTN EI25R -
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A lease of equipment is either with only fixed lease payments
or contain variable lease that is based on the volume of
printing and minimum annual lease payment that is fixed
over the lease term. The amount of fixed and variable lease
payment paid/payable to relevant lessor for the year ended 31

BRErHEREEEEAEREAEXR
BEERORENTEHERERE
HABRENREFHEHER - RERE
2019F12A31HIE 2 FE - EffskfE
NEHBEREANBEEMEHEE

December 2019: NS A:
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
EiR e CIE-ZEA BAREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT AR T T

Equipment with variable lease £ & A] & f & it &

payments g 1,440 632 2,072

The overall financial impact of using variable payment terms ERAAENRGEENARBHB Y E

is that higher rental costs are incurred by higher volume of
printing. Variable rent expenses are expected to continue to
represent a similar proportion of volume of printing in future
years.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. LE MY E v S
) E’H
2 = / ié i
In 2019, the Group leases out certain portion of its office M2019%F - AEBENSAEHNES S
building under operating lease with rentals payable monthly. WEEHERF XA BEEE S P RE -
The lease has a lease period of 3 years. HEAR3F - =
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result AEBTEREMEE HEERINSE -
of the lease arrangement, as the lease is denominated in B EATHERAEETEYED 21
the respective functional currency of group entity. The lease e E%ETEN - HESHNTEER a2l
contract does not contain residual value guarantee and/or HEEERMN AR ATHEEH 3%;:
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease MEBEZYEREERE - =&
term. B
RMB'000 b
ARBTFT
cosT A
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 720184 1H1H * 2018412 A31H & = 21
1 January 2019 201951 H1H = £2
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ## B ¥ ¥ « BE & &E (M :713) 2w
(note 13) 66,507 =
Exchange realignment BE 5, 8 B 94 5
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 66,601 g
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT FERRBREFEE s
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 20185 171H - 2018512 A31H & )
1 January 2019 201951 A1H — °8
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EBBAWE - ME N K& (4 :713) 88
(note 13) 3,969 B
Provided for the year FEEE 2,194 .
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 125 5
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 6,288 ;j
CARRYING VALUES B TH B
At 31 December 2019 F2019%12 A31H 60,313
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H —

Environr

Social

Financial
Statements

40
&
b
=

SHERERRERAT =—FT-hEFR 7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B R R MY AT )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 16. REMWE w0
The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 N E R E MY % R2019612 A31
December 2019 was RMB61,244,000 (2018: nil). The fair value B RREER/AKRYE61,244,0007T
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Asset (2018 : L) - A ABEEBIFEAK
Appraisal Limited, independent valuer not connected with the 5 [ fm FE Bk B0 08 2 AT {E&E%‘:P W E
Group. BENEBERBRARETTGBRS
d o
The valuation has been arrived by reference to direct HELDFERAEELERAL RS L
comparison method as available in the market and where RENEE TEHEBBATZ2ESR
appropriate, on the basis of referencing to the sales BREENEVMENHERS °
transactions of similar commercial properties in Hong Kong.
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and EHEDENRAABEE  HZY
best use of the property is their current use. ENBEeNREERASHEE A E
=38
Details of the Group’s investment property and information HEAGRERAR AEEREEME
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting MEFBERAREBEEREMOT:
period are as follows:
2018
Fair value
Carrying at Level 3
amount Hierarchy
EIER
FREE ~NAEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTT
Office unit located in LR E B
Hong Kong WNBIT 60,313 61,244 — —
The above investment property is depreciated on a straight- LM EMEMERERENE
line basis at the following rates per annum: FWERMT:
Leased property 3.3% A 3.3%
212 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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17.

18.

b S T E L RS )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

GOODWILL 17. B &
RMB'000
ARET T
COST AND CARRYING VALUE A K BR T B
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 MR2018F1H1H » 20184F12 A31H K&
and 2019 2019412 A31H 1,375
The management of the Group determined that there is no REEEEERR B E2019F K
impairment in the CGU of embedded software and secure 20185 12A31H - @Bz AR
payment products containing the goodwill during the years BHENEZE2INERREEESN
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. I EARE -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
Trademarks
[k
RMB'000
ARET T
cosT A
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 2019 201841818 - 2018412 A31H
K20194F12 4318 18,318
AMORTISATION # 8
At 1 January 2018 72018F181H 9,352
Charge for the year FE#H 2,290
At 31 December 2018 #20184F12 A31H 11,642
Charge for the year B 2,290
At 31 December 2019 M2019412 A31H 13,932
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 4,386
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 6,676
The trademarks are with finite useful lives and are amortised EEEBERFEAER - BESRF
on a straight-line basis over periods of 5 to 9 years (2018: 5 (2018 : 529 WA B 4R 7K # 35 -
to 9 years).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REEE QR 2 &

2018
RMB'000
ARETTT

Unlisted investments in associates, at cost K& RIE LT 2 B2 A 7]
2 B R 32,120 32,120
Share of post-acquisition results and reserves &l & & W 25 & f4 1 (4,929) (4,929)
Impairment loss on interest in an associate REt& AR ZHER ZREEIE (23,727) (27,191)
3,464 =

Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: ERWT:
Proportion of issued
ordinary share and
capital indirectly
held by the Group

Country of
incorporation

Name of entity and operation

RARERRAEE L QR ZFA

Principal activity

FEXEH®

HAEEE
FEERFENERT
BERER RIIMEERHR EERREXRZMEL
2018
Kaixin Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 45% 45%
SEBERERAA EEERRES
Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd. Mainland China 19.68% 19.68%
("SCZR") (note) (note)
)l EE R B R AR H A b (H17t) (B 5%)
(M)l Ek])
Note: The Group was able to exercise significant influence over SCZR because

it had the power to appoint two out of the seven directors of SCZR
under its article of association.

214 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19.

R E B S R R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.

Aggregate information of associates that
are not individually material

REEE DT 2 &= @m

The Group's share of losses of associates

AEBEEIGHENRZEIE —

ﬂﬁ BIFEE K NEREA
2018

RMB'000

ARETT

(284)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group'’s
interests in these associates

FEEA

AEBRBE AR R

3,464 —

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of
associates because the Group's share of losses of the associates
in previous years has exceeded its investment costs. The
amounts of the unrecognised share of losses of the associates,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

AEECRLERBEBERRZE
B ARAKEZABFREBER
AERERCBEERERAN - K
BAEGBHERAR ZERSRA(KF
BMAEFFBOWT

2018
RMB'000
AR T T
Unrecognised share of losses REREREGEE QA
of the associates for the year ) k= (1,550) (1,157)
Accumulated unrecognised share RERERENEE QR
of losses of the associates Z BB (2,707) (1,157)
As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the interest M2018F12A31H " fEA—HE—&

in SCZR had been tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset. The
Group took into consideration the estimation of recoverable
amount of the associate and determined that an amount
of RMB27,191,000 was recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss on interest in an associate based on the value
in use of SCZR.

EHEEZEZRERDA

E R ENREEDSRE
B e &R FE365R [ L ZE N E |
TRENR AEEBEETHEQF
AT Uk B & 58 30 AR % 9 1| AR EX A
FRAEE AT 8 AREK27191,000
TIEARBE AR ZER ZREAR
BEtAER
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

In September 2019, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with remaining four shareholders of SCZR
and an independent third party to dispose of the 19.68%
interest in SCZR held by the Group for a total consideration
of RMB32,920,000. According to the sale and purchase
agreement, the transaction would be complete upon the entire
consideration is settled by the buyers. As of 31 December
2019, management expects that the transaction will not be
complete within twelve months. Accordingly, the associate
to be sold does not meet the definition of assets held for
sales under HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. During the year ended 31 December
2019, non-refundable sale proceeds of RMB3,464,000 has
been received from the buyers. The management of the Group
considers the recoverable amount of the investment in SCZR
increase, as such, a reversal of impairment loss on the interest
in SCZR of an equivalent amount has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Structured deposits SR R
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current assets mE & E
At as 31 December 2019, the structured deposits represent
principal-guaranteed financial products amounting to
RMB180,000,000 (2018: RMB230,000,000) issued by banks
in Mainland China with an expected but not guaranteed
return varying with the range from 2.5% to 3.9% per annum
(2018: 2.6% to 3.35% per annum), which depending on the
market price of the underlying financial instruments, including
money market funds, inter-banking lending and debentures.
The structured deposits were designated as financial assets at
FVTPL on initial recognition. Details of fair value measurement

of structured deposits are set out in note 41.
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FEEZR - REZEEWE 515
RERMBEEZIBHRIEEZTK ° 182019
F12A318 > BEEEEAZRIHBE
ERNREARTA - Bt - #HED
B &8 N AN R BB B 7% 3R 5 2E A
BERIFHFEHTEEE KRR
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2019F12 A31H IE 2 FE » B U B3k
EEFRNTAREREIZAEAR
#3,464,0007C - A B EEER A
R RS & 2 AT Uk (O] & 58 A FT 38
o A REEaERRPERRSE
SEMNRNE)I| P8 2 2 R EE
B o

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRY AKBTT

180,084 232,649

180,084 232,649

M2019F 128310 - #IBUHTEFER A
FEAMIRITETHRAS R E R
A K #180,000,0007T (2018 : A R #&
230,000,0007T) ° RIEBRIFEEE MG
A ROHERMNESFERNNIZ
MEMTAMNMHEER  BHGRR
B)EWFBEE2.5%F3.9% 2 H
(2018 : 2.6% £3.35% 2 M) > Z &1
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F12A31H L 2 FE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78 oS
2018 SEH
RMB'000
ARBFE i
Raw materials B R 115,099 135,974 ‘
Work in progress F B 4,007 4,787 o
Finished goods B o 65,570 71,191 2aK
184,676 211,952
é%”
£ EW
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES SR
2018 -
RMB’000 2 o
ARBTT S
;
Trade receivables JE W B X 5
— goods and services — Bk R 337,513 421,435 2
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEBERE (9,176) (7,595) 5
E = L‘
328,337 413,840 2 ;
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivable from contracts with MR2018F1A1H  ERP AL ZEI = m
customers amounted to RMB400,338,000. BER e #E AR AK%400,338,0007T °
5 il
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of REMRNBE (RS W= ERB ég;ﬂ?
allowance for credit losses presented based on the date of HEE) 2INRKRE R (HREEE 28 g
delivery of goods which approximated the respective dates on BREERERSNOAT: By
which revenue was recognised: g .
2018
RMB’000 =
ARMFT g
0-90 days 0-90H 206,329 308,371
91-180 days 91-180H 51,447 41,946 ZEX
181-365 days 181-365H 38,209 32,416 S
Over 365 days 83650 32,352 31,107 S5
328,337 413,840 _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

22.

23.

218

REZE2019F12A831B L2 EE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BEIWE R
As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade M2019412 8310 © & & fE Uk
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying EXHMEREERAEESTAA
amount of RMB14,453,000 (2018: RMB11,544,000) which are R %14,453,0007C(2018: A R
past due as at the reporting date. The past due balances have 11,544,00070) W5 AR BEAE S
been past due 90 days or more and are not considered as H - mHISAER 2 8 B R 3B90 H 3 A
in default. The directors of the Company consider that these FWERERERELN - BEEH
debts are recoverable based on historical experience with these ZEBBANELLR  KARElES
debtors. ReZEEBAWE o
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AEBYERZERBIHEE MK
Ao
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set JE W & FORL(E BT 4 AR ER RS BT T4 3R
out in note 41. B e
CONTRACT ASSETS 23. EHNEE
2018
RMB'000
ARBF T
Embedded software and RARTGFNE 2 ZMNEM
secure payment products 5,253 7,163
Equipment F 7,459 6,401
12,712 13,564

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of
quality over the products delivered at the reporting date. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon
the completion of retention period which is normally between
6 months to 1 year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 24. Hfth B W R FE A K
PREPAYMENTS éil
Vh=h<!
2018
RMB'000
ARBTF T £
Rental and utility deposits (note (a)) e RKERS (M E @) 2,230 1,968 R éw
Tender deposits BERER 6,914 6.379 S
Deposits paid to suppliers TG HREENES 7,727 2,966 gs
Prepayments to the Trustee of shares award f& 17 5% B) =+ 2 {2 sE FE 1+ 3¢
scheme (as defined in note 35(c)) (28 B iF35(c) 1,752 4,303 £5u
Customs deposits HEE S — 3,678 =Sk
Other prepayments and deposits (note (b) EAbFB 3K K E € (#172 (b) 27,079 7,290 G
45,702 26,584
Notes: Hat - g
(a) Rental deposits paid were adjusted upon the initial application of HKFRS (a) EfffLHE2EREXNFKHEE BB H g
16. Details of the adjustment are set out in note 2. EERE 1695 BB o FHEFIFERM 7 -
257 ° s
g + B
(b)  As at 31 December 2019, RMB20,600,000 included in the other (b)  R2019F12H31H - At ETHREE 5 g
prepayments and deposits balance represented a prepayment paid to a & A K #20,600,0007T 53 114 A E é S
supplier for raw materials for production. Accordingly, the prepayment B EER BN - Bt - ZHET S § /‘—3
is classified as current assets. AEPERREEE - QE ”ﬂ
25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 25. B EE & AR
The balance is unsecured and interest-free. As at 31 December ERREER - 28 o R2019F12 4
2019 and 2018, the directors of the Company believe that 31HF12018F 128310 - AEBEE=S g
there is significant increase in credit risk of the amount due R 4% B )05 T 3R DA 2R JE Wi Bk A R K 5 &
from an associate since initial recognition and the Group WiEERBBEZEM  WAEEER S
provided impairment based on lifetime ECL. Accordingly, an REEMBEEERIEREESE - E
expected credit loss of RMB1,740,000 (2018: RMB11,460,000) It - T H (= B B3 18 A R %1,740,000 £
was recognised in profit or loss as an impairment loss on ot (2018 © A R #11,460,0007T) 1A 18
amount due from an associate. P R R R B R ) BB E B g .
B 5 St
Details of impairment assessment of amount due from an JE W Bk & A B RRIBDRE R B EE 1B -5
associate are set out in note 41. NN E 3 SE
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Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables
and carry fixed interest rate ranging from 3.85% to 4.13%
(2018: 0.3% to 4.13%) per annum. As at 31 December 2019,
RMB156,000,000 (2018: RMB150,000,000) represents bank
deposits pledged to banks for the Group’s bank facilities.
Accordingly, the pledge bank deposits are classified as non-
current assets.

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the floating
rate of 0% to 1.75% (2018: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated
in RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of 1.10% to
4.13% (2018: 2.88% to 3.85%) per annum. Included in
the balance as at 31 December 2019, RMB109,779,000 of
fixed bank deposits will be matured over one year (2018:
RMB103,823,000) and therefore classified as non-current
assets.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances are set out in note 41.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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$#3.85% %£4.13% (20184F 50.3% =
4.13%) /) [ 7 F F 5 B o 72019
F12A318 + A & #156,000,0007T
(2018 : A R #150,000,0007T) KR 1T
GEREEFRBRITUAEREERIT
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RNEEFHANBITERIZZSFF
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§+/%\ °
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F 52.88% £3.85%) B @ & F F X
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ENERKRENRE
2018 524
RMB’'000 _
Trade payables FET B 3K -
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto N.V. — Gemalto N.V. ([Gemalto]) o
("Gemalto”) (note) oSNNI ) — 9,533 ., 5t
— Related company of Gemalto — Gemalto i) 8 B A & S
— DataCard Corporation — DataCard Corporation = 10,621 g%‘
— Third parties — F=h 282,336 249,476 -
282,336 269,630
Bills payables — secured FEAENER .
— Subsidiaries of Gemalto — Gemalto 8 fif B 2 7] = 23,021 2 =
— Third parties — %= 117,010 145,070 da
117,010 168,091 ég‘
399,346 437,721 =
Note: Gemalto is a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands Htat - Gemalto R B i B E#Z K - ARG & ; g
and whose shares were listed traded on NYSE Euronext Amsterdam and TE MK — )2 Bl 7 %5 XX 5 FT 2 B 48 5T 15 Bl &
NYSE Euronext Paris. In April 2019, Thales, a company incorporated in AXRBHHERILEZH FTRE o R o E"‘:
France, has accomplished the whole acquisition of Gemalto and Gemalto 20194F4A + Thales 22 &] + — XK K% ? 2 ™
delisted on 29 May 2019. Gemalto controlled Gemplus International FEM A 37 B9 22 7] - 5T AK # Gemalto £ 5
S.A., a related party and a substantial shareholder of the Company W fE - Gemalto KR20194F5H29H R T °
throughout both years, which is a limited liability company incorporated Gemplus International S.A.# Gemalto # 5
in Luxembourg. # B—HKREZREZMHEREELR £
A] 7 [ 18] F JZ ) 15 52 2K 2 7] Y 7 B e
RFEZRRK -
The Group normally receives credit terms of 60 to 180 days REBE—REHEEIEH60EZE180 5y
from its suppliers. The following is an aged analysis of the HOEEH - TIAMESHAREE 2ck
> = = = -
Group's trade and bills payables based on invoice date at the ERNENERRENEREZAD g2
end of the reporting period: BRER DA g ¢
2018 -
RMB'000 -
ARET T E 2
Eod
0-90 days 0-90H 346,814 353550
91-180 days 91-180H 40,931 65,026 éﬁ
181-365 days 181-365H 4,529 11,911
Over 1 year 8 i —F 7,072 7,234 s
5§
399,346 437,721 =3

SHERAERRERAT —T-hEFR 2]
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

28.

29.

222

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

REZE2019F12A831B L2 EE

28.

BEHNEE

2018
RMB’000
ARBTT

Embedded software and
secure payment products

BAXBRHENEZEZNER

42,468

27,176

As at 1 January 2018,
RMB35,475,000.

contract liabilities amounted to

The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value
as deposit from customers when they sign the contracts
with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at
a point in time when the control of the goods is transferred
to the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB27,176,000 (2018:
RMB35,475,000).

R2018F1H1B » G EENEEA
A R #35,475,0007T °

EETFRIANE  AEEKRE
FAHLEMNIO%EIVONIEARFE
REL - ANABRBEFAKNR &
EMEHERE —RBEEBRERF
FFAIFERULA » REIZ=2019412 A31
AIEZSFE  BREFYIEHBER
BRI UL A A R #27,176,0007T (2018 :
A R #35,475,0007T) °

OTHER PAYABLES 29. Hth FEf+ R
2018
RMB’'000
AR T T
Payroll and welfare payables B TE RAEF 59,807 52,004
Delivery and postage payables ERNEBERBE 4,442 2,919
Other tax payables H b & 718 34,412 59,044
Payables for marketing events FE1 & 85 R B R IE = 5,239
Other payables and accrued expenses H A AR R R 8,536 5,400
107,197 124,606
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R E B S R R Y A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

30. WARRANTY PROVISION

31.

30

ERERE

2018
RMB’000
ARETT

Analysed for reporting purpose as:
Current liabilities

mBAaE

BBEBNZ N :

4,775

4,775

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate
of the Group’s liabilities under assurance-type warranty
granted on products sold, based on prior experience and
industry averages for defective products.

EREBHBREEERBBELRM
TRMITEFHKE  EHHAREE
HeEEMREZHWREMG -

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 31. BT BG
2018
RMB'000
ARE T T
At 1 January ®1A1H 3,000 17,700
Received during the year F N TR 1,858 —
Released to profit or loss during the year  F A iHA Bz (3,000) (14,700)
At 31 December ®12H31H 1,858 3,000

Goldpac Limited received government grants from the relevant
local authorities in Mainland China as an incentive in relation
to technical know-how on the development of smart cards and
solutions services. Such government grants were recognised in
the profit or loss as other income when the research completed
and the related verification procedures have been completed
and approved by the local authorities in Mainland China.

EHEEZEZRERDA

& FEAR AR AR A B A K
FHEMRIERHEERRRBRNDR
T ERARR - LR E
MEZK HEREEFTELE
BB A BT RRPTHEE R A 1E R
Hit W AFFAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R B R R MY AT )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 A Z2019F12A31H L2 FE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

32. HE&EE

Maturity analysis: FEA 4T
Within one year —FLA 8,108
Within a period more than 1 year FE—F N E
but not more than 2 years BB F 5 HI PR A 6,109
Within a period more than 2 years TEMF A L
but not more than 5 years BB T F ) EIRR A 3,354
17,571
Analysed as: AR W=
Non-current SEIR 9,463
Current I HA 8,108
17,571
The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard AEBEEHEEAGE I ELTESR
to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the BEAORBUERR XNEENHK
Group's treasury function. Bheeaff s imHEAE -
33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33. IEE B IE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement fRE AR N R A IR RE B IE
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities BEMBEREHBEEEE - LTAR
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred HERRBELEHIBRBEDN
taxation balances at the end of the reporting period:
2018
RMB'000
ARBTF T
Deferred tax assets REHIEEE 8,192 9,104
Deferred tax liabilities BEEBHIEEE (23,825) (26,395)
(15,633) (17,291)
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The following

is the deferred taxation

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

movements thereon during the year:

At 1 January 2018
(Credited) charged to profit or
loss during the year (note 70)

At 31 December 2018
Charged (credited) to profit or
loss during the year (note 10)

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB1,980,000 available for offset against future profits (2018:
RMB1,868,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

R2018F1H1H
FRREzEH GG M)
HIBR (Hf 2t 10)

201812 A31H
FRRIEZEP AR
(8 (A E10)

201912 A31H

recognised and

LTREBRNELEHBEREFA
mRE :
Temporary
differences
arising from The PRC’s
allowance  withholding
for credit tax on
loss and undistributed
inventories earnings Total
HEEEER ROBEFEH
FERRBEL R A
WERMHEER SRk &t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR¥EFTT ARBTFT
(8,730) 19,871 11,141
(374) 6,524 6,150
(9,104) 26,395 17,291
912 (2,570) (1,658)
(8,192) 23,825 15,633

72019F12 318 + K& B 7] B K
B R KRBF 2 AR E 8
A A KR #1,980,0007T (2018 : A R #&
1,868,0007T) ° FH AR 7R 2K & Al B9 A~ 7]
TEORIE - LR R R A 2 B 7% 5 1B

EREEHRBEE - Z/EBEEMIEH
I & EHR

EHEEZEZRERDA

—E-NEFER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. IR 7
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE -]
‘000 HKD'000
F BT T
Issued and fully paid: BRETEHR:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 201851718 - 201812 A31H
and 2019 N2019%12 A31H 833,561 1,499,498
RMB'000
AREF T
Shown in the financial statements as B R A B TS K
— at 31 December 2018 and 2019 — 2018412 A31H X% 2019%12 A31H 1,192,362

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. UK AERMN TN S

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (@) BXRAHRBEANERE
at &

BRAREEAERETEN
2013F1MAISEE 2 BB IR R A
EmAEHE(BERAHRE
ABERESNED BEEBEEAR
EEETRERERESEHLA

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognise
the contribution of certain employees and directors

226

made or may have made to the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of the Group on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, and has been expired on 3 December
2019.

At 31 December 2019, no options have been granted
and remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. At 31 December 2018, the number of
shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme was 27,738,000, representing 3.33% of the
shares of the Company in issue on that day.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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A\

35. LR RERNZARS

(&)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
==

1 o N~ oz . 4HE
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BRAPRERBERS - D
= #B g o
=f 8l () 52
i
Options granted must be taken up on 19 November B H 8 B AR fE 4 ZH R 2013 4R 11 e
2013, upon payment of HKD1.0 by the grantee. R19B Al A X & #1.0T 9 B -
1% F LA RIS o S
25
The following table discloses details of the Company's TEREZEARGDEEREBF ;
share options held by directors and employees under the RENBERARAEERBRE 58
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and movements in such =T 81 O BB P i M E R B £ 2018 sEE
holding for both years ended 31 December 2019 and K2019F12A31HIE 2 FE 2 -
2018: HE: 5
5 .®
Number of share options = %«1
BRENE € g “L
Exercise At Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At Exercise  Forfeiture At % 2t *‘
o) ©
price 1 January during during during 31 December during during 31 December S
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2018  the year the year the year 2018 the year the year 2019 = .
20185 #0185 120195
RHAH o £ X3 SRIEE 1918 FREBR FRATE FRAXR 12ANA  ERTE FRXX 12A318 S @
o + B
Directors 2 £
13 ; ?Lw
G
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2014 HKD2.71 400,000 = = = 400,000 = (400,000) = =
to 3 December 2014 to 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013%11A19BZE B2014512A4RZ BB o
01412438 01951238 0 L
5 O g
g g
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2015 HKD2.71 1,840,000 = = = 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 = E a ‘”ﬂ
to 3 December 2015 to 3 December 2019
20135118198 E2013F11A198% 82015512848 F BELIIT a
2015512A38 201951238 g
sy
[ 1=
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2016 HKD2.71 1,840,000 = = = 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 = é g o
to 3 December 2016 to 3 December 2019 @ g {om
20135115198 B2013%11A19BE B2016512A4RZ BB g :j
2016%12A38 2019%12A38 2
|9
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2017 HKD2.71 1,840,000 - - — 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 =
to 3 December 2017 to 3 December 2019 ‘gi‘,L
20135118198 BOBFNA9EE B20I7E12A4RE BRI = S
2017512838 2019512338 g
g S
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2018 HKD2.71 1,840,000 = = = 1,840,000 — (1,840,000 = g E -
to 3 December 2018 to 3 December 2019 5w JJ*
20135115198 B2013%11A19BE B2018512A4RZ BB é i
2018%12A38 2019%12A38
7,760,000 - - — 17,760,000 — (7,760,000 -

EHEEZEZRERDA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B 5 R MY R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

REZE2019F12A831B L2 EE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. U RO ABEBNIZINAR S

(&)

228

(Continued)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

() BRAHBENBERE

=1 5 —
al &l ()
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise At Transfer  Exercise Forfeiture At Exercise  Forfeiture At
price 1 January during during during 31 December during during 31 December
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2018  the year the year the year 2018 the year the year 2019
20185 #0185 #2019
REAH BRE Eigi 4 BROEE 1818 FAEB FRE FRXX 2A31R FRfE FRAX 12R31R
Employees
Es
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2014 HKD2.71 2,649,000 = —  (12,000) 2,637,000 — (2,637,000) =
to 3 December 2014 to 3 December 2019
20135115198 E2013%11A19B E E2014512R4RZF BT
201451238 201951238
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2015 HKD2.71 3,992,000 - — (88,000 3,904,000 — (3,904,000 =
to 3 December 2015 to 3 December 2019
20135118198 E2013F 1151985 E015F12A48% BELIIT
2015512838 2019%12A38
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2016 HKD2.71 4,516,000 = — (93,000 4,423,000 — (4,423,000) =
to 3 December 2016 to 3 December 2019
20135115198 B2013F11R198 % B2016%12R4HZ BT
2016%12A38 2019%12A38
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2017 HKD2.71 4,600,000 = — (93,000 4,507,000 —  (4,507,000) =
to 3 December 2017 to 3 December 2019
20135115198 E2013%11A19B E B2017%12R4R % BT
2017512438 201951238
19 November 2013 From 19 November 2013 From 4 December 2018 HKD2.71 4,600,000 - — (93,000 4,507,000 — (4,507,000 =
to 3 December 2018 to 3 December 2019
20135118198 E2013F11F198% E2018512A40 % BELIIT
2018512838 2019%12A38
20,357,000 = —  (379,000) 19,978,000 — (19,978,000) =
Total 28,117,000 - — (379,0000 27,738,000 — (27,738,000) =
At

The share options shall vest in 5 tranches subject to
specific period of services of certain of employees,
executives and officers for the Group and/or the listing
of shares on the Stock Exchange.

No share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group
recognised the total share-based payment expense of
RMB2,497,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
respect of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme

The principal terms of the share option scheme,
approved by the shareholder’s resolution passed on 15

November 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”),

are

substantially the same as the terms of the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme except that:

(i)

(iii)

the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue at the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange;

the maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of offer to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue as at the date of offer to grant; and

the exercise price is determined by the directors
of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the ordinary shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no options were
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share

Option Scheme.

35. LR AERNZARS

(&)

(b)

EHEEZEZRERDA

BRESE

M2013F1MAISE BB IR B
SR % BT A O B9 BE BR O T &
((BREFEDESKxES

RR

B & AR BB ST Bl K

BORR - AT RRER O

(i)

(iii)

B ER R ARG ET
BB ARDN B R T
mZBR AR ER10%

FEAE A — @218 A HIE 2
BHOREZE  BT&SE
R2ERENRSEBTE
BAEHTRMOMNI% &

TEEBRAARAE
EREEE ATEER
UNT&EmE: @QERRAE
BRXABHR(FEARS
B) 2 W82 (8 : (b) £ B XX
P E IR B B HI R0 AT B (E
EEANEERKRBET
BE: ROARRKNE
8 o

20194612 A318F120184F12 A
31 - ZBEREFE TEE R
sk B B 5 A B AR A o
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

The Company adopted a shares award scheme (the
“Shares Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015
(the “Adoption Date”) with a duration of 15 years
commencing from 11 December 2015. The objective of
the Shares Award Scheme are to (i) align the interests
of any employee, adviser, consultant, agent, contractor,
client or supplier of any member of the Group whom the
directors in its sole discretion considers may contribute
or have contributed to the Group (the “Participants”);
(i) recognise and motivate the contribution of the
Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of
the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the
long-term growth and further strategic expansion of the
Group.

The Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold the
Company’s shares before they are vested and transferred
to the Participants. The Trustee purchases the Company’s
shares being awarded from the open market with funds
provided by the Company by way of contributions.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares
under the Shares Award Scheme to the Participants.
The shares awarded shall be vested in three years on
each anniversary of the first vesting date, which is 26
November 2017, in equal portions.

The estimated fair value of the shares award granted
at the grant date were approximately HKD27,564,000
(equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the market
price of the relevant shares at the grant date.
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. U RO ABEBNIZNARZ

(Continued) (#&)

Corporate
Information

S
<y
(c) Shares Award Scheme (Continued) () B&EBFE @ .
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group R E E2019%12A318 I 2 & &
recognised total share-based payment expenses in B AEBERELEBR DR .
relation to the Shares Award Scheme amounting to BABRODBERNER A i
RMB1,935,000 (2018: RMB7,579,000). X #1,935,0007T (2018 : A R ¥ g
7,579,0007T) ° g2
(i) Movements in the number of unvested () XREBRBROYE éi
awarded shares o E sk
Number of 5 .
shares gan
RO HE gt
o © By
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 6,808,000 g {n
Vested EHRE (3,350,000) -
Forfeited B (108,000) 5
At 31 December 2018 72018412 318 3,350,000 -
Vested EEE (2,937,000) -
Forfeited BRK (413,000) =
At 31 December 2019 201912 H31H — E
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the ® & E2019F12A31H
Company acquired 2,224,000 ordinary shares of IEZFE  ARAEH g
the Company (2018: nil) for a total consideration of A K #3,526,0007T & A % s
RMB3,526,000. At 31 December 2019, 4,380,000 KRN 712,224,000/ & & g%*ﬁ
ordinary shares of the Company (2018: 4,843,000 f% (2018 : &) o 120194 %él
shares) are held by the Trustee and RMB1,752,000 12A318 " REAFBER - -
(2018: RMB4,303,000) was placed to the Trustee ‘A 7)4,380,000/% (2018 : -
as prepayments. 4,843,000% ) I @ Az A1 A g
R %1,752,0007T (2018 : 5 o
A R #4,303,0007T) 2 555
(NE 4 o
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36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those
for which cash flows were, or the future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
from financing activities.

i

=
[=]

36. MEERBEL 2B
B &R

TRHFAJNAAEEARE RS E
EMABEED BREASRIRS
25 NRELTHELENRERERE
AEEGRRERERTHRIER
AHERDBAREEFINRSR
HARRRETABNEE -

\

Dividend Lease
payable liabilities Total
B RE HESE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 20181 A1H = = =
Financing cash flow MEEHR SN (140,289) = (140,289)
Dividend declared Bk B 137,850 — 137,850
Foreign exchange gain HNEE B B 2,439 = 2,439
Non-cash transaction FEBRERH = — —
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H = = =

Adjustment upon application KRB BHHERE

of HKFRS 16 RN E165 < 35 B — 8,825 8,825
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) 201941 A1B (E it ) = 8,825 8,825
Financing cash flow MEEHREM (147,368) (9,600) (156,968)
Dividend declared Bk i B 147,105 = 147,105
Foreign exchange gain SR IR B 263 = 263
New leases entered RAIZHEE — 17,462 17,462
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE = 884 884
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H — 17,571 17,571
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F12A31H L 2 FE

37. OPERATING LEASES 37. REHE o5z
The Group as lessor AEBEAEHBEA §24
Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to AEEBALHAANKCERHESRAE E%E
investment property owned by the Group with lease terms EmENIEEYE  HAAIF & £5%
of 3 years, without an extension option. The lessee does not JEEARE - AA ARG EE
have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the BEZWE - g
lease period. 2aK
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HESEEWKHASKLOT: e

=

]

Chairman'’s
Statement
E &

Within one year —FR 1,488 £
In the second year EF 1,488 5
In the third year E=F 248 é
3,224 s m
The Group as lessee AEBFEREEA o £
Sy
=
31.12.2018 -
2018412 A31H i o
RMB'000 c2a
ARET T Eli
Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease  KEHEHFADNRFEA S XK 10,067 2
during the year s
G g%
Maturity analysis of operating lease payments: 4 E R B H o A gr(j
&
31.12.2018
2018412 A31H §L
RMB'000 =
ARBTF T £8u
Within one year R—FR 4,801 Y S
In the second to fifth year inclusive REEZFRHF 4,287 a
9,088 g
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRY AXKBTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but ERAKEDE  BER
not provided in the consolidated financial =R A2 5T 418 K5I A
statements in respect of acquisition of NERE B R R AR
property, plant and equipment BEARARE

The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s
salaries, up to a maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF are held separately from those of
the group companies in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligations of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme are to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits
as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
on a reqgular basis. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raising of bank loans.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

41. €T A

TR I EE

2018
RMB'000
ARET T
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL BEAnBEREEHFAER
Designated as at FVTPL EEARBRANEBER
HEHAAER 180,084 232,649
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHER A ECEREE 1,800,481 1,786,168
Financial liabilities ol =R
Amortised cost 55 A 404,890 446,040

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due
from an associate, trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade,
bills and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

HEREEREREBRE

AEENTESHT ABREEKRE
BRRKIA - EUWE K E &
REDEARTER RITED
T3 ROIERERS BHERK
ENEBREMENRE - ZFE
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(BERR - F R R A ERER
) EERRRREMERR o R
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

()

236

Currency risk

Several group entities have sales and purchases in
United States Dollar (“USD"”), which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk of USD. The percentage of the
Group's sales and purchases that are denominated in
USD, currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are as follows:

. ERmIAEm

MERREEEREEBE

(%)
™ 15 & B2
() E#ER

ET&EEEREEZT(ERD
HERRKE <ASE@ERX
TTHIINER KR - NEEAETT
(BB RSB EREI L E LA
MEE)ENHEREENT
DL

2018

Sales fich=
Purchases g

1.4% 1.0%
15.1% 21.7%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

PATR R AN 6= B 72 AN 3 5 B R 2A
SNEETENEREERERA
AEREE:

Assets

BEE
2018
RMB'000
AR T T
usD ETT 592,351 341,853
Euros (“EUR") BT (& 7Tl) 318 284
Singapore dollars (“SGD") 7003 B (137 b0 3 %) 110 599
British Pound Sterling (“GBP") AT EE R 8 ([ ]) 22 36

Liabilities

a&
2018
RMB'000
AR T T
usD ETT 26,119 44,732
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below includes the Group's
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items where the denomination of the balances is in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities at the end of the reporting
period and has been determined based on the exposure
to exchange rates against the functional currency of
relevant group companies. For a 5% weakening of these
currencies against the functional currency of relevant
group companies and all other variables being held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year is as follows:

41.

€@ T B

MRREEEREEBE

(&)

™ 5 B B2 (%)

()

& m g ()

TREINBRESTERELR
SERAREHRKEENIN
BHEERREREELQAMN
BN EARESEERIEDRE
MERHREEES  BEER
BERSBEARMNMEEER
ASNEERMETE - EREFE
BTHEREBEARINEERR
B5% e EERE T
& AEBEFEMNBERET

2018
RMB'000
AR T T

F 2 B R A
— XL

Decrease in profit for the year
— USD

(21,234)

(11,142)

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year where the respective currencies
strengthens against the functional currency of relevant
group entities by 5%.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
at the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate pledged bank deposits and fixed
bank deposits (see note 26 for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets, mainly interest bearing bank balances.
The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated bank balances. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing
bank balances at the end of the reporting period and
assumed that the amount of assets outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. 50 basis points were used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank balances had been 50 basis points
higher (lower) and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on profit for the year is as follows:

Increase (decrease) in profit for the
year

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest risk as at the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in structured deposits as at FVTPL. The
structured deposits carry expected interest rates which
are linked to the performance of the underlying financial
instruments including money market funds, inter-banking
lending and debentures. In the opinion of management,
a reasonably possible change in the prices of the
respective instruments will not have a significant impact
on the pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 as a result of the changes in fair value
of structured deposits.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform an
obligation by the counterparties at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit approvals. Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivables
and contract assets based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% (2018:
56%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2019
which was due from customers engaged in the banking
industry.

35
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Other receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances

The Group also have concentration of credit risk on pledged
bank deposits and fixed bank deposits which are deposited
with banks with high credit rating. Other than the above, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk. The credit risks on pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and has
assessed the expected credit loss rate under 12m ECL method
based on the Group’s assessment in the risk of default of the
respective counterparties.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has assessed that the
expected loss rates for other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances were
immaterial. Thus no loss allowance for other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
was recognised.

Amount due from an associate

The directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of amount due from
an associate based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The directors of the Company believe that there is a significant
increase in credit risk of this amount since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on lifetime
ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group assessed the ECL for amount due from an associate,
RMB1,740,000 (2018: RMB11,460,000) loss allowance was
recognised.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

E@EW#!E%#% TIFH
1T R 17 5% R R 1T 17 7

$§lﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf
MEBRRITERERITEREFR
TEEETEERR °@LLWA
AEEVEHEMEREPEER
HREEMBITER ﬁﬁm%ﬁ
R SR AT 17 SF A 1 BB 15 A
ﬁ%%%m%?nﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’
BEERBRAR -

AEERSEMEY  EEMRT
ek~ SR17E HfF AR 1717 A
15 & 2. Be B ) 6 i 2R 2 SR BREZ AR 0 -
THERANEEHH HEOR RN
A &%Qﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ
ETEHMEEBRE -

ﬁ@m9¢uﬂ3ﬁ3»¢%§§ﬂ$ﬁ@
UK - BEEBIRITER - RITEH
55 ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ%%%fTé
Koo l%%ﬁmﬁmﬁw - B
RITER BT TCHERMETEF
mm%ﬁﬁﬁo

BERBE LA FE

VIN/N 7%%@#7&*“&% LATE
& AKRE E S B(B& 2B
m\ﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁm%%%%@
U B & X B FRIE A9 AT UK [0 1 B 1T E HR
RBY AT c ARRIEZEERA am
RIERIAR  Ze AN EERERHA
= - $El&m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
sHERERE - REZE 2019412 A31
HAI20185F12 8318 1L 2 FE - A&
B HEREE AR RBEHEEE
EiES % WRTARM1,740,0007T
(2018 : A R #11,460,0007T) B & 18
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#rE B % R M R o)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. €/ T A % 55
Financial risk management objectives and MHEREEEREBREK SE¢
policies (Continued) (%) _ s
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1= & B B AR B 7k (a0 £ i
(Continued) ol

S
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises N5 B A {E AR B AR BT B E R ém
the following categories: AT #8 51 : =
Trade receivables % E
Category Description and contract assets Other financial assets 5 2t
Al it ERERREHNEE HtEmMEE i
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL E =
default and does not have any past-due  credit-impaired g a0
amounts 2 5
AT HHENERRREEEAHESHE wReEBEEER REAERAEEEE Eom
— RERRIE 2
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL .
but usually settle after due date credit-impaired E;f
BReE EBAZRBREXRERETRNEE KIEHEEBR REARRAFEEEE S5
— RERRE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not ESUF
in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired o
through information developed internally o
or external resources ‘ ! o SE
2 &t ABELEMNIOMNIRRNELSBTER RIBPHMEEBER RIVUEEEAE Sl
[\ B2 B ) 44 B R 1& IR BR 1L AN — RERRIE — REARE =
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL ;
credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired N
BB EEBRPAEECEARE KREHEBMEEERE KREIBHGEEERE g
— BRARE — BREARE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off §

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery Tl
% i EEBRABRBALRBRENKRNER SHERZXIH © B WA 8 g
7N 65 [ R 2R 2 Uy o] ?
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. @ T B
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEBZEBEK
policies (Continued) (#)

242

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected lives of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information, including
but not limited to expected growth rate of the industry, that
available without undue cost or effort.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed based on provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering historical default rates and forward-looking
information.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 4. €/ T A
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEBZEBEK S«
policies (Continued) (%) P
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & & & MO E 5T 14 @) =25
(Continued) A%

gt
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TERHFIAEEHHEE 6N E S g@
financial assets, contract assets, which are subject to ECL EEREHEEBBEIMNEER 35
assessment: %
Internal § éw
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount oo
ABER NREARBEEERD
Hit FR KERHEERA EHEAS s
2018 5 =
RMB'000 2 S
AREF T £5.
Financial assets at amortised cost évﬁ%
RBHERAGEZEREE g @
Trade receivables — contracts with 22 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 210,228 80,285 -
customers — not credit-impaired S
EREHR —BEFAH 0T BEREREEESNRIBREEE 2 S
BiE— R ERAE i
Watch list Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 92,208 273,249 é;fﬁ
— not credit-impaired } s
BRZE RARGEERGNRAENESR —_—
BR— REARE 5 o
Doubtful Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 33,505 67,901 é@(j
N — credit-impaired 2o
5 BBBEEEEGNRFENES
BB — CEARE
Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 1,572 = g p
E# RERHBEERRE —E2ERME g
Other receivables 24 Performing  12m ECL 35,092 20,845 é
H fth JE Y 5K 0T REARBEEER 2
Amount due from an associate 25 Loss Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired 13,200 11,460
B AR F0R i GEEREEER — CERAE
Pledged bank deposits, fixed bank 26 Performing  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 1,437,052 1,351,483 I %
deposits and bank balances 28
BEEARTER  ROEHEHN AT RERHBEERR — RMEARE 52
Other items &
HitEE
Contract assets 23 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 12,712 13,564 géé@:
i — not credit-impaired o gem
BREE Wi BBRERREESHRIBEEEE tas

B— AERRE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 41. €@ T Emwm

Financial risk management objectives and MERREEEEZEEBER

policies (Continued) (#0)

Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 & B B 7R & 5T 1 (80

(Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group ERAKEEERREEN —HH

applies internal credit rating for its customers in relations REFEHHES *ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]%ﬁiﬁﬁl’q*ﬁ

to its operation. The following table provides information EAFR TRREKERELXRSTE

about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which HEEEBRCRERAREBE)ERXTE

assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not REERET GO ERRR - 72019

credit-impaired). A Debtor with credit-impaired with gross F12A3168 - HEEEAEAARE

carrying amount of RMB1,572,000 as at 31 December 2019 1,572,0007T (FA20184F12 A31H : )

(31 December 2018: nil) was assessed individually. MEFERARENBEBEAEITTEBF
fly o

Gross carrying amount FREE#E &

At 31 December 2019

72019128318

Internal credit rating A B AR AR
Performing AT 1.85% 210,228 0.00% 12,712
Watch list HRZE 2.77% 92,208 — —
Doubtful E3=3 3.42% 33,505 — —
335,941 12,712
Average Trade Average Contract
At 31 December 2018 loss rate receivables loss rate assets
M20185E12H318 FHEEE BRER FHEEBEX EHEE
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR T AR T T

Internal credit rating A 15 AR
Performing AT 0.23% 80,285 0.00% 13,564
Watch list BREE 1.31% 273,249 — —
Doubtful E3=3 5.64% 67,901 — —
421,435 13,564
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables within performing, watch list and doubtful at the
end of the reporting period which have been past due over
90 days are not considered as in default by considering the
expected subsequent and historical repayment from trade
debtors and contract assets.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount
due from an associate was within the category of loss. There
is evidence indicating that the debtor is credit-impaired.
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate amounted
to RMB1,740,000 (2018: RMB11,460,000) is provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group performed
impairment assessment on financial assets other than trade
receivables and contract assets and concluded that the
probability of default of the counterparties is insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

EHEEZEZRERDA

. E@IAEum
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(&)

= & & b AR B 5T 14 (@)

ZERINABEANMANEEMNEHR
BERMELERER ARAE=R
RANHELR RS HEBOR - B
RE#AT BRBEMREERTH
M BRI REL o

ARBESREEREE QG RIE
BREBEER AFBEETREBTA
B ARE - F it H e UK QA
SRIEET IR B E B 1B A R 1,740,000
7t (2018 + A R #11,460,0007T) °
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 41. TR I AEm
Financial risk management objectives and R EEEZHEHBRE
policies (Continued) (%)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = & & b A R & =¥ 1 (@)
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TREARKRGIOETEKERE #
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified ROEFEHREEEENES -
approach.
Lifetime ECL
(non-credit Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
AERBEERE KERAFEER
(RERRE) (BEERHE) G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETFT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2018 201851818 7,254 = 7,254
Changes due to financial instruments  F131E# A 2 €8 T A3
recognised as at 1 January: M
— Impairment losses reversed — REERED (M)
(note) (7,254) — (7,254)
New financial assets originated NEEMEE 7,595 = 7,595
As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 7,595 — 7,595
Changes due to financial instruments  R1A1E R 2 &5 T A5 &
recognised as at 1 January: M1
— Impairment losses reversed — REBBEED (F)
(note) (6,023) — (6,023)
New financial assets originated MECHEE 6,032 1,572 7,604
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12H318 7,604 1,572 9,176
Note: Impairment losses reversed during the year as a result of settlement Mia: BEEBABEGER RERNBERE

from its debtors.

&R e

Liquidity risk management Bt B

The management of the Group has built an appropriate AEENEEERAEENER -
liquidity risk management framework for the management of H RBEENRDE BEEER
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity ETHEMNRDECRMREEESRE -
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity AEEBBEFRITRE  FHEE
risk by maintaining banking facilities and by continuously REMRERRER  URerAE
monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and the maturity WEHBEAREBERDE AR -

profiles of its financial liabilities.

246 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
g b S E L T EE )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R & £2019F12A31H L 2 FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 41. €@t T Bum o5
S 5
. . . . . sk
Financial risk management objectives and MEREEEBEZEEBEK S«
policies (Continued) () o
Liquidity risk management (Continued) B R e ) = Zn
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFAIAEEFITECRABNE . g*ﬂf)
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table HEARR - 2R DERAEBAELX R
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows NSRRI AEMNRIERER =5
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the TmE o HiIETE SR B BB
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other BEBENNERR - ZKXBEFE %éﬂg
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed MAELI|WE N o E:g%
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal Sk
cash flows.

5 & D

=
=

B

Management Discussion
and Analysis

SREEE

Directors and Senior
Management

B
i
At 31 December 2019 H2019%1231E -
Trade and bill payables BN EHREMER = 316,153 83,193 - - 399,346 399,346 o
Other payables i 5 - 5,544 - - - 5,544 5,544 < b
gi%
321697 83,193 - = M0a%0 40489 ‘
Lease liabities HEAE 5.3 300 5,326 6,748 3,880 18,976 17,57 § -
SRk
Weighted  Repayable on Total !
: , g
average demand or less undiscounted Carrying 5
interest rate than 3 months cash flows amount -
i AIEERS AR REETR )
FHFE =@EARNEER WM AR (B f
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 X

ARETT AR®ETT ARETT

Environmental,
Social and Governance
HEk

CE RS

At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H

Trade and bills payables &1 & 3k & FE 1+ 2 #& = 437,721 437,721 437,721
Other payables H i & A 3K — 8,319 8,319 8,319 ——
446,040 446,040 446,040 RS

SHEERZRERAT =—B-NEFH 24/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2. T ENAREBETTE

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (@) BAAREBERKEMITE
that are measured at fair value on a WAEEESMEEND
recurring basis REE

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

AEERBD TEEENSER
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%&1%3%&)1:.,&\EET%%?I
oo
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HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF 2. cMTANIREETE .
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#) 2N
Sey
(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets () BARBEELEMSE - L
that are measured at fair value on a MAKBEREENDY =
recurring basis (Continued) REE@ -
Fair value Valuation technique(s) o ET
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy and key input(s) R %9
BEITER =3

tRMEE AREE AREBEEEBR FTEBmAYE ;
c 41
g g"‘\‘
Structured deposits As at 31 December 2019: Level 3 Net asset value as stated on 5 Rl

RMB180,084,000 the quotation report issued o

(2018: RMB232,649,000) by financial institutions =
RBRIET K 72019412 A318 : HIER LREELANBRERSET g =
A E 180,084,000 HANEEFME 2o
(2018 : A R#232,649,0007T) e 5E
5 gl
o © By
Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement FIBRGEHER § m

=
The following table presents the reconciliation of Level TREYe/EENFEIERE 5 m
. . = o = B
3 measurement of the financial assets: B ¥R 2 S
Structured 85X
) S =
deposits 5 ¢
RMB'000 =
ARBTT 258
x O,

At 1 January 2018 20181 H1H — 2
Net gain on financial assets EMEEFHRT 11,683 5w
Purchase of financial assets BETMEE 720,000 2ck
== = > & g%
Redemption of financial assets B e mEE (499,034) gl
S

At 31 December 2018 72018512 A31H 232,649 S
Net gain on financial assets CREEFRE 7,592 = S
Purchase of financial assets EBESMEE 350,000 2:8;[
Redemption of financial assets B[R 5 EE (410,157) o
=5
At 31 December 2019 72019412 4318 180,084 2
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during PRMEAAYEE A FE3E A §§§
both periods. EIERE L - 23E

SHERERRERAT =—T-hEFFR 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

250

(@)

(b)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 Measurement
(Continued)

The total gains or losses for the year included a
realised gain of RMB7,508,000 and an unrealised gain
RMB84,000 relating to financial assets that are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period (for
the year ended 31 December 2018: a realised gain of
RMB9,034,000 and a unrealised gain RMB2,649,000).
Such fair value gains or losses are included in “Other
Income”.

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses the net asset value as stated on the
quotation report issued by financial institutions.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are
disclosed above.

Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at the
end of each reporting period.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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2. EMITENAREBETE

(&)

BRAAREBERKREMHTE
NAEAEELREENA
AREE@m

3B KT E R (@)

FAREKEIBBESRRS
HREAABEREEZH E
MNeBEEEERKEARE
7,508,000 R AR EIR Wz AR
#84,0007T (R EL 22018412 A
BIHLEZFE - BEERKZEA
R #9,034,0007T & K & IR W =
A R #2,649,0007T) ° 3% 2 7
BEZHELEN K=K EEG
ATEMBA] -

N,

ARBEEFERMGEBR

EhEFF—HEEXBBENAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A MR MR )

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BB AR 5 o Sa
Other than the transactions and balances with related parties BRI ERA I ENRERTORS R Sg«
disclosed in respective notes, during the year, the Group had RSN - RARFEEA - 785 [ R B
the following significant transactions with related parties: TEURTERRS: z
Relationship and 2018 -
name of related parties Nature of transactions RMB'000 o
B 1R K% B 8 5 5 7R xHHE ARBFT oo
Companies controlled by Gemalto: =R
I Gemalto R A 2 #| F) A 7 : 22y

g g'u

o

Gemalto Pte. Ltd. Purchase of materials — 208 §£k
R EHER B -

Shanghai Gemalto IC Card Purchase of materials égT

Technologies Co., Ltd. 2,279 13,455 2;7‘1

(LB EAERREMARLQR) R EHER B g‘g‘

Gemalto Technologies (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  Purchase of materials = 79,972 s
(RERBR(LEB)BRAT) R EHER B 5
The details of compensation of key management personnel, RRRENGREEEREAEBERES E
representing the remuneration of the directors of the Company REOH S BAFEHRHFE © s

during the year are set out in note 9.

Report of

Corporate Governance
Report

Environmental,
Social and Governance

Financial
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEAREM

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited (Note /) ‘
SREBBRRRA ML)

Goldpac Limited (Note /)
AEFRAR (K L)

Goldpac Smart Card (Guangzhou)
Limjted
ENmEBERERERAH

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
PAERRBMBEARERAR

Goldpac Fintech Private Limited

Goldpac Innovation Limited (Note /)

Goldpac Investment Limited (Note /)
e AERERRAA (M2

SecureTech Holdings Limited

Goldpac Technology Service Limited
(Henggin)
AEMBRRE (BE)ERAT

Place/Country of
incorporation/
establishment/
operations
NARY/BES
¥oEX

Hong Kong
&b

Mainland China
HE A

Mainland China
B 3

Hong Kong
&R

Singapore

#

British Virg@ Islands
HBABRAS

Hong Kong
&b

British Virg@ Islands
HBABRES

Mainland China
B A 3

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2019 R Z£2019F12A31H I 2 FE

72019412 A31H X 201812 A31H -

ARFRENHBATESHATE

Nominal value of issued
and fully paid share
capital/registered capital
ERTRAERANRG
HE/EMES

2019

Ordinary shares 100%
— HKD500,000

ERR1
— %%500,0007

Registered capital 100%
— USD43,000,000
— %7143,000,0007C

Registered capital 100%
— RMB1,000,000

AMER
— A& %1,000,0007

Ordinary share HKD1 60%
ERRN
—BEIT
Ordinary shares 60%
— SGD100
LaRm
— #1007

Ordinary shares 100%
— USD100

ERERM
— X71007T

Ordinary share 100%
— HKD1

ERRG
— BB

Ordinary shares 60%
— USD100

EERN
— £7L1007T

Registered capital 100%
— RMB20,000,000
— AR#20,000,0007

Proportion of issued
ordinary shares capital
held by the Company

2018

100%

100%

100%

60%

60%

100%

100%

60%

100%

Principal activities

ARARGERTEBARLA TEXK

(Note i) and investment
holding
(i) R E R AR

(Note ji) and investment
holding
(i) R AR

(Note /i)
(H i)

(Note iii)
(1 itii)

(Note Jii)
(1 itii)

Investment holding

BERAA

Property holding
FPHERA

Investment holding

BRAA

(Note iy)
(i)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 R £2019F12A31H 1L 2 FE

44. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

45,

46.

Notes:
() Directly held by the Company.

(i) Embedded software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment

(i) Provision of data processing, system platforms, other total solutions and
equipment for customers in a wide business range including financial,
government, healthcare, transportation and retails by leveraging
innovative Fintech

(iv) Provision of logistical auxiliary service

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
in China and other countries in early 2020 has brought
uncertainty to China’s national economic growth as well
as the business of the Group. The Group had resumed its
operations since February 2020 and the directors anticipate
that the COVID-19 will have no material impact at the date
these financial statements are authorised for issue.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation as the directors of the Company
consider that the new presentation is more relevant and
appropriate to the consolidated financial statements. The changes
included the reclassification of certain assets and liabilities items
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position.

44. i B 2 7 @0

45,

46.

EHEEZEZRERDA

it
(i) HARFEEIFAH -

(i1) B2 X EEHARA XS L E
XEm® -

(i)  RBEE B FE KRB FEZE
RELEFIREHBEIE - ZRFE
B fth B f8 fE AR Ty R R AR

(i) RO RBEHRE -

EERA LFIRBAREAIBA
ARHAEENEEREESENE
ZYE -

RAE R AT LR - & HBAR
ERAEASRTHEBEES -

REAREE

2000F VI BN MR RS ([FHE B
MFSEEFREREMBR B4
HPEBRRGERAEBER TR
BERE - AEBE S LRN2020F2 F
WMELFESL  EFBt - RARKE
MERERE KB - HRF B TR
SHASEEBL TIHEKRKERTE -

e & BB

RELBBEEREHDE - U
BARFEZINE  BAAARRAEEM
RAFHOINERT AN EZEEPBRE
FHAEEE ZSF2IEREKRE
MBMRARPREEEMBBHRAN
B M-

—E-hEFH 53
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Fixed bank deposits
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

NE E2019F12 8318 IE 2 EE

(NRBEE
BEE
ME - BEREE
KRB ARZRE

RBEE

& Y2 B 188 2 ] 3R IR
H i & UK
RITEHEFER
RITHER

RBAE
H A & A 3K
& 1+ FfY 18 % B 3RO0R

RBEEFRME
EERE
EXREE
(&N

fi 18
EEAE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 March

2020 and are signed on its behalf

LU RUN TING
ERE

Chairman and Executive Director

EFSTERHTEF

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

by:

2019
RMB’000

ARBTR

4,386
395
367,262
372,043
424,310
9,598
715,208
2,898
1,152,014
3,615
144,439
148,054
1,003,960
1,376,003
1,192,362
183,641

1,376,003

HOU PING

HITEFHREEHNTE

2018
RMB’000
ARBTT

6,676
588
365,327
372,591
507,727
14,122
571,787
12,029
1,105,665
3,535
139,889
143,424
962,241
1,334,832
1,192,362

142,470

1,334,832

EE9 D N2020F3A23EEXR T @
BARRNBFBARTIRERAOER - W H
UWTESFEREREE:

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer



(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R E B S R R Y A ()

47. Bt 7 AR R R @)

REZE2019F 128318 IE 2 EE

Movement in the Company’s reserves ATz EE IR
Shares
held under
Shares shares Share
award award options Other Retained
reserve scheme reserve reserve profits Total
RHRB
RORE HEMESE BRE APE
i ZR%B e HttRE Eilb: 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARKTT ARETRT ARBTT ARBTE
At 1 January 2018 R20184F1R1H 4,912 (17122) 54,832 37,681 146,209 226,512
Profit and total comprehensive FEEFBMZEKA
income for the year = = = = 44,251 44,251
Recognition of equity-settled R EENRD
share-based payments (note 35) XA (#74£35) 7,579 — 2,497 — — 10,076
Forfeiture of share options BRELN = — (602) — 602 —
Dividends recognised as distribution 23 & % & (42 11)
(note 11) — — — — (137,850) (137,850)
Shares vested under the shares 18 & & {3 4 ) 1 &
award scheme of the Company R EE (7,620) 7,154 = = (53) (519)
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12 A31H 4,871 (9,968) 56,727 37,681 53,159 142,470
Profit and total comprehensive FEFBENZEARA
income for the year = = = = 190,256 190,256
Recognition of equity-settled WEREENRH
share-based payments (note 35) St (ffs£35) 1,935 = = = = 1,935
Purchase of shares under shares & & % {7 22 B 5t &
award scheme HAERKR - (3,526) = = = (3,526)
Forfeiture of share options R XA = = (56,727) = 56,727 =
Dividends recognised as distribution 4 & & & (472 11)
(note 11) = = = = (147,105) (147,105)
Shares vested under the shares 18 & & {3 42 ) &t 2
award scheme of the Company ~ RHFE (6,806) 5,479 = = 938 (389)
At 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H — (8,015) — 37,681 153,975 183,641

EHEEZEZRERDA

—E-hEER 255
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RESULTS
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to
Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling

interests

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to
Owners of the
Company
Non-controlling

interests

e
YA

IRV
FiIsHER

FEMHE

FE 16

ZAUNETE PN

FEE R 2

A6

CRATEBA

FEE R S

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2019

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT
1,684,632

296,179
(54,341)

241,838

241,838

241,838

2015
RMB’000
ARETT

2,606,841
(792,627)

1,814,214

1,814,214

1,814,214

Year ended 31 December

REBZE12B31BLELZFE
2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®TIT AR%®ETTT
1,393,713 1,400,842 1,411,127
244,566 198,764 207,802
(39,666) (34,287) (33,154)
204,900 164,477 174,648
204,900 164,477 175,187
= = (539)
204,900 164,477 174,648

At 31 December
MW12831H

2016 2017 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETITT AREFTT ARETT
2,599,582 2,706,875 2,628,452
(726,253) (776,992)  (648,369)
1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083
1,873,329 1,929,883 1,977,549
= = 2,534
1,873,329 1,929,883 1,980,083

2019
RMB’000
AR® TR

1,415,665

206,882
(30,459)

176,423

177,125

(702)

176,423

2019
RMB’000
ARBTR

2,635,228
(630,824)

2,004,404

2,002,572

1,832

2,004,404
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